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Corporate Information And Key Dates

AAERKREERH
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEERWED T

Emperor Culture Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) principally
engage in entertainment, media and cultural development
business, particularly in Greater China, which include (i) cinema
development and operation; (ii) investment and production of films,
TV programmes and other media related projects; (iii) investment
in a variety of cultural events including music concerts, live shows
and theatrical performance; and (iv) investment in securities.

MARKET REVIEW

Over the past decade, film market in China has been growing
rapidly. According to the market research conducted by Entgroup*
CERERB L HIER KD BRAF]), a leading research center
of China entertainment industry, China was the world’s second
largest box-office market in 2017 with revenue of RMB52.4 billion,
at a phenomenal growth rate of 15% year-on-year. In the first half
of 2018, the box office reached RMB30.0 billion, soared by 17% as
compared with the corresponding period last year.

The number of cinemas and screens in China has been increasing
rapidly in recent years. As of 31 December 2017, there were about
9,300 cinemas and 52,700 screens in China, growing by folds
within five years and surpassing those of the United States. In
2017, a massive number of 11,800 screens was added in China,
at a pace of 32 new screens a day in this year. This underlines the
growing popularity of cinemas and lays a solid foundation for the
sustained growth of China’s film industry.

* English name is for identification purpose only
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEERWED T

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Overall Review

During the year ended 30 June 2018 (the “Year”), revenue of the
Group increased by 103.0% to HK$91.2 million (2017: HK$44.9
million), driven by the growth of film exhibition income from an
expanded cinema network.

Loss for the Year attributable to the owners of the Company was
HK$153.8 million (2017: HK$62.3 million). Such increase is mainly
due to (i) the increase in fair value loss derived from the financial
assets under the segment of investment in securities; (ii) the
increase in impairment loss on goodwill; and (iii) a non-recurring
gain on disposal of associates which was recorded in the previous
year. Basic loss per share was HK$0.05 (2017: HK$0.03).

Use of Proceeds from Equity Fund Raising

During the Year, the Group utilised part of the net proceeds of
HK$161.8 million raised from the issue of 1,000,000,000 ordinary
shares of the Company subscribed by Giant Lead Profits Limited
(now known as “Emperor Culture Group Holdings Limited”) at a
subscription price of HK$0.19 per share on 23 March 2017 (the
“Subscription”) for expansion of cinema operation in mainland China
and investment in a film project as intended. As at 30 June 2018, the
remaining proceeds of HK$20.6 million was retained at banks.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group continued to fund its operations and capital
expenditure by cash generated internally from its operations as
well as the net proceeds from the Subscription. As at 30 June
2018, the Group’s cash and bank balances amounted to HK$264.1
million (2017: HK$452.6 million) which are mainly denominated in
Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi.

Total borrowings of the Group as at 30 June 2018 was HK$60.4
million (2017: HK$60.9 million) comprising the amounts due to
non-controlling interests and related companies of HK$44.9 million
and HK$15.5 million (2017: HK$44.9 million and HK$16.0 million)
respectively, which are denominated in Hong Kong dollars and
Renminbi, unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. The
gearing ratio (expressed as a percentage of total borrowings over
net asset value) was 8.0% (2017: 6.7%).

Exposure to Fluctuation in Exchange Rates and
Related Hedges

The Group’s cash and bank balances, income and expenditure are
primarily denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. The
carrying amount of the Group’s Renminbi denominated monetary
net assets was only less than 10.0% of its net assets as at 30 June
2018. Hence, the Group’s exposure to fluctuations in exchange
rates is insignificant.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Profit Guarantee

Pursuant to the terms of the sale and purchase agreement (the
“S&P Agreement’) dated 4 May 2016 entered into by a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company with Jade Sparkle Holdings
Limited and Mr. Wong Chun Loong (now known as “Mr. Huang
Tony Jademan Xian Zhen") (collectively referred to as the
“Vendors”), both being independent third parties, in respect of
the acquisition of approximately 78.64% equity interest in Jade
Dynasty Multi-Media Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as “JDMM Group”), the Vendors have given a
guarantee (the “Profit Guarantee”) to the Group that the audited
consolidated net profit after tax of JDMM Group for each of the
financial years ended/ending 31 December 2016, 31 December
2017 and 31 December 2018 (each of the “Guarantee Period”)
would be no less than HK$10.0 million (the “Guaranteed Sum”) for
each of the Guaranteed Period.

In case the Profit Guarantee is not fulfilled in each of the
Guaranteed Period, the Vendors shall pay 78.64% of the difference
between the Guaranteed Sum and the audited consolidated profit
after tax of JDMM Group (the “Shortfall”) to the Group, and for
avoidance of doubt, if JDMM Group sustained a loss for such
financial year, 78.64% of the Guaranteed Sum shall be payable by
the Vendors to the Group.

Emperor Culture Group Limited

Emperor Cinemas - Emperor Group Centre, Beijing
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Profit Guarantee (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2017, JDMM Group recorded
a loss after tax and hence, the Vendors were obliged to pay
the Shortfall of HK$7.9 million, being 78.64% of the Guaranteed
Sum to the Group. The Group had recorded the Shortfall as
compensation income and compensation income receivable in its
audited consolidated financial statements for the Year, and also
demanded payment from the Vendors of the Shortfall pursuant to
the terms of the S&P Agreement. The Shortfall was subsequently
settled by the Vendors on 20 September 2018.

Disposals

(a) On 3 July 2017, the Group completed the disposals of certain
film rights at total cash consideration of HK$47.6 million. No
gain or loss on the disposals was recorded for the Year as
the carrying amounts of these film rights had been adjusted
to their net realisable values as at 30 June 2017. Details of
the disposals were set out in the Company’s announcements
dated 30 November 2016 and 15 June 2017.

(b) On 2 May 2018, the Company disposed of its entire interest
in Corporate Fame Limited (“Corporate Fame”) at a cash
consideration of HK$8.1 million, resulting in a loss on

disposal of HK$8,000 for the Year. Corporate Fame and its
subsidiaries principally carried out the businesses of film and
TV programme production and distribution, and investment in
securities in the previous years.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEERWED T

BUSINESS REVIEW
Film Exhibition

The Group devotes to expand its film exhibition network in
prominent locations through its label “Emperor Cinemas”. During
the second half of the Year, four brand-new “Emperor Cinemas”,
one immediately after another, were opened and commenced
business. They are located in either large-scale commercial and
entertainment complex or upscale residential areas including
Shin Kong Place in Chongging, Emperor Group Centre in Beijing,
Donghai Garden in Shenzhen as well as New Town Mansion in
Tuen Mun, Hong Kong. “Emperor Cinemas” are positioned as
high-end premium cinemas equipped with advanced technologies
including IMAX theatre system, ScreenX, 4DX or MX4D motion
systems, D-Box seats and Dolby Atmos audio system. They also
feature VIP houses and VIP lounges where the audiences can
enjoy premium and exclusive entertainment services.

As at 30 June 2018, the Group ran five cinemas, offering a total of
54 houses with more than 6,200 seats. With rapid expansion of the
film exhibition business, the revenue from this segment increased
remarkably from HK$31.8 million in the previous year to HK$65.6
million for the Year, representing 106.0% growth. These new
cinemas will not only bring in new income stream and stable return
to the Group, but also lay a strong foundation for the Group's film
exhibition business.

Film and TV Programme Investment and Production
and Others

During the Year, this segment generated a revenue of HK$24.6
million (2017: HK$26.3 million) to the Group which was mainly
contributed by distribution and licensing income arisen from
animation business and release of certain co-invested films.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Film and TV Programme Investment and Production
and Others (continued)

As of 30 June 2018, the carrying values of the Group's film and
TV programme rights and production in progress were HK$14.0
million and HK$150.8 million (2017: HK$12.0 million and HK$215.5
million) respectively whilst the carrying amount of the investments
in film production was HK$35.3 million (2017: HK$1.7 million).
During the Year, the Group recognised an impairment loss of
investments in film production of HK$37.0 million (2017: HK$62.8
million).

Due to the change in market condition in the mainland China which
caused the deferral of certain animation projects to be released
and its expected income is affected, the management took a
prudent view to forecast the production, distribution and licensing
of animated TV episodes and theatrical films business. As a result,
an impairment loss on goodwill of HK$27.4 million (2017: HK$2.6
million) was recognised for the Year.

Event Investment and Others

The segment of event investment and others derived a revenue of
HK$1.0 million (2017: HK$0.9 million) for the Year. Revenue of this
segment was contributed by two co-invested concerts. The Group
continues to take a prudent approach in the selection of events to
be invested.

Investment in Securities

During the Year, the Group did not have any transaction in relation
to investment in listed securities (2017: transaction loss of HK$14.1
million). Based on the stock market price of the securities portfolio
held by the Group, a decrease in the fair value of HK$31.7 million
(2017: HK$7.1 million) was recognised for the Year. As at 30 June
2018, the carrying amount of the listed securities held by the
Group was HK$20.7 million (2017: HK$52.4 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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EVENT AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING
PERIOD

On 24 May 2018, the Company and Emperor International
Holdings Limited (‘Emperor International’), a connected person
of the Company, entered into a master tenancy agreement (the
“Master Leasing Agreement’) which sets out a framework of
the terms governing the tenancy transactions between the Group
and the relevant members of Emperor International, details of
which were set out in the announcement dated 24 May 2018
and the circular dated 17 July 2018 of the Company. The Master
Leasing Agreement and the relevant annual cap were approved
by the respective independent shareholders of the Company and
Emperor International in August 2018.

PROSPECTS

As Chinese consumers enjoy stable increase in their disposable
income and improvement on quality of life, their spending on
entertainment is expected to grow by leaps and bounds. With
rapid growth in box office and number of screens, it is believed
that China is poised to become the largest film market in the world
in future. Taking into account the strong fundamentals of Chinese
economy and film market, the Group is still positive about the
entertainment industry and will continue to extend coverage of
‘Emperor Cinemas” in first and second tier cities of mainland
China as well as Hong Kong and Macau. The Group strives to
maximise the exposure of “Emperor Cinemas” through a series of
branding and marketing initiatives. Riding on an ongoing synergy
with movie stars and pop singers under Emperor Entertainment
Group, “Emperor Cinemas” will continue to receive positive
publicity in China.
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PROSPECTS (continued)

The year ahead will continue to be a year of foundation building
and expansion for the Group. The Group has reached a cinema
co-operation strategic agreement with China Gezhouba Group
Real Estate Development Co. Ltd., one of the leading property
developers in mainland China, to jointly develop premium cinemas
in potential cities in China. The co-operation allows the Group to
preferentially secure prominent locations for the expansion of its
film exhibition network and brings unique cinematic experiences to
the audiences in town.

The Group is optimistic about the long-term sustained growth of
China’s film and entertainment market. The Group also strives to
respond to forthcoming market opportunities with flexibility and
decisiveness, and to expand according to a strategy that is both
disciplined and forward thinking.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

Following the expansion of cinema operation in Hong Kong and
mainland China, the number of employees of the Group increased
significantly from 95 staff as at 30 June 2017 to 316 staff as at 30
June 2018. Total staff costs including the directors’ remuneration
of the Company for the Year were HK$28.4 million (2017: HK$11.9
million). Employees’ remuneration was determined in accordance
with individual's responsibility, competence and skills, experience
and performance as well as market pay level. Staff benefits
include medical and life insurance, provident funds and other
competitive fringe benefits. To provide incentive or rewards to staff,
the Company has adopted a share option scheme, particulars of
which are set out in the section headed “Share Options” on pages
137 and 138 of this annual report.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EENCSREERZBRE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR (CHAIRPERSON)

Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa, aged 55, joined the Company
in March 2017 as the Chairperson and Executive Director of the
Company and has been responsible for the Group’s strategic
planning, business growth and development as well as overseeing
different functions within the Group. She is also the Chairperson
of the Executive Committee, the Nomination Committee and
the Corporate Governance Committee as well as a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Fan is also a director of
Emperor International (Stock Code: 163), Emperor Entertainment
Hotel Limited (Stock Code: 296) (“Emperor E Hotel”), Emperor
Watch & Jewellery Limited (Stock Code: 887) (‘Emperor W&J”)
and Ulferts International Limited (Stock Code: 1711) (“Ulferts
International”), all being associated corporations of the Company.
Having over 29 years of corporate management experience, Ms.
Fan possesses diversified experience in different businesses
ranging from cinema development and operation to entertainment
production and investment, property investment and development,
hotel and hospitality, retailing of watch and jewellery, wholesaling
and retailing of furniture, financial and securities services, artiste
management as well as media and publication. She is a lawyer by
profession in Hong Kong and a qualified accountant, and holds a
Master’'s Degree in Business Administration.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Chi Fai, aged 62, joined the Company in March
2017 as an Executive Director of the Company and has been
responsible for the Group’s strategic planning, business growth
and development as well as overseeing the financial management
of the Group. He is also a member of the Executive Committee
and the Remuneration Committee as well as a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Wong is currently a
director of four listed companies in Hong Kong, namely Emperor
International, Emperor E Hotel, Emperor W&J and Ulferts
International. Having over 30 years of finance and management
experience, Mr. Wong has diversified experience in different
businesses ranging from cinema development and operation to
entertainment production and investment, manufacturing, property
investment and development, hotel and hospitality, retailing of
watch and jewellery wholesaling and retailing of furniture, financial
and securities services, artiste management as well as media
and publication. He is a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.

Emperor Culture Group Limited
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EENEREERZBRE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Yeung Ching Loong, Alexander, aged 32, joined the
Company in March 2017 as an Executive Director of the Company.
He is also a member of the Executive Committee of the Company.
Mr. Yeung has almost 10 years of diversified experience in different
businesses ranging from cinema development and operation to
entertainment production and investment, property investment and
development, hotel and hospitality, retailing of watch & jewellery,
financial and securities services, artiste management as well as
media and publication. Mr. Yeung is also an executive director of
Emperor International, an associated company of the Company.

Ms. Shirley Percy Hughes, aged 55, joined the Company in
March 2017 as an Executive Director of the Company. She is
also a member of the Executive Committee of the Company. Ms.
Hughes is currently engaged in the management of entertainment
businesses involving production and distribution of music, TV
programmes and motion pictures as well as event performance
and artiste management. She was previously the Chief Executive
Officer of New Media Group and has over 30 years’ of experience
in media and publishing business. Prior to that, she worked for
Hong Kong Commercial Broadcasting Company Limited as
Program Presenter and Producer as well as for Hong Kong Cable
Television Limited as Channel Manager of Entertainment Channel
and Controller for Program Development and Production for more
than 10 years.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ng Hoi Yue, aged 54, has been an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company since May 2002. He is also the Chairman
of the Remuneration Committee as well as a member of the Audit
Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Ng
is currently an executive director and the Deputy Chief Executive
Officer of Asian Citrus Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 73) and an
independent non-executive director of Ulferts International and
Imperial Pacific International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1076),
all are Hong Kong listed companies. He has been practising as
a Certified Public Accountant in Hong Kong since 1989. Mr. Ng
is a fellow member of The Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants in England.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

ESENREREEE2EBRE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(continued)

Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene, aged 55, has been an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since July 2014. Ms.
Chan is a member of the Audit Committee and the Corporate
Governance Committee of the Company. She is a retired solicitor
and with over 20 years’ of experience as independent non-
executive director of listed companies. Currently, she is also an
independent non-executive director of two Hong Kong listed
companies, Chinlink International Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
997) and Emperor W&J. Ms. Chan graduated from The University
of Hong Kong with Bachelor’'s Degree in Laws.

Mr. Ho Tat Kuen, aged 44, has been an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since November 2016. Mr. Ho
is the Chairman of the Audit Committee as well as a member of
the Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the
Company. He has been practising as a Certified Public Accountant
in Hong Kong since 2009. He has over 20 years of experience in
the accounting profession. Mr. Ho is a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and The Taxation Institute
of Hong Kong, and is a Certified Tax Adviser in Hong Kong.

Emperor Culture Group Limited
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board” or
“Directors”) hereby presents this annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group
principally engages in entertainment, media and cultural
development business, particularly in the Greater China, which
include (i) cinema development and operation; (i) investment
and production of films, TV programmes and other media related
projects; (iii) investment in a variety of cultural events including
music concerts, live shows and theatrical performances; and (iv)
investment in securities. Details of the principal activities and other
particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 43 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE

A fair review of the Group’s business, a discussion and analysis
of the Group’s performance during the Year and an analysis of the
likely future development of the Group'’s business are set out in the
Management Discussion and Analysis from pages 4 to 12 of this
annual report. Description of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group are set out in the Corporate Governance Report
from pages 30 to 51 of this annual report and notes 5(b) and 6 to
the consolidated financial statements respectively.

Save as disclosed in the Management Discussion and Analysis
and note 44 to the consolidated financial statements, there is no
important event affecting the Company that had occurred since the
end of the Year up to the date of this report.

In addition, discussion on the key relationships with the
Company’s key stakeholders, the Group’s environmental policy
and performance as well as compliance with relevant laws and
regulations which have significant impact on the Company are
set out in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
2017/2018 of the Company.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the Year by business
and geographical segments is set out in note 8 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on
page 59.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend for
the Year (2017: Nil).
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 152 of the annual
report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of changes in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the Year are set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the Year
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
pages 62 and 63.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVE OF THE COMPANY

As at 30 June 2018, the Company has no reserve available
for distribution to the shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) (2017: Nil).

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the share option scheme adopted by the Company
on 8 November 2011 (“Share Option Scheme”) as set out in
note 34 to the consolidated financial statements, no equity-linked
agreement was entered into by the Company during the Year or
subsisted at the end of the Year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the Year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-Laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares of the Company (“Shares”) on a
pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

Emperor Culture Group Limited

L FEMBEBRE

REEBEREFRFE 2 XE EENBERE
BN ARFRE1528 ©

M= MR RRE

AEEZME WREREZ BBFERNREY
BRI -

B

ARBZBARAEREAZ BB FBEHNEERH
TSR i34 ©

=i
A EE 2 RN R RN #
63E 2 ir A R EBK -

BN Ee2R

AR B AHEDIK 2w
M20185F6 A30H * AR B & A 7 Ik T AR A
BER (TR ) 2 frifes (20174F < ) ©

R R
B R £ BT R 2R B RESAPT BB 2 AN 12011
G118 E R 2 MBI ) ([ BARAERTB1)) 5
RAEE MR AR R AV RIS T ST R
315535 -

BE - HEIBEARQAF LHES

EXBEOARRFERLEHES-

BrABERE

ART 2 EIRMAR E AP BN AR
BRBA R IR 2 B E AR AFRY (TR
Bz ERBER R

A
EE (L EXERERAT ,171
ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018 \

\



Report of the Directors
EEERE

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, 81% of the Group’s purchases were attributable
to the Group’s five largest suppliers with the largest supplier
accounting for 43% of the Group’s purchases. On the other hand,
31% of the Group’s revenue was attributable to the Group’s five
largest customers with the largest customer accounting for 18% of
the Group's revenue.

As at 30 June 2018, to the knowledge of the Directors, none
of the Directors (other than Mr. Yeung Ching Loong, Alexander
who is one of the eligible beneficiaries under The Albert Yeung
Discretionary Trust (the “AY Trust”)), their close associates or any
Shareholders (other than Emperor Entertainment & Motion Picture
Holdings Limited and its holding company, Albert Yeung Holdings
Limited (“AY Holdings") as owned by the AY Trust) owning more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital had beneficial
interests in the share capital of any of the above major customers
or suppliers of the Group.

DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors

Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa (Chairperson)
Mr. Wong Chi Fai

Mr. Yeung Ching Loong, Alexander

Ms. Shirley Percy Hughes

Mr. Albert Lee (retired on 22 November 2017)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Ng Hoi Yue
Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene
Mr. Ho Tat Kuen

Biographical details of the current Directors and senior
management as at the date of this report are set out from pages
13 to 15 of this annual report. Details of the Directors’ remuneration
are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

In accordance with the Bye-law 87(1) and 87(2) of the Company’s
Bye-Laws, Mr. Ng Hoi Yue and Mr. Ho Tat Kuen shall retire by
rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting (“2018 AGM”).
Mr. Ho Tat Kuen, being eligible, offer himself for re-election thereat
whilst Mr. Ng Hoi Yue who served as independent non-executive
director of the Company (“INED") for over 16 years, being eligible
but does not offer himself for re-election thereat.
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY (continued)

None of the Directors offering themselves for re-election at the
2018 AGM has a service contract with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the Group’s business were entered into or existed during
the Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

During the Year and up to the date of this report, the Company has
in force the permitted indemnity provisions which are provided for
in the Company’s Bye-laws and in the directors and officers liability
insurance maintained for the Group in respect of potential liability
and costs associated with legal proceedings that may be brought
against the Directors and the directors of the Group respectively.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

At 30 June 2018, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company in the Shares, underlying
Shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFQ”)) as recorded in the register maintained
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) were as follows:

Long position interests in the ordinary Shares of HK$0.01
each in the Company

Capacity/ Nature of
interests

B0 HEHE

Name of Director

ESHS

Mr. Yeung Ching Loong,
Alexander
B EESE L

Eligible beneficiary of the
AY Trust
AY Trustz & BB X A

Note:

These Shares were held by Emperor Culture Group Holdings Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of AY Holdings. AY Holdings in turn is owned
by the AY Trust of which Mr. Yeung Ching Loong, Alexander is one of the
eligible beneficiaries.
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES (continued)

Long position interests in the ordinary Shares of HK$0.01
each in the Company (continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2018, none of the
Directors nor chief executive of the Company had any interests or
short positions in any Shares, underlying Shares and debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO).

SHARE OPTION

The Company has in place the Share Option Scheme under which
the Directors may, at their discretion, grant options to employees,
including any Director of the Company or its subsidiaries to
subscribe for Shares, subject to the terms and conditions
stipulated therein. Particulars of the Share Option Scheme are set
out in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements. No option
was granted under the Share Option Scheme since its adoption
and up to 30 June 2018.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Other than as stated above, at the end of the Year and at no time
during the Year was the Company, any of its holding companies,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
to enable Directors or chief executives of the Company or their
spouse or children under 18 years of age to acquire benefits by
means of acquisition of Shares in, or debentures of, the Company
or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at 30 June 2018, the interests of Directors or their respective
associates in the business which are considered to compete or are
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of
the Group (“Competing Business”) as required to be disclosed
pursuant to the Listing Rules were as follows:

Nature of Competing Business:

(1) Cinema operation
(2) Investment in films and TV programmes
(3) Investment in music events
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING EENBRIEB 2R (&)
BUSINESS (continued)
Interests in Competing Business: N A
Name of competing Nature of Competing
Name of Directors company Nature of interests Business
EEpA BMENRER EEMtE BEEBME
Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa  Certain subsidiaries Director 1), (2) & (3)
(“Ms. Vanessa Fan”) controlled/owned by o
BRI the AY Trust
(Bxz=xl) EAY TrustiZ il HH
ZETHBAF
Mr. Wong Chi Fai -ditto- Director 1), (2) & (3)
mEELYE -[A k- 5F
Mr. Yeung Ching Loong, -ditto- Director & an eligible (1), (2) & (3)
Alexander -[A E- beneficiary of the AY Trust
HIEELE EEZRAY Trustz G ERZ A
Ms. Shirley Percy Hughes -ditto- Director (2) & (3)
FHmET & £ -[A k- =

OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT HftATRAKRMDRAEBRAED Z2EZR
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING ERE
SHARES

So far as is known to any Director or chief executive of the FAMI({IEBHANFTEITHA B 720184
Company, as at 30 June 2018, the following persons or corporation 68308 ' LA N AL 80AE (BrEBSRA N A F BT
(other than a Director or chief executive of the Company) had, or  EA B4N) A% {5 s ARREMD B s A8 Aei s
were deemed or taken to have interests or short positions in the — {EHEA AR BIRIEEH K S (55 33615 BETF
Shares or underlying Shares as recorded in the register required &l ([EZERM]) itk BITHM2 A A A
to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO (‘DI  Z AR

Register’) or as otherwise notified to the Company were as

follows:

\
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Report of the Directors

EEEHRE

OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING

R A LHRORABIRG 2

E()

SHARES (continued)
Long position in the Shares RERGOZHER
Capacity/Nature of Number of Approximate %
Name interests Shares holding
=Yg T 5, ERME RO BE BOBRES L
AY Holdings Interest in a controlled 1,064,200,000 33.12%
155 X E TR corporation (Note 1)
N VNI - £ (MtEET)
STC International Limited Trustee of the AY Trust 1,064,200,000 33.12%
AY TrustZ ZFEA (Note 1)
(KyEED)
Dr. Yeung Sau Shing, Albert Founder of the AY Trust 1,064,200,000 33.12%
(‘Dr. Albert Yeung") AY TrustZ 832 A (Note 1)
BREEL ([HBEE]) (Ht&ET)
Interest in a controlled 97,000,000 3.02%
corporation
N VN - £
Ms. Luk Siu Man, Semon Interest of spouse 1,161,200,000 36.14%
(7 =-F e il B (Note 2)
(BffEE2)
Golden Skill Limited Benefioial owner 350,000,000 10.89%
ExnEBA
Mr. Tse Nicholas Interest in a controlled 350,000,000 10.89%
HERLE Corporation (Note 3)
NS VNS P X (Fft5E3)
Notes: B 5

1. These Shares were the same shares of which Mr. Yeung Ching 1. ZERMDDHEX[EEREBITHRASRKMD HE
Loong, Alexander had deemed interest as set out under the section B R EEEESNRE] —HEGRELE
of “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short Positions in WR AR RS2 R) 2 HRRG
Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures” above.

2. By virtue of being the spouse of Dr. Albert Yeung, Ms. Luk Siu Man, 2. ZERE/N24t+ABELIEE AN ITEEAHE
Semon also had deemed interests in the Shares held by Dr. Albert BERELTEEIRD 2 EE -

Yeung.

3. These Shares were the same shares held by Golden Skill Limited. 3. Z W) B2 Golden Skill Limited it B 2 B (2 48]

All interests stated above represent long positions. As at 30 June  FTA _Eili#ERS AT A - 20186 A30H @ i &

2018, no short positions were recorded in the DI Register. A AR B C 8k

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2018, the Directors or R EXFTEFEESN  722018F6 A30H * EH kAN
chief executives of the Company were not aware of any person  &EBITHA 8 WA HZFER AT SEE (I IEE
or corporation (not being a Director and chief executive of the  FARAIEZITHA 8 ) PME(AIA% 15 sk A8 FE BD
Company) who had, or were deemed or taken to have, any BB HWR A EEREEFS LMoL
interests or short positions in any Shares or underlying Shares as ~ R{TAIE AR & ZEfAHEZESAE o
recorded in DI Register or otherwise notified to the Company.
P\
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

OF SIGNIFICANCE AND CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, the Group had the following transactions with

connected persons (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the
Company:

(A) Renting of properties
(i) Definitive Leasing Agreements

Date of

agreement
Name of (D/M/Y)
counterparty HE A Leased premises
L3P Y (R/R/%) WHERWE

Emperor (Beijing) Real  05/05/2017  Partial floor of each of

Estate Development B1, B2M, B2,

Co. Limited* Emperor Group Centre,
(B2 (JLR) FHERE D12 Jianwai Dajie,

BRAR) Chaoyang District,
(“Emperor (Beijing) Real Beijing, The People’s

Estate”) Republic of China
([HE(R)EE]) (the “PRC") together

with the usage of

one outdoor LED
advertising space and
one outdoor space
I AR AFE ([HE))
It RFAGRE
IR T 1258
REEEPLEBT
BoM BB HHEE
&R —{EFSNLEDFF &
BEL R —EFINE
RESM

RAFE AEERANRBFEEAL
A EIT IR S

(A) MEHRE

() EXHEHZ

EENEARS RGN 2ER
RBERXRS

(EER L™

Amount of
rental paid
Major terms during the Year
EERM rEEZENHES
Term: RMB3,903,000
05/05/2017 — 04/05/2027 with an  (equivalent to
option to renew for 5 more years  HK$4,619,000)
T AR
201795 A5H 220274548 ¢ 3,903,0007T
AERERSEF (BER
4,619,000/ 1)

Rentals:

(1) Monthly base rent (i.e.
effective rental: RMB331,419 per
month) or turnover rent (i.e. 7.5%
to 18% of the cinema box-office
sales excluding turnover taxation
and levies), whichever is higher;
and

(2) Concession stall rental: 7.5%
of the sales of concession stall
excluding turnover taxation
Me:

(N BAEFRHEE (BERHES:
BA /\Eﬁ%331 A197T ) SRR
 (AEREEWA (TERER
&1;51;%? JZT5%E18%) B =
ERE R
QyhEHRARKRES NEE
LEB(TEREN) Z275%

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEEX{LEXEEERAF
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS INTRANSACTIONS, EEREARS  LTHREHN2ER
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS FBERS (&)

OF SIGNIFICANCE AND CONNECTED

TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(A) Renting of properties (continued) (A) MEHEE (&)
(i) Definitive Leasing Agreements (continued) () EXHEEGZE(Z)
Date of

agreement Amount of
Name of (D/M/Y) rental paid
counterparty % A H Leased premises Major terms during the Year
HHE% (B/B/%) HEM=E FTERR FEEZEMAESE
Emperor (Beijing) Real 31/10/2017 Unit 03, 27th Floor, Term: RMB316,000
Estate* Emperor Group Centre, 01/11/2017-31/10/2022 (equivalent to
HEHLR) BHE® D12 Jianwai Dajie, LR HK$374,000)
Chaoyang District, 201711 A1B £2022F10 A31H ARE
Beijing, the PRC 316,0007T
FEL REAfG & Effective rental: QEEFA
BINKE T 125% RMB39,466 per month 374,000 7C)

RESEHL271E03E BERES:

5 A AR39,4667C

Emperor (Beijing) Real ~ 28/02/2018 Unit 08, 27th Floor, Term: RMB130,000
Estate* Emperor Group Centre, 01/03/2018-28/02/2021 (equivalent to
HEHLR) B E® D12 Jianwai Dajie, AR HK$154,000)
Chaoyang District, 201843 A 1H £20214F2 5 28H AR
Beijing, the PRC 130,0007T
FEL REAfG & Effective rental: QEEFA
BONKH T 1255 RMB32,487 per month 154,000/ 7T)

RESEHL27IE08E ERES:

FAARM32,487C
-\
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS INTRANSACTIONS, EZERNEAXRS R¥REHN 2R
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS FBEEXS (&)
OF SIGNIFICANCE AND CONNECTED

TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(A) Renting of properties (continued)

(A) MEHEE (&)

(i) Definitive Leasing Agreements (continued) () ExXHEHZE (&)

Date of

agreement Amount of

Name of (D/W/Y) rental paid

counterparty EA=E:: Leased premises Major terms during the Year

HEE8 (R/B/F) HENXR TEHRR FEEZENESE

Thyme Company 24/08/2017  Shop Nos. 301 & 302  Term: HK$5,500,000

Limited* (known as The Cinema  01/09/2017- 31/08/2023 with an 5,500,000/ 7T

FEARAR"

*

Space) and Shop Nos.  option to renew for a further term
305B & 305C, Second  of 6 years

Floor (Level 3) of New  FHH:

Town Mansion, No. 2~ 201749 1HE2023F8H31H -
Tuen Lee Street, Tuen — A[EIZEHIZ65

Mun, New Territories,

Hong Kong

BB R Rental:

HA R AR Monthly base rent (i.e. effective
212 (£3/E)301% rental: HK$550,000 per month)

3025748 (TR BLlRI)  or turnover rent (i.e. 20% of
13058 &2 305C 5 & the gross box-office sales),
whichever is higher
e :
BAEATHS (MEKHES A
550,000/ 7T ) s fepk i & (BI%
FRERFERAZ20%)  AREE
RE

These companies are indirectly wholly-owned * ZERARAREEBZHEEEZENBRA -

subsidiaries of Emperor International.

N,
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, EZEREAXR S  REHEHN 2R
7

ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS KEEXR

OF SIGNIFICANCE AND CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(%)

(A) Renting of properties (continued) (A) M¥HEE (&)
(i) Master Leasing Agreement (i) BHEEHE

On 24 May 2018, the Company and Emperor
International entered into the Master Leasing Agreement
which sets out a framework of the terms governing
all existing and future tenancy/licence transaction(s)
between members of the Group as tenants and relevant
members of Emperor International as landlords regarding
the leasing of properties. The Master Leasing Agreement
shall commence on 24 May 2018 and expire on 31
March 2021 subject to the approvals of the respective
independent shareholders of Emperor International and
the Company which were obtained in August 2018.

(B) Purchasing furniture and obtaining furniture (B)
procurement consultancy services

On 15 January 2018, AY Holdings entered into an agreement
(“Master Furniture Agreement’) with Ulferts International.
Pursuant to the Master Furniture Agreement, Ulferts
International and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
“Ulferts Group”) shall (i) sell products and provide furniture
procurement consultancy services to members of Emperor
Group (including the Group) in relation to their projects and
investments, or for their own consumption; (ii) sell furniture
coupons to members of Emperor Group for their own
consumption and for the consumption of their clients as a
marketing strategy of their projects and (iii) provide such other
types of ancillary services and any transaction of revenue
nature in the ordinary course of business of Ulferts Group,
commencing from 29 January 2018 and up to 31 March 2020.
The services provided or to be provided by Ulferts Group to
the Group are governed by the Master Furniture Agreement.
During the Year, HK$899,000 and HK$2,076,000 were paid
for the purchase of furniture and the obtaining of furniture
procurement consultancy services respectively.

R2018F5 H248 - AR A B2 2 FRRET
VREERZ  ETRHIRERNEE 2K
e (1EAMP) A S FE 2 K
BRal(fEAXX) 2BEEYMEREN
FIBIRAERAKMAE, AR HHER
&R - R E A R2018F5 4248 4
A R2021FE3 A3 E faim B HER
BRANBSEILIRE ZIEHEEE
(B P2018F8 A ) »

BEEARIESEMREBARE

72018F1 A158 » 15 3 Ak B ¥ 15 IR BB b B
BRETY —ftris ([BERBBER]) - BEAK
ek - B20189F1 298 #£E 202093 831H
b BYEER R EH B AR (5B A [B{LE
E#H)MEEEEZKE QR (BEAE
B)HEERRIEHEBEEE MEERFEE
B 5B NR AR - (i)AR 2L EEERM
B HEgFERARERFEE (FAEEE
& S SR BE M (i B L R B — R E TS BTEF
R ZEEMIERRERS METTZBURA
MEHEARS Bt EE R AEEEREK
R REZ B EMPRRE -RAFE

B R KBS EAREZARSE DR
B % 14899,0007% 7t }22,076,000/8 7T °

Note: BfEE

As the Company, Emperor International and Ulferts International (as the HRAAR - HERK KEEEE (R1E 50 E ) HAY
case may be) are indirectly controlled by the AY Trust, both Emperor  Trustf#E 24| BURE LR BIE14AE - K 2 B L E
International and Ulferts International (as the case may be) are the (LEE (RIERME) BARAFZEEAL - FHitk - giatE
connected persons of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. R E W # « @RS HH LA KM B HEOBRART 28
Accordingly, the aforesaid definitive leasing agreements, the Master Leasing — #ERIER 5 - I5HELE (EAEE) BAY Trustz & & 1§
Agreement and the Master Furniture Agreement constitute continuing @A Z— HMEWEBRZ G EE#EZR-

connected transactions for the Company. Mr. Yeung Ching Loong,
Alexander, a Director, has deemed interest in the transactions by virtue of
being one of the eligible beneficiaries of the AY Trust.

P\
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

OF SIGNIFICANCE AND CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Compliance with disclosure requirements

Save as the “Rental expenses to related companies” in the
amount of HK$10,647,000, the “Purchase of furniture from a
related company” and the “Consultancy service fee to a related
company” for the Year as shown in note 41 — “Material Related
Party Transactions” to the consolidated financial statements
which constituted connected transactions of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, all other transactions as shown
in the note thereon are connected transactions exempted from
announcement, reporting, annual review and shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
The Company has complied with the disclosure requirement in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of the
above continuing connected transactions.

Auditor’s Letter on disclosed continuing connected
transactions

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” (the “Auditor’s Letter”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing its
findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Group (“Disclosed CCTs”) as set
out from pages 23 to 26 of this annual report in accordance with
Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the Auditor’s Letter has
been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

Confirmation of Independent Non-executive Directors

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the INEDs have
reviewed the Disclosed CCTs and the Auditor's Letter and have
confirmed that these transactions have been entered into by the
Group:

(1) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(2) on normal commercial terms or better (as the case may be);
and

(3) according to the agreements governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.

Emperor Culture Group Limited

EENEARS RPHEN 2 ER
FEAEXRS (&)

BFHERTE

BARAMIEREM T4 — [EABEALR S AT
TAFE [REEARSZNHESER] 210,647,000
B [MREARBEERM] & [MEEQR SN
FBARKE] BIBRE ETRBEYAZTBEXNRLQF]
SERIEZ ZIN WS 2 T E R B TR
FTRAIB AT ERRETAE B FEEH
KRR EREZBER S - ARFIEH L E
ERXSET EMRAFEMAZEZWERTE -

FHCHERERER S 2 R B R

ARRZHBE D EREREBER LS ASRMZ
BB ERE F BRI SE30005% (LEFE)R T2 (3F
EZXEHBEIMBEENEZTTIE) R2REKH
BIEE7405% (BN EE LR RIS ERER S
HIZBREN ) ([RRBEmER A |) - BLANSRIE 2 3548
FER HIEHER-

ZHENDIRR EMARAE14AS6IGE HERERER
i EREE TR A FREBE26H GRAAEE
ERBEFERERS (CRESERERS])
Z BRI N AR o AZ BN R 2 BIAAE AR
R TR AT

BIAFHTES 2R

RIE ETAR RIS 14A 5515 B T2 B E =M
BRERFERER S MZEET R WHERZER
STImALER:

MRAEEBEEBFRIL:

Fr— R R R (GBI R ) 3T
NN
TIRIBZEFER ZEV AN ETETT TR H
BB AT AL A R R 2 BHFI -
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

OF SIGNIFICANCE AND CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Confirmation of Independent Non-executive Directors
(continued)

Save as disclosed above, there was no other transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance which was significant in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company or any of its
holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party
and in which a Director or his/her connected entity had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at any time during
the Year.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the INEDs an annual
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company considers all of the INEDs are independent.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the Board as
recommended by the Remuneration Committee having regard to a
written remuneration policy (which ensures a clear link to business
strategy and a close alignment with the Shareholders’ interest and
current best practice). Remuneration should be paid with reference
to the Board's corporate goals and objectives, the salaries paid
by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities
of the Executive and Non-executive Directors, internal equity of
employment conditions across the Group and applicability of
performance-based remuneration. The Directors’ fees are paid in
line with market practice. No individual should determine his or her
own remuneration.

Employees’ remuneration was determined in accordance with
individual's responsibility, competence and skills, experience
and performance as well as market pay level. Remuneration
package includes, as the case may be, basic salaries, Directors’
fees, contribution to pension schemes, discretionary bonus
relating to the financial performance of the Group and individual
performance, and other competitive fringe benefits such as
medical and life insurances. Details of the emoluments of the
Directors and the five highest paid individuals of the Group are set
out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

To provide incentive to the eligible participants (including Directors
and employees), the remuneration package has been extended to
include share options granted under the Share Option Scheme.

Emperor Culture Group Limited
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report from
pages 30 to 51.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the latest practicable
date prior to the issue of the annual report, there was sufficient
public float of at least 25% of the Company issued Shares as
required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the 2018 AGM to re-appoint of
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Fan Man Seung, Vanessa
Chairperson

Hong Kong, 20 September 2018

Emperor Culture Group Limited
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Corporate Governance Report
CEEARE

The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance for the Company so as to ensure
“Accountability, Responsibility and Transparency” towards
Shareholders, stakeholders, investors as well as employees of the
Company.

The Directors have adopted various policies to ensure compliance
with the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code
(“CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. The
Company has fully complied with all the code provisions of the CG
Code throughout the Year.

THE BOARD
Board Composition

As at 30 June 2018, the Board comprised seven Directors, with
four Executive Directors (including the Chairperson) and three
INEDs. The composition of the Board represents a diversified
mixture of age, gender, educational and cultural background,
skills, knowledge, length of service and professional expertise
in management, legal, accounts and finance and corporate
development which is beneficial to the business development
of the Company. The profile of the Directors are set out from
pages 13 to 15 of this annual report under the “Biographies of the
Directors and Senior Management” section.

Chairperson and Chief Executive Officer

Ms. Vanessa Fan is the Chairperson of the Board who is
responsible for providing leadership and management of the
Board. The Executive Directors are responsible for the day-to-day
management of the Group’s businesses. The Board considers that
such segregation of duties functions effectively.

With the support of the company secretary of the Company
(“Company Secretary”), Ms. Vanessa Fan, as the Chairperson of
the Board, ensures that all Directors receive, in a timely manner,
adequate information and are properly briefed on issues arising
at the board meeting. She is responsible for ensuring that the
Board works effectively and performs its responsibilities. She holds
meeting with the INEDs without the executive Directors present at
least once a year.

P\
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERBE

THE BOARD (continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors

The INEDs are all professionals with valuable experience and
expertise in legal, accounting or auditing who contribute impartial
view and make independent judgment on issues to be discussed
at Board meetings. They are appointed for an initial term of
three years and is renewed automatically for successive terms
of one year subject to early termination with written notice being
served by either party. The terms of the INEDs are also subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election provisions under the Bye-
laws of the Company.

The Company had received confirmation of independence from
each of the INEDs. The Board considered each of them to be
independent by reference to the factors as set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. The INEDs had been expressly identified as such
in all corporate communications of the Company that disclose the
names of Directors.

Roles and Responsibilities of the Board

The Company is headed by the Board which is responsible for the
leadership, control and promotion of the success of the Group in
the interests of the Shareholders by directing and supervising its
affairs and by formulating strategic directions and monitoring the
financial and management performance of the Group.

Relationship between the Board Members

None of the members of the Board has any relationship (including
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relations)
among each other.

Directors’ Insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of legal action against the Directors.

Emperor Culture Group Limited
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Corporate Governance Report
CEEARE

THE BOARD (continued)
Delegation to the Management

The management is led by the Executive Committee of the
Company (which comprises all the Executive Directors of the
Board) and has delegated powers and authorities to carry out the
day-to-day management and operation of the Group, formulate
business policies and make decision on key business issues. The
Executive Committee shall have all power and authorities of the
Board except the following matters as set out in a formal schedule
of matters specifically reserved by the Board:

Publication of final and interim results of the Company
Dividend distribution or other distributions

Major issues of treasury policy, accounting policy and
remuneration policy

Major changes to major group corporate structure or Board
composition requiring notification by announcements

Publication of the announcements for notifiable transactions
and non-exempted connected transactions/ continuing

connected transactions

Non-exempted connected transactions/continuing connected
transactions

Notifiable transactions requiring Shareholders’ approval

Capital re-structuring and issue of new securities of the
Company

Financial assistance to Directors
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERBE

THE BOARD (continued)

Induction, Support and Professional Development of
Directors

All Directors have been given relevant guideline materials
regarding the duties and responsibilities of being a Director, the
relevant laws and regulations applicable to the Directors, duty
of disclosure of equity/ business interest of the Group and such
induction materials will also be provided to newly appointed
Directors shortly upon their appointment as Directors. All Directors
have been updated on the latest developments regarding
the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirement
to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of good
corporate governance practices. There is a procedure agreed by
the Board to ensure Directors, upon reasonable request, to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at
the Company’s expenses in order to assist them to perform their
duties to the Company.

The Directors confirmed that they have complied with the Code
Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code on Directors’ training. During the
Year, each Director had participated in continuous professional
development by attending seminars/workshop/reading materials
on the following topics to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills and provided a record of training to the Company:

Name of Directors EEnE

Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa SBEEL T
Mr. Wong Chi Fai \mEEBELE
Mr. Yeung Ching Loong, Alexander BB LE
Ms. Shirley Percy Hughes ST 20 4
Mr. Ng Hoi Yue mEFEE
Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene PeR B8 32 20 &
Mr. Ho Tat Kuen fAERE LA
Mr. Albert Lee MHEE T E

(retired on 22 November 2017)

Notes Fff#:

(a) Corporate Governance 1t %%&4
(b) Regulatory E5&

(c) Finance 87

(d) Industry specific 17 #1273
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SRERRE

THE BOARD (continued)

Directors’ Attendance and Time Commitment
The attendance of the Directors at the meetings during the Year is

set out below:

EExg (&)

No. of meetings attended/held

EEZHERARBERA
RAFEERHFEERZBERNAT

HEes/ BIRERR
Corporate

Audit Remuneration Nomination  Governance  Executive General
Name of Directors Board Committee ~ Committee  Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee Meeting
E=pg EZg BNZEE HMEEE RAZEE QMEERZEE UZEE  RRAEg
Executive Directors
HIES
Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa (Note 1) m NATRER  NATER 11 N 44 11
BEELL (M)
Mr. Wong Chi Fai M NIA P ER 1 NADEE  NATER 44 111
"ETELLE
Mr. Yeung Ching Loong, Alexander m NATEE  NATER NAMER  NATNER 44 01
BHELE
Ms. Shirley Percy Hughes m NAMER NATER NATER  NATER 44 1
HETE .
Mr. Albert Lee (Note 2) 112 NADER  NATEE  NATEER  NATMER 11 11
MIEE LA (F2)
Independent Non-executive Directors
BUkHTES
Mr. Ng Hoi Yue (Note 3) M 212 11 11 NAPEE  NATER 11
g F %4 (MH3E3)
Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene i 212 AN iER AN iER 17 NA R 17
RERIL
Mr. Ho Tat Kuen (Note 4) M 22 1 111 NARER  NATER 111
g L (M3E4)
Total number of meetings held £T &€& 2 A% 7 2 1 1 1 4 1

Notes: B

1. Chairperson of the Board, Executive Committee, Nomination 1.

B8 WTZE® 1A

ZEEMDMEERZES

Committee and Corporate Governance Committee

2. Mr. Albert Lee retired as director in the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 22 November 2017 (“2017 AGM”)

3. Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

4. Chairman of the Audit Committee

Upon reviewing (a) the annual confirmation on time commitment
given by each Director; (b) the directorships and major
commitments of each Director; and (c) the attendance rate of each
Director on full Board and his/her respective Board committee
meetings as well as general meetings, the Board is satisfied
that all Directors had spent sufficient time in performing their
responsibilities during the Year.
-\
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Corporate Governance Report
CEEARE

THE BOARD (continued)
Board Meetings and Proceedings

Regular Board meetings were held at approximately quarterly
interval. The Directors have access to the advice and services
of the Company Secretary and key officers of the company
secretarial team for ensuring that the Board procedures, all
applicable rules and regulations are followed.

With the assistance of the Company Secretary, the meeting
agenda is set by the Chairperson of the Board in consultation
with other Board members. Board meeting notice was sent to the
Directors at least 14 days prior to each regular Board meeting.
For all other Board meetings, reasonable notice was given. Board
papers and related materials which provide appropriate, accurate,
clear, complete and reliable information are generally sent to all
Directors at least 3 days before each Board meeting and Board
Committee meeting to enable the Directors to make informed
decisions.

Minutes of Board meetings and Board committee meetings are
drafted by the secretary of the meetings and recorded in sufficient
details the matters considered and decisions reached, with
draft and final versions being circulated to the Directors for their
comment and records respectively, within a reasonable time after
the meetings are held. Originals of such minutes, being kept by
the Company Secretary, are open for inspection at any reasonable
time on reasonable notice by any Director.

If a Director has conflict of interest in a matter to be considered
by the Board which the Board has determined to be material,
the matter will be dealt with by a physical Board meeting rather
than a written resolution. That Director will abstain from voting
on the relevant Board resolution in which he/she or any of his/
her associates has a material interest and he/she shall not be
counted in the quorum present at the Board meeting. INEDs
who, and whose close associates, have no material interest in the
transaction are present at that Board meeting.

Board Committees

To assist the Board in execution of its duties and facilitate effective
management, certain functions of the Board have been delegated
by the Board to the Executive Committee, Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and Corporate
Governance Committee.

The majority of the members of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee are INEDs.
Clear written terms of reference of all the Board Committees are
given to the respective members of these Committees. Details of
the Board Committees are set out below:
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Corporate Governance Report
CEEARE

THE BOARD (continued)

Board Committees (continued)

1.

Executive Committee (set up on 28 January 2015)

The Executive Committee consists of four Executive Directors,
namely Ms. Vanessa Fan (Chairperson of the Committee), Mr.
Wong Chi Fai, Mr. Yeung Ching Loong, Alexander and Ms.
Shirley Percy Hughes. The primary duties of the Executive
Committee are (a) formulating business polices and strategy
and making decision on matters relating to the investment,
management and operations of the Group; (b) reviewing the
policy for prevention of bribery and considering, approving
and dealing with any matters relating thereto; and (c) having
all powers and authorities of the Board except those matters
specifically reserved for the full Board as set out in the
“Formal Schedule on matters reserved for and delegated by
the Board” adopted by the Board from time to time.

Audit Committee (set up on 4 December 1998)

The Audit Committee consists of three INEDs, namely Mr. Ho
Tat Kuen (Chairman of the Committee), Mr. Ng Hoi Yue and
Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene.

The specific written terms of reference of the Audit Committee
is available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company. The Audit Committee is primarily responsible for (a)
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of the external auditors; (b)
reviewing and monitoring the external auditors’ independence
and objectivity and effectiveness of the audit process; (c)
approving the remuneration and terms of engagement of
external auditors; and (d) reviewing financial information and
overseeing the financial reporting system, risk management
and internal control systems. The Audit Committee held two
meetings during the Year.

A summary of the work performed by the Audit Committee
during the Year is set out below:

i. reviewed with the finance personnel and/or the external
auditors the effectiveness of audit process and the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group, and the accuracy and fairness of the annual
consolidated financial statements for the financial year
ended 30 June 2017 (“Previous Year”) and the interim
consolidated financial statements for the six months
ended 31 December 2017;

i. reviewed with the finance personnel the effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group during the Previous Year,;
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERBE

THE BOARD (continued)

Board Committees (continued)
2. Audit Committee (set up on 4 December 1998) (continued)

BEEg(EF)
BEEZEE (&
2 ERZEEE (R1998F12/48/% ) (&)

ii. annual review of the non-exempt continuing connected
transactions of the Group for the Year; and

iv. recommended the Board on the re-appointment of
external auditors at the 2017 AGM.

Remuneration Committee (set up on 26 October 2005)

The Remuneration Committee consists of three members,
namely Mr. Ng Hoi Yue (Chairman of the Committee) and Mr.
Ho Tat Kuen, both being INEDs, and Mr. Wong Chi Fai, being
the Executive Director.

The specific written terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee is available on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company. The Remuneration Committee is primarily
responsible for making recommendation to the Board on (a)
the Company’s policies and structure for all remuneration
of Directors and senior management; (b) the remuneration
of INEDs; and (c) the specific remuneration packages for
individual Executive Directors and senior management.
Details of the remuneration of each of the Directors for the
Year are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements. The Remuneration Committee held one meeting
during the Year.

A summary of the work performed by the Remuneration
Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

i. reviewed the Directors’ fee and made recommendation to
the Board;

i. reviewed the current remuneration structure/package
of the Executive Directors and senior management and
recommended to the Board on their specific packages;
and

iii. reviewed the Terms of Reference of the Remuneration
Committee and made recommendation to the Board.
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CEEARE

THE BOARD (continued)

Board Committees (continued)

4.

Nomination Committee (set up on 23 March 2012)

The Nomination Committee consists of three members,
namely Ms. Vanessa Fan (Chairperson of the Committee),
being the Chairperson of the Board, Mr. Ng Hoi Yue and Mr.
Ho Tat Kuen, both being INEDs.

The specific written terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee is available on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company. The primary duties of the Nomination
Committee are (a) reviewing the structure, size and diversity
of the Board; (b) reviewing the Board Diversity Policy; (c)
determining the policy for the nomination of Directors and
identifying suitable candidates for directorship; (d) making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment, re-election or re-designation of Directors
and succession planning for Directors; (e) assessing
the independence of INEDs; and (f) reviewing the time
commitment of each Director. The Nomination Committee held
one meeting during the Year.

A summary of the work performed by the Nomination
Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

i.  reviewed the structure, size and diversity of the Board;
i. reviewed the independence of INEDs;

ii. reviewed the confirmation from Directors on time
commitment in performing their duties as Directors; and

iv. recommended the Board on the re-election of Directors
at the 2017 AGM.

As adopted by the Board, the Board Diversity Policy aims
to achieve diversity on the Board in the broadest sense in
order to have a balance of skills, experience and diversity
of perspectives to the business nature of the Company.
Selection of candidates on the Board is based on a range
of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The
Nomination Committee will also assess the merits and
contribution that any Director proposed for re-election or any
candidate nominated to be appointed as Director and against
the objective criteria, with due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board that would complement the Company’s
corporate strategy.
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TEERBE

THE BOARD (continued)

Board Committees (continued)

5.

Corporate Governance Committee (set up on 14 August
2015)

The Corporate Governance Committee consists of four
members, namely Ms. Vanessa Fan (Chairperson of the
Committee), being the Chairperson of the Board, Ms. Chan
Sim Ling, Irene, being an INED, a representative of company
secretarial function and a representative of finance and
accounts function. The specific written terms of reference
of the Corporate Governance Committee is available on the
Company's website. The primary duties of the Corporate
Governance Committee are (a) reviewing the policies and
practices on corporate governance of the Company and
making recommendations to the Board; (b) reviewing and
monitoring the policies and practices of the Company on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; (c)
developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct
applicable to Directors and relevant employees of the Group
on dealings with the Company’s securities; (d) reviewing
and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management; and (e)
reviewing the Company’'s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in this report. The Corporate Governance
Committee held one meeting during the Year.

A summary of the work performed by the Corporate
Governance Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

i. reviewed the Corporate Governance Policy and made
recommendation to the Board;

ii. reviewed the policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements;

ii. reviewed the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

iv. reviewed the code of conduct applicable to Directors
and relevant employees of the Group; and

v. reviewed on Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in this report.
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EERRE

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS OF DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct
regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Having made specific
enquiry to all Directors, all of them confirmed that they have
complied with the required standard of dealings as set out in the
Model Code throughout the Year.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledged their responsibilities to prepare
annual consolidated financial statements of the Group and
other financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules. The
management has provided all members of the Board with monthly
updates on internal consolidated financial statements which
give a balanced and understandable assessment of the Group’s
performance, position and prospects at the reporting date.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements for the Year, the
Board adopted appropriate accounting policies and applied them
consistently and made judgment and estimates that were prudent
and reasonable and ensured the consolidated financial statements
were prepared on a “going concern” basis (with supporting
assumptions or qualifications as necessary) and showed a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group for the Year. The
management had provided sufficient explanation and information
to the Board on the consolidated financial statements to enable
it to make an informed assessment of the financial and other
information put before it for approval. The auditors of the Company
had made a statement about their reporting responsibilities in the
Independent Auditors’ Report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

Internal control is fundamental to the successful operation and
day-to-day running of a business and it assists a company in
achieving its business objectives. Internal control policies and
procedures within the Group are with the primary objective of
providing general guidance and recommendations on a basic
framework of risk management and internal control systems.

A review has been conducted on (i) the internal control measures
and procedures covering all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls; and (ii) risk management
functions of the Group for the Year as follows:
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TEERBE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(continued)

A.

Goals and Objectives

The Board acknowledges that it is its responsibility to ensure
that the Company establishes and maintains appropriate
and effective risk management and internal control systems
(“Systems”). The Systems are designed to manage rather
than eliminate risks of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can only provide reasonable but not absolute, assurance
against misstatement or losses.

The key objectives of the Systems include:
— safeguarding assets

— ensuring completeness, accuracy and validity of financial
records and reports

—  promoting adherence to policies, procedures, regulations
and laws

—  promoting effectiveness and efficiency of operations

Governance Control
The control structure of the Systems is set out as follows:

The Board
e responsible for the Systems and reviewing their
effectiveness;

e oversee the Systems on an ongoing basis with the
assistance of Audit Committee;

e ensure the maintenance of appropriate and effective
Systems;

e define management structure with clear lines of
responsibility and limit of authority; and

e determine the nature and extent of significant risk that
the Company is willing to take in achieving the strategic
objectives and formulate the Group’s risk management
strategies.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(continued)
B. Governance Control (continued)

Audit Committee

review and discuss the Systems with the management
annually to ensure that the management has performed
its duty to have effective Systems. This discussion
includes the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting functions;

review the nature and extent of significant risks, and the
Company’s ability to respond to changes in its business
and the external environment (as detailed below);

review and discuss annually the significant control
failings or weaknesses that are identified and raised by
the auditors; and

consider major findings on internal control matters
raised by internal or external auditors and make
recommendations to the Board.

The management (including heads of business units,
departments and divisions)

design, implement and monitor the Systems properly and
ensure the Systems are executed effectively;

monitor risks and take measures to mitigate risks in day-
to-day operations;

give prompt responses to, and following up the findings
on internal control matters raised by internal or external
auditors; and

provide confirmation to the Board on the effectiveness of
the Systems.

Internal Audit Department

o

carry out the analysis and independent appraisal of
adequacy and effectiveness of the Systems in respect of
all material controls, including financial, operational and
compliance aspects; and

alert the management on the audit review findings
or irregularities, if any, and advise them on the
implementation of necessary steps and actions to
enhance the internal controls of the Group. The result
of internal audit reviews and agreed action plans are
reported to the Audit Committee and the Board.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERBE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL [EMEIE R AIPELE (42)

(continued)
C. Risk Management C. RAER
(1) Risk Management Process (1) EfREEZBFRE

The risk management process includes (i) risk
identification; (ii) risk evaluation; (iii) risk management
measures; and (iv) risk control and review.

The management is entrusted with duties to identify,
analyse, evaluate, respond, monitor and communicate
risks associated with any activity, function or process
within its scope of responsibility and authority. Risks are
evaluated by the Board and the management based on
(i) the severity of the impact of the risks on the Group’s
financial results; (ii) the probability that the risks will
occur; and (iii) the velocity or speed at which risks could
occur.

Based on the risk evaluation, the Company will manage
the risk as follows:

e Risk elimination - The management may identify
and implement certain changes or controls that in
effect eliminate the risk entirely.

* Risk mitigation - The management may implement
risk mitigation plan designed to reduce the
likelihood, velocity or severity of the risk to an
acceptable level or contingency plan for possible
loss scenarios.

¢ Risk control and monitoring - It involves making
decisions regarding which risks are acceptable and
how to address those that are not. Accidents and
other situations involving loss or near-loss will be
investigated and properly documented as part of the
effort to manage risks.

* Risk retention - The management may decide
that the risk rating is low enough that the risk is
acceptable level and no action is required. The
risk will continue to be monitored as part of the risk
management program to ensure the level of risk
does not increase to an unacceptable level.
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Corporate Governance Report
SEERRE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(continued)
C. Risk Management (continued)

(2) Significant risks and strategies

Certain significant risks have been identified through
the process of risk identification and assessments. Such
significant risks of the Group and their respective key
strategies/control measures are set out below:

(a) Inherent risk - Entertainment business

Entertainment business including investment in film
and TV industry and cinema operation is inherently
risky. There is no assurance of the economic
success of any motion picture or TV programme
since the revenues generated depend primarily on
public acceptance and popularity of the fiims and
TV programmes, which cannot be predicted with
certainty.

e Stay alert to the changes in market trend,
audience’s needs and preferences;

e Keep cautious in selection of stories and
scripts; and

e Co-produce, co-invest or co-partner with
business associates to diversify the risk.

(b) Inherent risk - Securities investment

There is no assurance of economic success of
any investment in securities since the fluctuation
of share price of an investee company can be
influenced by various internal (e.g. its own financial
and operational failure and litigation) and external
factors (e.g. global economic downturn and political
instability) which are out of the Group's control.

e Already set up an investment policy and
delegated authority to the Executive Committee
to implement and execute the securities
investment in accordance with the policy;

e Stay alert to market situation and any news
and information of the investee company; take
immediate and appropriate action in response
to any adverse change; and

e Maintain good communication with investment
advisers.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERBE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

(continued)

C. Risk Management (continued)
(2) Significant risks and strategies (continued)
(c) Strategic risk - Competition

(i)

(ii)

Entertainment business is highly competitive,
not only in the film industry itself (between
Chinese and Western shooting films), but
also subject to availability and popularity of
alternative form of entertainment. There is
no assurance that the Group can sustain its
competitiveness successfully in this business.

e Regularly review and adjust the
business strategic plans to cope with the
competition in the film industry;

e Diversify the Group's entertainment
business such as expansion to cinema
operation and animation business to bring
in new income stream and provide other
synergy effects to the Group; and

e Look for any other potential entertainment
related investment activities which can
provide stable contribution to the Group.

There is also intense competition in China
theatrical market due to continuous opening of
movie theatres in mainland China. There is no
assurance that demand in the film screening
will increase in line with or outpace the supply
of new cinemas which can adversely affect the
Group’s cinema operation.

e Dedicate to provide a premium 6-star
theatrical entertainment service and
environment for the audiences by
equipping the Group’'s cinema with
the most advanced visual and audio
technology to sustain its competitiveness;

e |mprove marketing strategy and enhance
promotions and publicities in different
social media platforms from time to time in
order to attract more audiences; and

e Provide different sources of on-line or off-
line ticketing services.
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Corporate Governance Report
SEERRE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL R EER ASREE (£Z)

(continued)

C. Risk Management (continued) C. RkERE (&)

(2) Significant risks and strategies (continued)

The Company has used its best endeavours to manage
the above risks and continue to keep the focus on any
new emerging risks that are likely to exist in the days to
come.

D. Internal Controls D.

The Board acknowledged that the management had
progressively implementing an adequate internal control
system to ensure the effective functioning of the Group's
operational, financial and compliance areas as follows:

1. Operational

Various principles and procedures are in place to cover
the day-to-day operational activities including but not
limited to the preparation of production and investment
plans and budgets, formulating a screening and
approval process, setting up of an on-going monitoring
system for production or job in progress, review on the
production or time cost spending and guidelines for
investment in securities.

2. Financial 2.

e FEffective financial control is a vital element
of internal control. It helps in identifying and
managing liabilities to ensure that the Group is not
unnecessarily exposed to avoidable financial risks.
It also contributes to the safeguarding of assets from
inappropriate use or loss, including the prevention
and detection of fraud and errors.

e |n order to achieve effective financial control, a set
of measures have been implemented to tighten the
control on cash flow. All payments are required to be
properly checked and approved. Proper accounting
and financial records shall be maintained to support
financial budgets, monthly management accounts
and reports.

e Regular reviews and audits are carried out to
ensure that the preparation of financial statements is
carried out in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, the Group’s accounting
policies and applicable laws and regulations.

P\

,461 Emperor Culture Group Limited HEEX{LEXEEERAA
ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018 =R
\

2) EXRBRFE (&)

ARRIEBHEE NER kR NS
BT BR A REFT I 2 Bz -

R EBEE1E

EEGHER BRECESEHRIA D NEEE
EFURRAEE 2 EE M RAaREEL
BRUEEIT -

EELEH
FERRARIEFRERTEELY B
ENRRRREUE I E 8 MIEE - #l
AIERNEMRER  HRIREER RSN
EREUER TIREE - it S ES I I
AXHAREFILE 2 15|

R %7 E

o FARMBEEIIAMMEIEERESR
Z IR - BTG SRR RE DAl e B B
BE UHERAEE NS EENRE
NE MR A 2 TSRS - TRE
NRREEE  EEETSWIER
REEXIRKL BN L RISRIEGE
Kt ERIG R -

o REIAMZYUBER ARFCE
TT—EREMBAINRIRSIREIES] - P
BNZEEETEEEE R MZ
St MU REE R EETAR
B1RE & AEERA MRERHK
e

o ARRREMEITIRN KB - FERE
BMR 2 mMETTE —RABEER
A AEE 2 @ BER MER AR
EEA



Corporate Governance Report
TEERBE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(continued)
D. Internal Controls (continued)

3. Compliance

The following policies and procedures are in place to
safeguard the compliance control:

Bk EE R AIREE (&)

D. REPEEIE (&)
3. &E¥rE

N TBERNMEF RSB aR . BE:

Systems and procedures on disclosure of
inside information to ensure, with the assistance
of internal work team (if required), that any material
information which comes to the knowledge of any
one or more officers should be promptly identified,
assessed and escalated, where appropriate, for the
attention of the Board. The Board shall make timely
decisions on disclosure, if necessary, and take
appropriate measures to preserve confidentiality of
inside information until proper dissemination of the
inside information;

Policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements which shall be
reviewed and monitored regularly by the Corporate
Governance Committee as delegated by the Board;

CCT Compliance Committee is established to
monitor, control and regularly review continuing
connected transactions of the Company and ensure
proper compliance with all relevant laws and
regulations and the Listing Rules and disclosure
requirements; and

Whistle-blowing policy for employees of the Group
to raise concerns, in confidence, about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or
other matters of the Group. Such arrangement will
be reviewed by the Audit Committee which ensures
that proper arrangement is in place for fair and
independent investigation of the matters.

E. Management Confirmation

The Board has received a written confirmation from the
management on the effectiveness of the Systems of the
Group. The Audit Committee and the Boards, upon reviewing
the Systems, were not aware of any significant issues
that would have an adverse impact on the effectiveness
and adequacy of the Group’s operational, financial and
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compliance areas of the Systems.
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Corporate Governance Report
CEEARE

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has established a shareholders’ communication
policy and the Board shall review on a regular basis to ensure its
effectiveness. The Company communicates with the Shareholders
mainly in the following ways: (i) the holding of annual general
meeting (“AGM”) and special general meetings, if any, which may
be convened for specific purposes which provide opportunities
for the Shareholders to communicate directly to the Board; (ii) the
publication of announcements, annual reports, interim reports and/
or circulars as required under the Listing Rules; (iii) the availability
of latest information of the Group on the Company’s website; and
(iv) investor/analyst briefings and/or media conference (when
necessary).

Shareholders and investors are welcome to visit the Company’s
website to raise enquiries through our Investor Relations
Department whose contact details are available on the Company’s
website and the “Corporate Information and Key Dates” of this
annual report.

Separate resolutions were proposed at the general meetings
for such substantial issues, including the re-election of retiring
Directors. The Company’s notice to Shareholders for the 2017
AGM was sent to Shareholders at least 20 clear business days
before the meeting and notices of all other general meetings were
sent to Shareholders at least 10 clear business days before the
meetings.

The Chairperson of the 2017 AGM and the chairman/members of
the Board Committees and the external auditors were available at
the 2017 AGM to answer questions from the Shareholders. With
the assistance of the Company Secretary, the Chairperson of the
meetings had explained the procedures for conducting a poll
during the meetings.

The forthcoming annual general meeting will be held on 13
November 2018 which will be conducted by way of poll.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERBE

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the Shareholders as
required to be disclosed pursuant to the CG Code:

Convening a Special General Meeting (“SGM”) and Putting
Forward Proposals at such Meeting

Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 and Bye-laws
of the Company, Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-tenth
(10%) of the paid-up capital of the Company as at the date of the
deposit of the requisition carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall have the right to submit a written
requisition requiring a SGM to be called by the Board. The written
requisition (i) must state the object(s) of the meeting, and (ii) must
be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the principal
place of business of the Company in Hong Kong for attention of
the Company Secretary, and may consist of several documents
in like form, each signed by one or more requisitionists. Such
requisitions will be verified with the Company’s Hong Kong Branch
Share Registrar and upon its confirmation that the requisition is
proper and in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board to
convene a SGM by serving sufficient notice to all Shareholders. On
the contrary, if the requisition has been verified as not in order, the
requisitionists will be advised of this outcome and accordingly, the
SGM will not be convened as requested.

If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of the deposit
of a valid requisition proceed duly to convene a SGM for a day
not more than two months after the date of deposit of a proper
requisition, the requisitionists or any of them representing more
than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them may themselves
convene a SGM, but any SGM so convened shall not be held
after the expiration of 3 months from the said date of deposit
of the requisition. In addition, such meeting convened by the
requisitionists shall be convened in the same manner, as nearly
as possible, as that in which meetings are to be convened by the
Board.
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Corporate Governance Report
SEERRE

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Convening a Special General Meeting (“SGM”) and Putting
Forward Proposals at such Meeting (continued)

Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, either any number
of the registered Shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth
(5%) of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company, or not less than 100
of such registered Shareholders, can request the Company in
writing to (a) give to Shareholders entitled to receive notice of the
next general meeting notice of any resolution which may properly
be moved and is intended to be moved at that meeting; and (b)
circulate to Shareholders entitled to have notice of any general
meeting any statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect
to the matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the business
to be dealt with at that meeting. The requisition signed by all the
requisitionists must be deposited at the principal office of the
Company with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s
relevant expenses and not less than six weeks before the meeting
in case of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution or not
less than one week before the meeting in the case of any other
requisition. Provided that if an AGM is called for a date six weeks
or less after the requisition has been deposited, the requisition
though not deposited within the time required shall be deemed to
have been properly deposited for the purposes thereof.

Proposing a Person for Election as a Director

The procedures for the Shareholders to propose a person for
election as a Director are available for viewing on the Company’s
website.

Enquiries from Shareholders

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their
shareholdings to the Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share
Registrar, Tricor Tengis Limited. Other enquiries from Shareholders
can be directed to the Investor Relations Department of the
Company whose contact details are shown on the “Corporate
Information and Key Dates” section of this Annual Report.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There are no significant changes in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the Year.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERBE

AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE AND
REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee is mandated to review and monitor the
independence of the auditors to ensure objectivity and the
effectiveness of the audit process of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with applicable standards. Members
of the Audit Committee were of the view that the Company’s
auditors, HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited is independent and
has recommended the Board to re-appoint it as the Company’s
auditors at the 2018 AGM. During the Year, HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng Limited has rendered audit services and certain non-audit
services to the Group and the remuneration paid/payable to it by
the Group is set out as follows:

Service rendered

ERMZ K%

Statutory audit
EEERZ

Non-audit services

FEEZ IR

REM2B YRS

ERZESRRERBERZENRS REERZ
2B 2 B ARERE R TR A M SRR IBIEP 2
EBEMAYE - ERZEGZKERR AAF]
Z BB E e =S AR AR BB ILAL
VREFSFLHERRER  ZRN2018FRRBF
R HEREARNR ZAZHED - RAFE - BE
SRR EBAAR AR B RAAKEREEZRE
RETIEEZRS MAKEEN, BN TR
BRI :

Fees paid/payable
B EAER
HK$°000
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Independent Auditors’ Report
B2 RE RS

HL

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
OF EMPEROR CULTURE GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Emperor
Culture Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 59
to 151 which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 30 June 2018, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 30 June 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(the “"HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (‘HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the “Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
B2 RE RS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matters

ARELER

Impairment assessment on goodwill

e ZREN G

Refer to note 18 to the consolidated financial statements
2R E VM mRMITE18

As at 30 June 2018, the Group had goodwill of
HK$68,260,000 relating to the production, distribution
and licensing of animated TV episode and theatrical film
business.

R2018F6A30H " EXEMHET A ELEBRER
2 BUE - BT MR MER TSR 79°868,260,000/8 7T ©

The management performed impairment assessment
of goodwill and concluded that an impairment loss on
goodwill of HK$27,354,000 was recognised in profit or
loss.

B ED B BETREN G WRAENBEANEREHE
k(B E51827,354,0004 7T ©

This conclusion was based on value-in-use model that
required the significant management’'s judgement with
respect to the discount rate and the underlying cash
flows, in particular future revenue growth and capital
expenditure.

bR DENMEREEEREL  UERERERTIRE
NABRAHR @ MAEL EARAE - TERAKWSRIER MNER
FIx<

Independent external valuation was obtained in order to
support the management'’s estimates.
ERSE MBI EA L FFERE 2 5t

RARELSER(£)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RIT2BRNMEERRERSE

Our procedures in relation to the impairment assessment
included:

RITUREN G 2 EREF B

e Evaluation of the independent valuer's competence,
capabilities, independence and objectivity;

M GER T & 8e ) B REEN

e Discussion with the management on their planned
strategies around business expansion, revenue
stream, growth strategies and cost initiatives, and
obtained the list of secured contracts;

HERE A A RSINR 2 2R IR - AR -
BREELREARE WERBEESRHNZBE:

e Assessing the appropriateness of the key assumptions
made by the management, including growth rates,
profit margin and expected changes in capital
expenditure with reference to current market
circumstances and using our valuation experts;
FHEEREMRACBRBRAELE BRIEREK
MBERIARZRIBITHISIRLIE IS A5 52 #40 KR
RATZMERR:

e Testing the appropriateness of key inputs applied by
the management in preparing the cash flow forecasts
against historical performance, including revenue,
cost of sales and operating expenses, with reference
to the future strategic plans of the Group in respect of
the cash-generating unit; and
AHAEEERELRE (BREWA  HEMAR MK EH
X) 2% BREReESBAIEARRERE MR
HHeREEAMERZ T ZERABBEZE@E M &

e Assessing the assumption on the long-term growth
rates in the forecast and the discount rate with
reference to the cost of capital of the Group.

2% BREzERRAZHETERS 2 REERERUR
PR EZRER -

We found the key assumption were supported by the
available evidence.
RTRE BRERCDEMEIE -
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Independent Auditors’ Report
B2 RE RS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matters

ARELER

RARERSER(£)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RIT2BRNMNEERRERSE

Impairment assessment on film and TV programme rights, film and TV programme production in progress and

investments in film production

EXRERHERE RIEFP2EXRERBAURRNESR

FRIEZREZRENE

Refer to notes 21, 22 and 23 to the consolidated financial statements

%Bﬁ,m/\ﬁﬁ&&%%fm < 22823

As at 30 June 2018, the Group had film and TV
programme rights, film and TV programme in progress
and investments in film production with the carrying
amounts of HK$14,031,000, HK$150,797,000 and
HK$35,302,000 respectively.

20186 A30H - BREZ B R EHE B g Sk
hr B NEBRHEANNEZREZREREED A
14,031,000/ 7T * 150,797,000/ 7T, 535,302,000/ 7T, ©

The management performed impairment assessment
of film and TV programmes rights, film and TV
programme production in progress and investments
in film production and concluded that an impairment
loss of HK$37,046,000 in respect of investments in film
production was recognised in profit or loss.
EEECUHET LERARE BIER2ER R %E**
ELA&F%%%VEZ&%&E TRIERHE WRENREZH
12 1A 18 28 A HERRRL (B85 1837,046, 00078 7T ©

Impairment of film and TV programme rights and
investments in film production were assessed based
on value-in-use model that required the use of discount
rate and the underlying cash flows, in particular, future
revenue growth and capital expenditure.

BRNERE B REARNEZRUEZIRE ZRIER R )
ENEREEEL (AERTRXRBERSR LER
AW I & N E AR ) EH

Impairment of film and TV programme production in
progress was assessed by comparing the carrying
amount and the recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is determined based on the estimate used by
the management.

e 2 BY LEBRE B 2RER G TBRLEREE R
TH&Z@ > RRMEL o PRl S FARIRE IR E B 2 (AT 8UE

;Eo

These conclusions required the significant
management’s judgement, with respect to the discount
rate and the underlying cash flows, in particular future
revenue growth and capital expenditure.

It F AR E R E TR R AR 2 RE L BRI
tﬁ%ﬂiwﬁz ERNRERFEX -

Our procedures in relation to the impairment assessment
included:

AITHBER G2 ERZREFBE:

e Discussion with the management on their planned
schedule and the stage of completion in respect of the
films and TV programmes;

ERENmAAREX NERA 2 D8I KT
W%E“ '

e Understanding the procedures taken by management
in estimating the projected distribution income of film
and TV programme rights and investments in film
production and assessing the reasonableness of such
estimation;

THREREMETEY N ERE B MRIEA MR EZRIE
2B 2 AT RS PR 2 12 A e e sz ik
FrA=pid

e Assessing the methodology adopted by the
management and the appropriateness of key
assumptions based on our knowledge of the relevant
industry;
RIBEAITRBREI TR MBEHEEIREAIRA 2 7E R
AR RRzaEE:

e Challenging the reasonableness of key assumption
based on our knowledge of the relevant industry;

REATERBITE BB EIERKR2AEERIE

e Checking, on a sample basis, the accuracy and
relevance of the input data used.

AR AT A B A SR < RV AR R -

We found that the key assumptions were supported by the
available evidence.

RITRR BRERCDEMBEEXS-

,541 Emperor Culture Group Limited HEEX{LEXEEERAA

ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018 %



Independent Auditors’ Report
B2 RE RS

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements
and our auditors’ report thereon (“Other Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the Other Information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the Other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the Other Information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this Other
Information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS
AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee are responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

Emperor Culture Group Limited
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Independent Auditors’ Report
B2 RE RS

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. We report
our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section
90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

P\
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Independent Auditors’ Report
B2 RE RS

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Emperor Culture Group Limited
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Independent Auditors’ Report
B2 RE RS

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditors’ report is Kwok Tsz Chun.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Kwok Tsz Chun
Practising Certificate Number: PO6901

Hong Kong, 20 September 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

mEERREMAEEKER

For the year ended 30 June 2018 & £2018F6H30H I FE

Revenue LN 7 91,202 44,925
Cost of sales $HE KA (42,972) (37,460)
Gross profit EF 48,230 7,465
Other revenue H e 9 10,552 16,726
Selling and distribution expenses HERBEITEA (19,245) (7,399)
Administrative expenses TR (98,745) (41,272)
Other operating expenses HEgEz i 10 (67,448) (72,477)
Change in fair value of financial BRARBEFABRZ
assets at fair value through profit PREEZANEE
or loss o) (31,691) (7,115)
Loss from operations KE T2 BE 10 (158,347) (104,072)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEHB AR ZER 37 (8) -
Gain on disposal of associates HEBE QR Z S 38 - 34,825
Finance costs BA TSR AR 11 - (6)
Loss before taxation bR AT ES 18 (158,355) (69,253)
Taxation credit I % 13 242 175
Loss for the year FEEE (158,113) (69,078)
Other comprehensive income FEHM2HEKE
for the year
Item that may be reclassified R B 7R R
subsequently to profit or loss: HH -
Exchange differences arising on REBINEBEEZ
translation of foreign operations MEH =5 3,216 100
Other comprehensive income FERTEE M2 E WS
for the year, net of tax 3,216 100
Total comprehensive loss for the year &€ 2 &84 5 (154,897) (68,978)
Loss for the year attributable to:  FE{5FEE1A :
Owners of the Company ZAYNEIEZ ZS DN (153,797) (62,327)
Non-controlling interests FEIEAR = (4,316) (6,751)
(158,113) (69,078)
Total comprehensive loss EBLEEEREEBRARE:
for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company RRTEBA (151,473) (61,825)
Non-controlling interests VAR (3,424) (7,153)
(154,897) (68,978)
Loss per share attributable to the A THE AELETRER: 14
owners of the Company:
Basic and diluted AERREE HK$(0.05)7% 7T HK$(0.03)7 7T

The accompanying notes form

consolidated financial statements.

an integral part of these

I\ o
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e PR R

At 30 June 2018 7201856 H30H

Non-current assets FEREEE
Property, plant and equipment M - HeEs R 17
Goodwill Bk 18
Intangible assets B EE 19
Contingent consideration JEW S ARAE
receivable 26
Current assets RBEE
Inventories BE8 20
Film and TV programme rights B LEREE g 21
Film and TV programme BUER 2 BEX REREE
production in progress 22
Investments in film production REFZRIEZIRE 23
Trade receivables Z 5 WK 24
Other receivables, deposits and HE U - R e RIBRAR
prepayments 25
Contingent consideration e AKIE
receivable 26
Financial assets at fair value BAnBEFABR ISR
through profit or loss BE 27
Cash and bank balances RE RIBITET 29
Asset classified as held for sale DEARFELHEZEE 30
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables B 5 REAM R 31
Amounts due to related companies JEfT BiE A 51 FUIA 32
Amount due to non-controlling B FEIE AR 25 TR
interests 32
Net current assets REBEEFRE
Total assets less current liabilities #&ERAEE &
Non-current liability kREBEE
Deferred tax liability ELEHIBEE 33
Net assets EEFEE
-\
, 60 l Emperor Culture Group Limited HEEX{LEXEEERAA
ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018 %R

236,902
68,260
27,661

332,823

894
14,031

150,797
35,302
12,227

64,432
Al

PY )
264,142

569,785

569,785

101,045
15,553

44,870

161,468
408,317

741,140

741,140

72,241
95,614
25,489

485

193,829

131
11,986

215,463
1,683
16,642
53,5653
7,998

52,441
452,616

812,513
47,600

860,113

111,887
16,049

44,870

172,806

687,307

881,136

242

880,894




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
RE Mg R

At 30 June 2018 7201856 A30H

2018 2017
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
k=3 FTHERT FHET
Capital and reserves attributable A2 FHEE ABEREE #E
to the owners of the Company
Share capital N 34 32,133
Reserves s 872,046
904,179
Non-controlling interests FEIERR RS (23,285)
Total equity R 880,894
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 20 A20185F9 A0 KR E S @l /£ M IF#E T2 - W Hh
September 2018 and signed on its behalf by: THESREZE:
Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa Mr. Wong Chi Fai
esELt BEEEBEE
Executive Director Executive Director
HITEF HiTEF

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these HiFEHM B I ZEEMBEHRERT A D 2 26
consolidated financial statements. o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mERRBHR

For the year ended 30 June 2018 & £2018F6H30H I F/E

At 1 July 2016 201657718 22,133 733016 50 58,658 (2640)  (35,040) 776,177 (24.888) 751,289
Loss for he year EEER - - - - S 3 @) (6751 (69078)
Other comprehensive FEEM2ENE/

incomef(loss) for the year (&%) - - - - 502 - 502 (402) 100
Total comprehensive FERENE/

incomef(loss) for the year ~ (518) % - - - - 502 (62327)  (6182%5)  (7153)  (68,978)
Issue of new shares by BRERITHRG

subscription 10,000 180,000 - - - - 190,000 - 190,000
Non-controllng interests ~ WEMBA RS

arising from acquision of 2 FEIERRIER

subsidiaries (note 35) (H235)
Share issuing expenses  IRIAETRR
At 30 June 2017 and 201746308 &

1y 2017 W017ETA1A 912,043 (2138)  (97367) 904179 (23,285
Loss for the year ERER - (153,797)  (153,797)  (4316)
Other comprehensive income £/ £ 6 2 B

for the year 2,324 2,324 892
Total comprehensive FE2ENE/

incomef(loss) for the year (1) 4% 2324 (153,797) (151473)  (3,424)
Elimination upon disposal of  HEMBA B

subsidiaries (note 37) (Hi#237) - - - - 15143
At 30 June 2018 1201856430 912,843 186 (251,164) 752,706 (11,566) 741,140

The accompanying notes form
consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
n‘l_\é*géﬁib '\3—%

For the year ended 30 June 2018 & £2018F6H30H I FE

Notes:

(i)

(iil)

(iv)

Share premium
The application of share premium account is governed by
Section 40 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

Capital redemption reserve

Capital redemption reserve arose on the cancellation of
repurchased shares and accordingly reduction of nominal
value of share capital of the Company.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the
amount transferred from the capital account due to the
capital reduction and share premium reduction as a result
of the capital reorganisation of the Company took effect on
8 May 2014.

Under the Company Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the contributed surplus is available for distribution.
However, the Company cannot make a distribution out
of the contributed surplus if: (i) it is, or would after the
payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become
due; or (ii) the realisable value of its assets would thereby
be less than its liabilities.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations.

Bt -

(i) BiafE
i m Bz EAX A REIBIFAEDA
FA0EHRE °

(i) BXRELGHE
BARBOMERBETHDERRKRD REE
ISR A A &) B AN E o

(i) BB
NEE 2 BMBRIER AR R RINR2014F5A
8H Ak B A 28 4R T #E 1T IR AR IR K B
mERIRMEEARRER S8
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERTRER

For the year ended 30 June 2018 &;£20

Cash flows from operating activities
Loss before taxation:
Adjustments for:
Amortisation of film and TV programme
rights
Amortisation of intangible assets
Cost of investments in film production
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment
Impairment loss recognised in respect
of:
— goodwill
—film and TV programme rights
— investments in film production
— trade and other receivables
Loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment
Loss/(gain) on fair value change in

18F6H30H ILFE

RELLFHHERE

BRI A8 -

HEIRA
BE NEREN B R
B A ERH
RERRUE 2 B

ME - HBERRBIITE
BRSPS IRRER 2 R E R 1R -

—mE
—BYRBEEHE
AN RE
— B 5 R

B D S TR 2 Y IR

R ARE > A f BEE

respect of contingent consideration &8, (M)
receivable
Change in fair value of financial assets AR BEFABRZ
at fair value through profit or loss CRIEEZ AN EBEES
Written off of film and TV programme BEh 2 B R EBRENE M
production in progress
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR ZEIE
Decrease in fair value of listed corporate  #tAHERRE FHARIES 2
bond on initial recognition NAEBERD
Finance costs /R IDWIN
Interest income FLEWA
Dividend income MR EHA
Listed corporate bond interest income ~ _EMRARIEEFEWA
Reversal of impairment loss recognised & 5 JEW K IER 2
in respect of trade receivables BEE B D
Gain on disposal of associates HERE AT 2
Operating cash flows before movement K&t & BE LB EAT =
in working capital REFERE
(Increase)/decrease in inventories =& (38m) R

Increase in film and TV programme
production in progress

(Increase)/decrease in trade and
other receivables, deposits and
prepayments

Increase in investment in listed
corporate bond

Decrease in financial assets at fair value

SUFT 2 EX L EREIR E

85 MEMRYGR e K
FERFR ()R

ETRREHFREEN
BARBEFARRL

(69,253)

4,556
1,847
18,586

8,975

2,636
2,485
62,845
3,000

33

(338)

7,115

1,511
6
(862)
(4,860)
(1,328)

(69)
(34,825)

2,060
19

(165,578)

52,947
(183)

3,829
43,000

through profit or loss EREERD
Increase in trade and other payables H 5 R HE AR FIG N
Cash used in operations AR EEB 2R
Income tax paid ERPAEMN
Net cash used in operating activities FAREEFE 2 REFE

(63,906)
)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERETRER

For the year ended 30 June 2018 & £2018F6H30H I FE

2018 2017
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
BEE FET FAET
Cash flows from investing RERETBZRERE
activities
Interest received 2HHE 862
Dividend received 2R B 4,860
Purchase of property, plant and HEYE SN
equipment (22,466)
Additions of intangible assets BEEERE -
Net cash outflow on disposal of HEMBARZEREEME
subsidiaries FEE 37 -
Net cash outflow on acquisition of ~ WEEHI B AR ZRERH
subsidiaries SRR 35 & 36 (113,139)
Net cash inflow on disposal of HEBE QT ZHERA
associates R R 34,825
Net cash used in investing ARRETEB2REFHE
activities (95,058)
Cash flows from financing RERMETHZRERE
activities
Advances from related companies  BE A 7] Z B 40 16,049
Repayments to related companies &% & A R FUE 40 -
Proceeds from issue of new shares HREEZEITHIGD
by subscription FriS a8 190,000
Advances from non-controlling IR a2 B
interests 7,088
Interest expense paid ERMERX (6)
Share issuing expenses IRID BT (173)
Net cash (used in)/generated (AR) /REBMEZTEZ
from financing activities ReFHE 212,958
Net (decrease)/increase in cash HRE&ERBEZEY ORL),
and cash equivalents BinFEE 53,989
Effect of foreign exchange rate PE kB 7 &
changes 112
Cash and cash equivalents atthe ~ FHIZH & RREEEY
beginning of the year 398,515
Cash and cash equivalents atthe FRZEESRRESZEY -
end of the year, representing RS RRITERF
cash and bank balances 452,616
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these [fEEMIBI IR I A BHRET TN E 7 26
consolidated financial statements. A
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda on 27 March
1992 as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended) and
its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). According to the register
of substantial shareholders maintained by the Company as
at 30 June 2018, Emperor Culture Group Holdings Limited
(“Emperor Culture Holdings”), Albert Yeung Holdings
Limited (“AY Holdings”), STC International Limited (“STC
International”) are substantial corporate shareholders of the
Company. The ultimate controlling party of Emperor Culture
Holdings is AY Holdings which is held by STC International as
the trustee of The Albert Yeung Discretionary Trust (the “AY
Trust”) as set up by Dr. Yeung Sau Shing, Albert. The address
of the registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the “Corporate Information and
Key Dates” section of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand (HK$'000) except otherwise indicated.

The Company acts as an investment holding company and
is also engaged in investment in securities. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 43.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

The Group has applied for the first time in the current year
the following amendments to HKFRSs and Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA").

HKAS 7 (Amendments) Disclosure Initiative

HKAS 12 (Amendments) Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses
HKFRS 12 (Amendments)  As part of Annual Improvements

to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Except as described below, the application of the above
amendments to HKFRSs and HKASs in the current year has
had no material impact on the Group'’s financial performance
and position for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKAS 7 (Amendments), Disclosure Initiative

The amendments to HKAS 7 require an entity to provide
disclosures that enable users of financial statements to
evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities,
including both cash and non-cash changes. In addition, the
amendments also require disclosures on changes in financial
assets if cash flows from those financial assets were, or future
cash flows will be, included in cash flows from financing
activities.

Specifically, the amendments require the following to be
disclosed: (i) changes from financing cash flows; (ii) changes
arising from obtaining or losing control of subsidiaries or other
businesses; (iii) the effect of changes in foreign exchange
rates; (iv) changes in fair values; and (v) other changes.

A reconciliation between the opening and closing balances
of these items is provided in note 40 to the consolidated
financial statements. Consistent with the transition provisions
of the amendments, the Group has not disclosed comparative
information for the prior year. Apart from the additional
disclosure in note 40 to the consolidated financial statements,
the application of these amendments has had no impact on
the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

New and revised standards, amendments and
interpretations (collectively referred to as “new and
amendments to HKFRSs”) in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments’

HKFRS 9 (Amendments)  Prepayment from Contracts with
Negative Compensation?
Revenue from Contracts with
Customers'
HKFRS 15 (Amendments) Clarifications to HKFRS 15,
Revenue from Contracts with
Customers'
HKFRS 16 Leases?

HKFRS 15

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts*

HK(IFRIC) — Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration'

HK(IFRIC) — Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments?

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and revised standards, amendments and
interpretations (collectively referred to as “new and
amendments to HKFRSs”) in issue but not yet effective
(continued)

HKFRS 2 (Amendments)  Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions'

Applying HKFRS 9, Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4,

Insurance Contracts'’

HKFRS 4 (Amendments)

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement?

As part of the Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle’

Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures?

Transfers of Investment Property!

HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 (Amendments)

HKAS 19 (Amendments)

HKAS 28 (Amendments)

HKAS 28 (Amendments)
HKAS 40 (Amendments)
HKFRSs (Amendments)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018, with earlier application permitted.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019, with earlier application permitted.

s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021, or when apply HKFRS 9 or HKFRS 15.

HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial assets.
HKFRS 9 was subsequently amended in 2010 to include
the requirements for the classification and measurement
of financial liabilities and for derecognition, and in 2013 to
include the new requirements for general hedge accounting.
Another revised version of HKFRS 9 was issued in 2014
mainly to include (a) impairment requirements for financial
assets and (b) limited amendments to the classification
and measurement requirements by introducing a “fair
value through other comprehensive income” (“FVTOCI”)
measurement category for certain simple debt instruments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR M EE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. ERAFIIRKIBITEBMER
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG HEA ([BRMBHREERN])
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (42 )

(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments (continued) ERURHREERNFESR [ERMTE] (&

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows: BN B G BN MERENRER 2+
SR T -

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and
measurement, are subsequently measured at amortised
cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that
are held within a business model whose objective is
to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. Debt instruments that
are held within a business model whose objective is
achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets, and that have contractual terms
of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding, are generally
measured at FVTOCI. All other debt investments and
equity investments are measured at their fair values at
the end of subsequent reporting periods. In addition,
under HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair value
of an equity investment (that is not held for trading) in
other comprehensive income, with only dividend income
generally recognised in profit or loss.

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL"), HKFRS 9 requires that the amount of change
in the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable
to changes in the credit risk of that liability is presented
in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition
of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in
other comprehensive income would create or enlarge
an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes
in fair value attributable to a financial liability’s credit
risk are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.
Under HKAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement, the entire amount of the change in the
fair value of the financial liability designated as FVTPL is
presented in profit or loss.

\
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RR M

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2.
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments (continued)

e In relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS
9 requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed
to an incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39. The
expected credit loss model requires an entity to account
for expected credit losses and changes in those
expected credit losses at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition. In other
words, it is no longer necessary for a credit event to have
occurred before credit losses are recognised.

e The new general hedge accounting requirements retain
the three types of hedge accounting mechanisms
currently available in HKAS 39. Under HKFRS 9, greater
flexibility has been introduced to the types of transaction
eligible for hedge accounting, specifically broadening
the types of instruments that qualify for hedging
instruments and the types of risk components of non-
financial items that are eligible for hedge accounting. In
addition, the retrospective quantitative effectiveness test
has been removed. Enhanced disclosure requirements
about an entity’s risk management activities have also
been introduced.

Based on the Group’s financial instruments and risk
management policies as at 30 June 2018, the directors of the
Company (the “Directors”) anticipate the following potential
impacts on initial application of HKFRS 9:

(i) Classification and measurement

The financial assets held by the Group include equity
instruments that are currently classified as financial
assets at FVTPL. All other financial assets and financial
liabilities will continue to be measured on the same bases
as is currently adopted under HKAS 39.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRMTE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments (continued)

(ii) Impairment
In general, the Directors anticipate that the application
of the expected credit loss model of HKFRS 9 will
result in earlier provision of credit losses which are not
yet incurred in relation to the Group’s financial assets
measured at amortised costs and other items that
subject to the impairment provisions upon application
of HKFRS 9 by the Group. Based on the assessment
by the Directors, if the expected credit loss model were
to be applied by the Group, the accumulated amount
of impairment loss to be recognised by the Group as
at 1 July 2018 would have no significant change as
compared to the accumulated amount recognised under
HKAS 39 mainly attributable to expected credit losses
provision on loan and other receivables. No further
impairment recognised under expected credit loss model
would adjust the opening accumulated losses as at 1
July 2018.

HKFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers

In July 2014, HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a
single comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting
for revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15
will supersede the revenue recognition guidance including
HKAS 18, Revenue, HKAS 11, Construction Contracts and the
related interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that the Group should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the
standard has a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

e Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

e Step 2. Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

e Step 3: Determine the transaction price

e Step4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

e Step 5 Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(continued)

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when (or
as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive
guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific
scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to HKFRS 15 in
relation to the identification of performance obligations,
principal versus agent considerations, as well as licensing
application guidance.

The Directors anticipate that the application of HKFRS 15
in the future may result in more disclosures, however, the
Directors do not anticipate that the application of HKFRS
15 will have a material impact on the timing and amounts of
revenue recognised in the respective reporting periods.

HKFRS 16, Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will
supersede HKAS 17, Leases and the related interpretations
when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on
the basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by a
customer. Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases
are removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a
model where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability
have to be recognised for all leases by lessees, except for
short-term leases and leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain
exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease
liability. The lease liability is initially measured at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date.
Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for interest and
lease payments, as well as the impact of lease modifications,
amongst others. For the classification of cash flows, the Group
currently presents operating lease payments as operating
cash flows. Upon application of HKFRS 16, lease payments in
relation to lease liability will be allocated into a principal and
an interest portion which will be presented as financing cash
flows by the Group.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND

AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases (continued)

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS
16.

At 30 June 2018, the Group has non-cancellable operating
lease commitments of HK$262,233,000 as disclosed in note
39(a) to the consolidated financial statements. A preliminary
assessment indicates that these arrangements will meet the
definition of a lease and hence the Group will recognise a
right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability in respect
of all these leases unless they qualify for low value or short-
term leases upon the application of HKFRS 16. In addition,
the application of new requirements may result changes
in measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated
above. However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable
estimate of the financial effect until the Directors complete a
detailed review.

Except as disclosed above, the Directors anticipate the
application of other new and amendments to HKFRSs will not
have a material effect on the Group’s financial performance
and position and/or the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs,
which collective term includes all applicable individual
HKFRSs, HKASs and Interpretations issued by the
HKICPA, accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). These
consolidated financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”).
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

P\

,74/

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under historical cost convention except for
certain financial assets which are carried at fair values.
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services. The preparation of the consolidated financial
statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use
of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgment in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics
of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. A fair value
measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant's ability to generate economic
benefit by using the asset in its highest and best use
or by selling it to another market participant that would
use the asset in its highest and best use. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2, Share-based
Payment, leasing transactions that are within the scope
of HKAS 17, Leases, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2, Inventories or value in use in
HKAS 36, Impairment of Assets.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

e |evel 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can assess at the measurement date;

e |evel 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c) Basis of consolidation

3. TESFTEHEME (&)

(c) #EaREESE

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control
is achieved where the Company:

e has power over the investee;

e is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.

Consolidation of subsidiaries begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiaries and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiaries. Specially,
income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control
the subsidiaries.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c) Basis of consolidation (continued)

(d)

P\
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3. TESFTEHERME (&)

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein.

When the Group loses control of subsidiaries, a gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated
as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration received and the fair value
of any retained interest and (ii) the carrying amounts
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of
the subsidiaries and any non-controlling interests. All
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to those subsidiaries are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities of the subsidiaries (i.e. reclassified to
profit or loss or transferred directly to accumulated losses
as specified by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of
any investment retained in the former subsidiaries at the
date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition for subsequent accounting under HKAS
39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and measurement
or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
interest in an associate or a joint venture.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values
of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred
by the Group to the former owners of the acquire and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value, except that:

deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance with
HKAS 12, Income Taxes and HKAS 19, Employee

Benefits respectively;
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3. TESFTEHEME (&)

(d) ¥¥E6f (&)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d) Business combinations (continued)

e liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree
or share-based payment arrangements of the
Group entered to replace share- based payment
arrangement of the acquiree are measured in
accordance with HKFRS 2, Share-based Payment at
the acquisition date; and

e assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5, Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations are measured in accordance with that
standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value
of the acquirer’'s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net amount of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after
reassessment, the net amount of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if
any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or
loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event of
liquidation may be initially measured either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. The choice of measurement basis is made on
a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value or, when
applicable, on the basis specific in another HKFRSs.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)

)

Business combinations (continued)

When the consideration transferred by the Group in
a business combination includes assets or liabilities
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement,
the contingent consideration is measured at its
acquisition-date fair value and included as part of the
consideration transferred in a business combination.
Changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration
that qualify as measurement period adjustments
are adjusted retrospectively, with the corresponding
adjustments made against goodwill. Measurement period
adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional
information obtained during the “measurement period”
(which cannot exceed one from the acquisition date)
about facts and circumstances that existed at the date of
acquisition.

The subsequent accounting for the contingent
consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent
consideration is classified. Contingent consideration that
is classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent
reporting dates and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for with equity. Contingent consideration
that is classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured
to fair value at subsequent reporting dates, with the
corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or
loss.

Acaquisition of a subsidiary that not constituting a
business

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities
that do not constitute a business, the Group identifies
and recognises the individual assets acquired and
liabilities assumed by allocating the purchase price
first to the financial assets and financial liabilities at
the respective fair values, the remaining balance of
the purchase price is then allocated to other individual
identifiable assets and liabilities on the basis of their
relative fair values at the date of purchase. Such a
transaction does not give rise to goodwill or gain on
bargain purchase.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e) Goodwill

®

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition
of the business (see the accounting policy above) less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units
("CGU(s)") (or groups of CGUs) that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination.

A CGU (or groups of CGUs) to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently when there is indication that the unit may
be impaired. For goodwill arising on acquisition in a
reporting period, the CGUs (or groups of CGUs) to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable
amount of the CGU is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then
to the other assets of the unit on a pro-rata basis based
on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in
profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill
is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant CGU, the attributable amount
of goodwill is included in the determination of the profit or
loss on disposal.

Interests in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over those
policies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

®

P\
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Interests in associates (continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting, except when
the investment is classified as held for sale, in which
case it is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5,
Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations. Under the equity method, interests in
associates initially recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise in the Group’s share of the
profit or loss and other comprehensive income of
the associates. When the Group’s share of losses of
associates equals or exceeds the Group’s interest in that
associates (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in
the associates), the Group discontinues recognising its
share of future losses. Additional losses are recognised
only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of
the associate.

An interest in an associate is accounted for using the
equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate. On acquisition of the interest in
an associate, any excess of the cost of the investment
over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is
recognised as goodwill, which is included within the
carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss
in the period in which the investment is acquired.

When an interest in an associate is held by, or is held
indirectly through an entity that is a venture capital
organisation and similar entities, such investment
is measured at FVTPL in the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

®)

Interests in associates (continued)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment
loss with respect to the Group’s investment in an
associate. When necessary, the entire carrying amount
of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with HKAS 36, Impairment of
Assets as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs
of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of
the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss
is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the
extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

When the Group ceased to have significant influence
over an associate, it is accounted for a disposal of the
entire interest in the investee with a resulting gain or
loss being recognised in profit or loss. When the Group
retains an interest in the former associate and the
retained interest is a financial asset, the Group measures
the retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair
value is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition
as a financial asset in accordance with HKAS 39. The
difference between the carrying amount of the associate
at the date the equity method was discontinued, and the
fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds from
disposing of a part interests in the associate is included
in the determination of the gain or loss on disposal of
the associate. In addition, the Group accounts for all
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that associate on the same basis as
would be required if that associate had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain
or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive
income by that associate would be reclassified to profit
or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities,
the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit
or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) when the equity
method is discontinued.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions
with the associate are recognised in the Group's
consolidated financial statements only to the extent
of interests in the associate that are not related to the
Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(9)

(h)

P\

,821

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified
as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only
when the asset (or disposal group) is available for
immediate sale in its present condition subject only
to terms that are usual and customary for sales of
such asset (or disposal group) and its sale is highly
probable. Management must be committed to the sale,
which should be expected to qualify for recognition
as a completed sale within one year from the date of
classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving
loss of control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary are classified as held for sale
when the criteria described above are met, regardless of
whether the Group will retain a non-controlling interest in
its former subsidiary after the sale.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as
held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings and
leasehold land held for use in the production or supply
of goods or services, or for administrative purposes, are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost, less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried out at cost,
less any recognised impairment loss. Such properties are
classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for intended
use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as
other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for intended use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR

3. TESFTEHEME (&)

(h) #I3- HBRRE (&)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price, any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
present working condition and location for its intended
use and the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling
and removing the item and restoring the site on which is
located. Expenditure incurred after the asset has been
put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance and
overhaul costs, is normally charged to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the
expenditure has resulted in an increase in the future
economic benefits expected to be obtained from the
use of the asset, the expenditure is capitalised as an
additional cost of the asset.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets (other than construction in progress) less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method, at the following annual rates:

Leasehold improvement 20%

Furniture, fixtures and : 20%
equipment

Machinery : 20%

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for
on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sale proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit
or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

0]

P\

,841

Intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life
and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
and recognised separately from goodwill are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date
(which is regarded as their cost). Subsequent to initial
recognition, intangible assets acquired in the business
combination are reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, on
the same basis as intangible assets that are acquired
separately.

Categories of the intangible assets of the Group are
summarised as follows:

(i) Trademarks

Trademarks are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate the cost of
trademarks over their estimated useful lives of up to
8 years.

(ii) Production rights

Production rights acquired in business combination
are recognised at fair value at the acquisition date
(which is regarded as their cost) and subsequently
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is
charged to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss over the contract terms.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains and losses arising from derecognition of
an intangible asset, measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset, and are recognised in profit or loss when the asset
is derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

1)

(k)

U]

(m)

Film and TV programme rights

Film and TV programme rights represent films and
television drama series produced or acquired by the
Group for reproduction, distribution and sub-licensing
and are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any identified impairment losses. Amortisation is
recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives. In the case where there is any impairment
in value, the unamortised balance is written down to its
estimated recoverable amount.

Film and TV programme production in progress

Film and TV programme production in progress
represents films and televisions drama series under
production and are stated at cost incurred to date, less
any identified impairment losses. Cost is transferred to
either film and TV programme rights or investments in film
production upon completion.

An impairment loss is made if there has been a change
in the estimate used to determine the recoverable
amount and the carrying amount exceeds the
recoverable amount.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost of inventories is calculated using
the weighted average method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories less
all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to
make the sale.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts received
for goods sold and services provided in the normal
course of business, net of discounts and sales related
taxes.

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the revenue can be measured
reliably, revenue is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss as follows:

Revenue from licensing of the distribution rights over
films and television programmes is recognised when the
master materials of films are delivered to customers and
the amount can be measured reliably.

Emperor Culture Group Limited

3. TESFTEHEME (&)

1)

(k)

U]

EXRERT B RE

BY LB B REREARERIFLE
AZBE N EEEBIAEESRL TR
BRSFTRS - B AR Rt M
ERIE R BUEEES IR - #HiRE A
ST RN P S BA B AR ERE R o i IR
{ARE - RIR B SR S MO L (AT
Yool & 58 -

HEP2EEFREREE

BUWER 2 B M ERE B IBENRER
BrEYNERBER WABZEEHD
EEZRAREREZR 2 H@Eﬂéﬁu
AR o IRAR e R EE Y R EREE
IRES R ERRIEZIRE

WA E RN El S5 et IR &g
HEEmEBBA KB &EE - BEHRIERES
e

3
AR BB 2 R
FRRARBAET A S - BT
ISR ot ol a
A R TR E PR -

(m) LA TERR

REXERKRERRAF
ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018 3R

WAZE WS R B AR BERE
YRR —REFEFEBRETCHESR
K PR RS 2 RGN R AT 1 SR $H 65
MHRAR A -

REBERKA

.
\;ZTI/ZI\

TEE A F 7 1 T] BE
BER SEHbET = WA HZ N T 2R
T,E\ SR NHER

RHEFZREHREHE %‘éfﬂféézuﬁz)\#@
FLHERNEFPRERRZ TR
SEHbETE o

O



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m)

P\

,861

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from investments in film production is
recognised when the Group’s entitlement to such
payments has been established, subject to the terms of
the relevant agreements.

Revenue from box-office takings for film exhibition is
recognised when the tickets are sold to the customers
and the film is released.

Revenue from the screen advertising is recognised
when the relevant advertisements and programmes are
exhibited in accordance with the terms of the relevant
agreements.

Sales of goods are recognised when the goods are
delivered and the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of the goods has passed to the buyer.

Revenue from event investment is recognised when the
events are completed.

Sales of securities investments are recognised on a trade
date basis.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life
of the financial asset to the asset’s net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Dividend income from securities investments is
recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive
payment has been established.

Compensation income is recognised when the
Group’s entitlement to receive such payment has
been established, subject to the terms of the relevant
agreement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n)

(o)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than
the entity’s functional currency (foreign currencies)
are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of each
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
foreign operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income
and expense items are translated at the average
exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during that period, in which case
the exchange rates at the dates of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of the exchange reserve (attributed to
non-controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, a disposal involving loss of
joint control over a joint venture that includes a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of significant
influence over an associate that includes a foreign
operation), all of the exchange differences accumulated
in equity in respect of that operation attributable to the
owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

Leasing
All leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term,
except where another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic
benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(p)

P\

,ﬁg‘

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilites at FVTPL are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

(i) Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified
into financial assets at FVTPL and loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the
nature and purpose of the financial assets and
is determined at the time of initial recognition. All
regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established
by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument
and of allocating interest income over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees on points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest
basis for debt instruments other than those financial
assets classified as financial assets at FVTPL.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

3. TESFTEHEME (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(p) Financial instruments (continued)
(i) Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when
the financial asset is either (i) held for trading, (ii) it
is designated as at financial assets at FVTPL or (iii)
contingent consideration that may be received by an
acquirer as part of a business combination to which
HKFRS 3 applies.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose
of selling in the near future; or

e on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

e it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held
for trading or contingent consideration that may
be received by an acquirer as part of a business
combination may be designated as at FVTPL upon
initial recognition if:

e such designation eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

e the financial asset forms part of a group of
financial assets or financial liabilities or both,
which is managed and its performance is
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with the Group’s documented risk management
or investment strategy, and information about
the grouping is provided internally on that
basis; or

e it forms part of a contract containing one or
more embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39
permits the entire combined contract (asset or
liability) to be designated as at FVTPL.

(p) EWMIAE(#Z)
() THEZE (&)
RN BEFGABD S 2 EE
ECREEREEE  ()HEHE
ERBEARBETSARRZEME
72 Sk (i) 7 AT BE YN 2 S AR B
(e BB BB TE3RE 2R B350 3
LEBEHN—FD) SREES
BAEEAREBEF AR

e REER MBI RINESHE

FEE:

o BEZTFERMENEHAR
ZHE

o RYMAHERRH B AREEH
REEzE#MNERTAES
ZHP—Fn BTHEER
Z AR K

o HBRBUHERETEREM
WHhTAZITET A

TREE (BEEESREEIW
B AWEERERB Atz —& D
ZESAABRRIN) AT MBI TR
VIR R IEE R AR BERA

o
B

o RIEEHRIABRIAEER
HIRAEt B KR T EH T —
Btk

s RETMEERBNK—HEREE
SeBBEXRKMEN—&
7 WARTER A ER B il 7 1 2 Bz
ERYIRERBEERENIARR
EBEMIERR BA@E A
ZERHRI B[R A ERLE
sk

o HEMKEE HANZEMAI
ITTETEMNAKN—& D M
BB G R R38R 12 AR E
EREEK (BERRE)EE
RRAR(EBEFARS-

\’
Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX{LEXEBERAT ,891
ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018 &3k



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR M EE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(p) Financial instruments (continued)

P\

,90/

(@)

Financial assets (continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL (continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value,
with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend
or interest earned on the financial assets and is
included in the change in fair value of financial
assets at FVTPL. Fair value is determined in the
manner described in note 5.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host
contracts are treated as separate derivatives when
they meet the definition of a derivative, their risks
and characteristics are not closely related to those
of the host contracts and the host contracts are not
measured at FVTPL.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market. Loans
and receivables (including investments in film
production, trade receivables, other receivables
and deposits and cash and bank balances) are
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate, except for short-term
receivables when the recognition of interest would
be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are
assessed for indicators of impairment at the end
of each reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired where there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial
asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial
assets have been affected.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(p) Financial instruments (continued)

(@)

Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For all other financial assets, the objective evidence
of impairment could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

e Dbreach of contract, such as default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;
or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation; or

e the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial assets, such
as trade receivables, assets that are assessed
not to be impaired individually are, in addition,
subsequently assessed for impairment on a
collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment
for a portfolio of receivables could include the
Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an
increase in the number of delayed payments in the
portfolio past the average credit period of 30 to 180
days, as well as observable changes in national or
local economic conditions that correlate with default
on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
amount of the impairment loss recognised is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of the estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset's original effective
interest rate.

Emperor Culture Group Limited

3. TESFTEHEME (&)

(p) ERMIA(£E)

(@)

REXERKRERRAF
ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018 3R

THEE (&)
EHEEZFE (B
MAAEEMERMEEN S  TERE
CER LR

o BITARHF I EESREBREMIK
2 3k

o EH WHEHALREERE
REFERR © 3K

e BRABAIREEBREESNTY
BEHA 5

. HBEBSHEREEZER
A5 A -

SO R ETErEERR (a0
Z SRR - TREB AR E
ZEBEEBIREEEETRE
FEWBR B G 2 BEUREE R &
AL 7 BAEKRTESR  HAERNTT
BIEREHRE30E 1808 FH = & Hf
2R B NN A K BR R B HE X e U AR
2 2B Bk Hb [ A A S 3R

SN RIS 2 DA E
REREZ 2B R AEREE
B B A B R ERAIR TR Y
EEARR SR E 2 RERZ 25
Wil

4

7~
C



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(p) Financial instruments (continued)

P\

"%"

(i) Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is
reduced by the impairment loss directly for
all financial assets with the exception of trade
receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. When
a trade receivable is considered uncollectible,
it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited to profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed
does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.

(ii) Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified as either financial liabilities or
as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by a group entity are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and other
payables and amounts due to related companies/
non-controlling interests, are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.
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3. TESFTEHEME (&)

(p) EMIAE (&)
(i) *HBEEREZMTE (&)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(p) Financial instruments (continued)
(i) Financial liabilities and equity instruments

(continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective
interest basis.

(iiij) Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the asset to another entity. On
derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset's carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group’s obligations
are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(9)

P\

,94/

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from loss before taxation,
as reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income because of items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investment in
subsidiaries, interests in associates and interests in
jointly controlled entities except where the Group is able
to control the reversal of the temporary differences and
it is probable that the temporary differences will not be
reversed in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse
in the foreseeable future.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(q) Taxation (continued)

U]

Deferred tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case, the current and deferred tax are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred
tax arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting
for the business combination.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
with finite useful lives to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss (if any). When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the CGU to which the assets belongs. When
a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can
be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to
individual CGUs, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of CGUs for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

U]

(s)

®
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Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill (continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or the CGU) is reduced to
its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or CGU) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or
CGU) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash in hand,
deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months
or less.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that the Group will be required to
settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time
value of money is material).
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

®

(u)

v)

Provisions (continued)

When some or all of the economic benefits required to
settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a
third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is
virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and
the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because
it is not probable that outflow of economic resources
will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably. A contingent liability is not recognised
but is disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements. When a change in the probability of an
outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, they will then
be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of
the Group. When inflow is virtually certain, an asset is
recognised.

Employee benefits

(i) Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leaves, leave
passage and the cost to the Group of non-monetary
benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees of
the Group. Where payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.

(i) Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit
schemes are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to
contributions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(v) Employee benefits (continued)

(i)

(iv)

The fair value of the employee services received
in exchange for the grant of the share options is
recognised as an expense in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. The total amount to be
expensed over the vesting period is determined
with reference to the fair value of the share options
granted. At the end of the reporting period, the
Company revises its estimates of the number
of share options that are expected to become
exercisable that become vested. It recognises
the impact of the revision of original estimates, if
any, in the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
and a corresponding adjustment to equity in the
consolidated statement of financial position will be
made over the remaining vesting period.

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only
when, the Group demonstrably commits itself to
terminate employment or to provide benefits as a
result of voluntary redundancy by having a detailed
formal plan which is without realistic possibility of
withdrawal.

(w) Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

P\

,981

(i)

A person, or a close member of that person’s family,
is related to the Group if that person:

(1)

has control or joint control over the Group; or

()

has significant influence over the Group; or

3)

is @ member of the key management personnel
of the Group or the Group’s parent.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(w) Related parties (continued)

(ii)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(1)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others); or

one entity is an associate or a jointly controlled
entities of the other entity (or an associate or
a jointly controlled entities of a member of a
group of which the other entity is a member); or

both entities are jointly controlled entities of the
same third party; or

one entity is a jointly controlled entities of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity; or

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group; or

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (i); or

a person identified in (i)(1) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); or

the entity, or any member of a group of which it
is apart, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources,
services or obligations between a group entity and
a related party, regardless of whether a price is
charged.

Close members of a family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the management is required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period, that may have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

(a) Impairment of trade and other receivables

The provision of impairment loss on trade and other
receivables of the Group is based on the evaluation
of collectability and ageing analysis of accounts
and on management’s judgement. In determining
whether impairment is required, the Group takes into
consideration the ageing status and likelihood of
collection. When the recoverability of trade and other
receivables are called into doubts, specific provision of
impairment loss on trade and other receivables is made
on the difference between the estimated future cash
flows expected to receive being discounted using the
original effective interest rate and the carrying value.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Impairment of film and TV programme rights

At the end of each reporting period, the management
performs review of the carrying amount of each of
the film and TV programme rights by reference to its
estimated total projected revenues from each film
and TV programme, which is based on the historical
performance and incorporating factors such as the
past box office record of the lead actors and actresses,
the genre of the film, pre-release market research,
the expected number of theatres that the film will be
released to and the anticipated performance in the home
entertainment, television and other ancillary markets,
and agreement for future sales. The residual values of
each of the film and TV programme rights are continually
evaluated based on the changes in consumer demand.

Impairment of film and TV programme production in
progress

The management regularly reviews the recoverability
of the Group’s film and TV programme production in
progress with reference to its intended use and current
market environment and its expectation of future income
to be generated from these films and TV programmes. In
determining the recoverable amounts of the film and TV
programme production in progress, the Group takes into
consideration of the distribution and license agreements
entered into by the Group or its co-investment partner
and the current market environment to project the
expected cash flows to be received through box
office receipts and distribution and licensing income.
Impairment is recognised when the recoverable amount
is expected to be less than the carrying amounts of the
film and TV programme production in progress.

Impairment of investments in film production

In assessing the recoverability of investments in film
production, the management assesses the credibility
of the counterparties, the progress of the related film
production and the market condition. The management
determines the provision for impairment of investments in
film production taking into account the estimation of cash
flows. Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, a material impairment loss may arise.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AN

D KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key
(e)

®

¢

o

sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of goodwill

The Group performs annual review on impairment of
goodwill in accordance with the accounting policy
of the Group. The recoverable amounts of CGUs
are determined based on value-in-use calculation.
This calculation requires the use of estimates and
assumptions made by the management on the future
operation of the business, pre-tax discount rates,
and other assumptions underlying the value-in-use
calculation.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

In accordance with HKAS 16, the Group estimates the
useful lives of property, plant and equipment in order
to determine the amount of depreciation expenses to
be recorded. The useful lives are estimated at the time
the asset is acquired based on historical experience,
the expected usage, wear and tear of the assets, as
well as technical obsolescence arising from changes
in the market demands or service output of the assets.
The Group also performs annual review on whether the
assumptions made on useful lives continue to be valid.

Fair value measurement and valuation processes

Some of the Group’s assets and liabilities are measured
at fair value for financial reporting purposes. The
management is responsible for determination of the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for the fair
value measurements.

The Group uses valuation techniques that include inputs
that are not based on observable market data to estimate
the fair value of certain types of financial instruments.
Notes 5, 26, 27 and 28 respectively provide detailed
information about the valuation techniques, inputs and
key assumptions used in the determination of the fair
value of various assets and liabilities.

Emperor Culture Group Limited
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(h)

Current income taxes

The Group'’s subsidiaries that operate in Hong Kong
and The People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) are
subject to income tax. Significant judgement is required
in determining the provision for income taxes. There are
many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. The Group recognises liabilities for
anticipated tax based on estimates of whether additional
taxes will be due.

Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax in the period in
which such determination is made.

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a)

(b)

Categories of financial instruments

4. EXREFHERMEFTFFEEERE
ZEBERR (&

EF T RERRZETERR (F)

(h) FHE#H
AEEREFERPEARKLME ([H
B ) 2E 2 B A RIABMATSN - BE
PRISBRREFEEELERHAG -RNEFE
E5BRET - B2 X5 Mt B9 A
R R HIFET - ARBIZRE S
HIRBIMNEBIR IR 2 (EFT REEMIER
BHIRGEEMEL ZAE-

WZFEE 2 REBBEREIRLR
ZERIR ARERR e EFLER
IRTEHIAN 2 FRSHE

5. a@T A
() MIE>HE

2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET TFATT
Financial assets ERMEE
Loans and receivables (including ERkERER (BERE
cash and bank balances) MIR1T4ET) 513,145
Financial assets at FVTPL BARBETABZEZ
TREE 60,924
574,069
Financial liabilities i h=Ri
Amortised cost B SHAK AR 166,077

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
investments in film production, trade and other
receivables, deposits, contingent consideration
receivable, financial assets at FVTPL, cash and bank
balances, trade and other payables and amounts due
to related companies/non-controlling interests. Details of
these financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks include market risk (including foreign
currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)
There has been no change to the types of the Group’s

exposure in respect of financial instruments or the
manner in which it manages and measures the risks.

o

Market risk

(i)

Foreign currency risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and
the PRC, and is exposed to foreign exchange
risk arising from various currency exposures,
primarily with respect to Renminbi (“RMB”). Foreign
exchange risk arises from future commercial
transactions, recognised assets and liabilities
denominated in a currency that is not the functional
currency of the individual group companies and net
investments in foreign operations.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign
currency denominated monetary assets and
monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting period
are as follows:

5. TR (£&)
(b) BEARSEEENKE (&

REE G2 R T AR R AT
AEBEE Nt EZFAR 2T AL E

Bk -
G0
() SMERS

AEBETRERE KBRS Wk
RIREEEE 2E R ER T2M0
ARE (TAR¥ A/ -EXLRR
BAREERS CHIABENE
& (CAERI &= B A 7)1 Th s & # LASH
EH¥IE) - ARBINEB 2 FRE
B

REBLSNEHEZEREEME
BRENREHRZEEENT:

Liabilities Assets
a8fE BE
2018 2017 2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TRz T TR FAL
RMB AR 41,983 81277
Sensitivity analysis BRRE DT

The Group is mainly exposed to the effects of
fluctuation in RMB.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to
a 5% increase or decrease in HK$ against RMB.
5% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting
foreign currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represents the management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change
in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation at the
year ended for a 5% change in foreign currency
rates. A positive number below indicates a decrease
in the Group’s loss where the HK$ strengthen 5%
against the relevant currency. For a 5% weakening
of the HK$ against the relevant currency, there
would be an equal and opposite impact on the loss,
and the balance below would be negative.

Emperor Culture Group Limited
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risk (continued)

(i)

(i1)

Foreign currency risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis (continued)

Profit or loss

i F B 1B

SRITHE (&)
(b) BIHEMRETEEENMBE (&)

miEEkE (&)
() SMEE S (&)
BREDHT ()
Impact of RMB
INLEZ
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FHET
(1,965)

In the opinion of the Directors, the sensitivity analysis
is unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange
risk as the year end exposure at the end of the
reporting period does not reflect the exposure
during the year.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value
or cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The
Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk
in relation to fixed-rate bank deposits and also
exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to
variable-rate bank deposits. The Group currently
does not have policy on cash flow hedges of interest
rate risk. However, the management monitors
interest rate exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need
arises.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for variable-
rate bank deposits at the end of the reporting
period. The analysis is prepared assuming the
financial instruments outstanding at the end of the
reporting period were outstanding for the whole
year. A 10 basis points increase or decrease for
variable-rate bank deposits is used when reporting
interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents the management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in
interest rates.
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risk (continued)

o

(ii)

(iii)

Interest rate risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

If interest rates for the variable-rate bank deposits
had been 10 basis points (2017: 10 basis points)
higher and all other variables were held constant,
the Group’s loss for the year would decrease by
HK$112,000 (2017: HK$110,000).

If the interest rates had been lower in an opposite
magnitude and all other variables were held
constant, the potential effect on the Group’s loss for
the year would be equal and opposite.

Other price risks

Equity security price risk relates to the risk that
the fair values or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market prices (other than changes in interest rates
and foreign exchange rates). The Group is exposed
to equity security price risk arising from individual
equity investments classified as financial assets at
FVTPL.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below indicates the
approximate change in the Group'’s loss for the year
and other components of equity in response to the
reasonably possible changes in the relevant stock
market prices, to which the Group has significant
exposure at the end of the reporting period.

In response to the reasonably possible change in
the market price of the listed securities, if the equity
price had been 5% higher or lower, the Group's
loss for the year would decrease or increase by
HK$1,038,000 (2017: HK$2,622,000).
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)
Credit risk

As at 30 June 2018, the Group's maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the
Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

In order to minimise credit risk, the management has
delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual trade debt
and debt investments at the end of the reporting period
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the Directors
consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because
the counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 50% (2017:
40%) and 90% (2017: 93%) of the total trade receivables
which were due from the Group’s largest customer and
the five largest customers respectively within film and
TV programme production and investment operation
and cinema operation (2017: film and TV programme
production and investment operation, event investment
operation and cinema operation). The Directors consider
that there is no significant credit risk on the trade
receivables from the five largest customers given their
strong financial background and good creditability. The
remaining trade receivables balances are spread over a
number of customers.
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

5. @RI H (&)
(b) BEEBREERENKE (&

(continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining
adequate bank deposits and cash, monitoring forecast

and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles
of financial assets and liabilities.

As at 30 June 2018, based on the existing levels of
bank balances, the Group will be able to meet its future
cash flow requirements. Accordingly, the management
considers that the Group's liquidity risk is minimal.

The following table details remaining contractual maturity
for its non-derivative financial liabilities that will result
in cash outflow and has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to
pay. The table includes principal cash flows.

MEBEZEE
AEEFBERARRTERLES &
KBPARERRSREAREH SRE
ENABEZIMERER  EAEERBE
TR -

20186 A30H * RIFIREFFIRITAE R K
T AREEBEAmEERARESRE
koA BEEERAANEREZRBES
BB E K

TRAEMAKEHER SR Z T E S R’
BEZHRTAOIHA MRBEAKER
EFRZPAPZERABZRNTARS
MEFL - TRERFEIZRERE -

2018 20185
Non-derivative financial liabilities: ~##T4£2BEME:
Trade and other payables B REMEMNR 92,962 92,962 92,962
Amounts due to related ERBERNFFE
companies 15,553 15,553 15,553
Amount due to non-controlling FEREE IR
interests B 44,870 44,870 44,870
153,385 153,385 153,385
2017 20174
Non-derivative financial liabiliies: — FT4Z£RELE -
Trade and other payables BHREMERR - 105,158 - - 105,158 105,158
Amounts due to related ERBERNFFE
companies - 16,049 - - 16,049 16,049
Amount due to non-controlling B =
interests ] - 44,870 - - 44870 44870
166,077 - - 166,077 166,077
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5. ®RTH (&)
(c) AAREMEE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c) Fair value measurement

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. The following
table gives information about how the fair values of
these financial assets are determined (in particular, the
valuation techniques and inputs used), as well as the
level of the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value
measurements are categorised (Levels 1 to 3) based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements is observable.

The following table shows an analysis of the financial
assets recorded at fair value by the fair value hierarchy:

HREMEEUAABETEZAEST
THREEZALEHE
AREFETEREENSREHRERA
AEBETE TRIBHILSEREEZA
AREENANEE AR (CHERATRE
ZEERE REASE)  URBEAR
BEAEZHABBZAIBEREEAAR
BEFEMBAZAALBESH (F12
34%) °

TRITEAABEEREI D ZARR
BEANRZEBEEZNIT:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F1R H24% E3% st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET TR THERT FTERT
2018 20184
Financial assets at FVTPL: # QA (EEFABE
ZEBEE:
Contingent consideration FEW S AR B
receivable
Equity securities listed BB LMz R’RA
in Hong Kong EeBs
2017 20174
Financial assets at FVTPL: A A 1EEFFA 18z
ZEBEE
Contingent consideration FEW S A B
receivable - - 8,483 8,483
Equity securities listed BB LMz R’RA
in Hong Kong EeE2 52,441 - - 52,441
52,441 - 8,483 60,924

The fair value of the financial assets traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices at the end of
the reporting period. A market is regarded as active if
quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an
exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service,
or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual
and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s
length basis. The quoted market price used for financial
assets held by the Group is the current bid price. These
financial assets are included in Level 1.
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c) Fair value measurement (continued)

Fair value of the Group'’s financial assets that
are measured at fair value on a recurring basis
(continued)

As described in note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements, the fair value of contingent consideration
receivable in relation to the acquisition of Jade Dynasty
Multi-Media Limited (“JDMM") and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as “JDMM Group”) are measured
at fair value under the income approach and are taken
into consideration of whether the Profit Guarantee
(as defined in note 26) is probable to be fulfilled. The
unobservable inputs used in respect of the valuation are
(i) expected future profitability for three scenarios and (ii)
probability distribution of three different conditions.

The fair value measurement is negatively correlated to
the expected results of JDMM Group.

The Directors have engaged with an independent
firm of valuers, Flagship Appraisals and Consulting
Limited (“Flagship”) (formerly known as “Flagship
Consulting (Hong Kong) Limited”) to determine the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair value
measurements.

In estimating the fair value of the asset, the management
worked closely with Flagship to establish the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs to the model and
reported the findings to the Directors at the end of
reporting period to explain the cause of fluctuations in fair
value of the asset.

Information about the valuation techniques and inputs
used in determining the fair value of contingent
consideration receivable are disclosed above.

The following table presents the changes in contingent
consideration receivable which is classified as Level 3

5. TR (£&)
(c) AAEENE (&

BREEMEELUNABETEBZEIESE
EHEEZNAEE(F)

HANER & B 15 ¥R KR Y 5E26Pm it - A REUR
BIE2P2HBERAR ([EEHZK
B REMBEAR (G [ E2AZRE
@] 2 EREIAREZ 2R EBETR
WD EA R RABERTE - WART SO AR
& (F3& RMEoe) B A AER - PE A
BRGENEZERE ABER)=ER
RHTEHIR R B FIGE ) K (i =R TR
SNV RFIBE N -

RRBEFEETENSHREE A
HiE R BRI

EEC BB HEREE S ET AR
RARLHE (THEE]) (AT RN
(FR)ERRADEEARAAEER
EZBEHERT LB ARE-

REFTEEZ AABER  BEEEER
AR AR EA BA N A ERT R
ABUE - W EHIRAEFERAERIA
FHAZEEA A BEKBHREA -

RETERBKAREBZ AR BEMER
ZAHERTI RBABIEE RN £ XXHEE -

TREIISEAERTEZ FRHAK
B2 28:

instrument:
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$'000
TR FET
At the beginning of the year REFH) -
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries U 8] B A 7] E £
(note 35) (K77#35) 8,145
(Loss)/gain on fair value change for FE R4 BEEZE
the year (E518) ez 338
At the end of the year RER 8,483
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRMTE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 5. ®RT A (£&)
(c) Fair value measurement (continued) (c) 2AEESE (&

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that
are measured at fair value on a recurring basis
(continued)

Due to the variety of basis of determination used in profit
forecast, it is not practicable to provide any meaningful
sensitivity in relation to the critical assumptions
concerning future profitability of acquired business
and the potential impact on the fair value change on
the contingent consideration receivable at the end of
reporting period.

However, if the probability of worst and best scenarios
is 5% lower or higher and the probability of normal
scenarios is 10% lower or higher, there will not be
any material impact on the fair value change of the
contingent consideration receivable (2017: within 1%). If
the expected result after tax of the acquired business is
10% lower or higher, there will not be any material impact
on the fair value change of the contingent consideration
receivable (2017: within 1%).

During the year, there were no transfers between Level 1
and Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level 3.

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and out
of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the events
or change in circumstances that caused the transfer.

Other than disclosed above, the fair values of other
financial assets and financial liabilities are determined
in accordance with generally accepted pricing models
based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of all
other financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost at the end of each reporting period
approximate their corresponding fair values. As at 30
June 2017, the fair value of the asset classified as held
for sale was HK$47,600,000, which was measured at the
lower of its carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell.

BEEMEEUA B ETEBZAEEH
EHEEZNAMEE(E)

mRRMNERERNEEERSA TR -
RBEHRAEEBARE 2 RREF
REWHARERREEES 2 EET
EMEARRKRMIELEMABZOHE
EAMAATHEAR

BENI ExERREBROAGEME
B B IN5% & IE #1589 AT B MR
AL II10% BT EHEWKAREBEZ R
AREEZEENEARTLE(R017F 1%
W) - B AEBHBRRT%ZEERD
AL II10% BT EHEWKAREZR
AREEZEENEARTZLE(017F 1%
) o

AAREE - FAREFEAR 7 fE EEE R
R B 2 R L SR 3

AEEZBRABNSIBEREZ FHNE
MEEHHRERALABEERZHNE
AR -

PR DX PR BRESN b e REE RS R
BEZARBENRAREERAET
PRBREREDSNETE

EERE REREHRITHHENAAR
ZHhEBEEMNCREERERBECER
EHEARE 2 AR EBEMRE - R2017F6
A308  EARFELECEEZ AAE
{6/4547,600,000/%8 70 * JhiZ EEREEE A
AEBERHEKAZEEETS-

6. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. EXEKRERE
The Group manages its capital to ensure that the entities in REEEREER  UERAER ZEEBKA
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern while RHELE WEBBLER RERGEHR BN
maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation EHREARR - BB FEMLL - NER 2
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy BRI ERTE o

remains unchanged from prior years.

Emperor Culture Group Limited

o
RS EEEEERAT ,1111
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts (which
include amounts due to related companies/non-controlling
interests, as disclosed in note 32), net of cash and bank
balances and equity attributable to the owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The Directors review the capital structure on a regular basis.
As part of this review, the Directors consider the cost of
capital and the risks associated with each class of capital.
Based on recommendations of the Directors, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through issue of new
shares, new borrowings raising and repayment of borrowings.

6.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR

EXERER (&)
A EE Y EAREOIEE (SEENHEA
7/ SRR AR - R I ER) - 48T
BRS RIRTTEETT RAA RIGEH A R L
(BERBITRARHER) -

BRI IRARE fER IR 2 — &6
D BFEBEANARZRERN ZHBRE
RoRBEEFER AEEKEBBITHE
MEEEREREETEHEERREARE-

REVENUE 7. WA
An analysis of the Group’s revenue is as follows: REEZWADHTIAT :
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FH&T
Cinema operation Bibr & 31,829
Film and TV programme production ~ B M EBIREE RUEEIEE K&
and investment and others HAh 26,251

Event investment and others FBEBRE KHA 902
Investment in securities BHEE (14,057)

44,925

SEGMENT INFORMATION

For the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance, information reported to the Executive
Directors of the Company, being the chief operating decision
makers (the “CODM"), focus on types of goods or services
delivered or provided.

In the manner consistent with the way in which information is
reported internally to the CODM for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment, the business
activities of the Group are organised into the following
operating segments:

—  Cinema operation
—  Film and TV programme production and investment and
others (including production, distribution and licensing of

animated TV episodes and theatrical films)

— Event investment and others (including artiste
management and music productions)

— Investment in securities

Emperor Culture Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018 F
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TREER

O RARRIEDBRAME - AL A
TEE(MEBEREE ((TERERE
£])) SMZ ARV IR WK
REEAE -

RETERMERTEIELERREFELER
DREEFRFENER 2 NEEZ X5

DR TINEEDIR:

~ EERE2E

— B REASEMERBERA (B
PDEERE EREREY 2 0E BTR
1)

— RERBRENAEM (BREBEAREBRER
BIRA R FEERUE)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8.

Information regarding the Group's reportable segments is

presented below:

(a) Segment revenue and results

TEER (E)
AEE Y HEDEEHZIINT -

(a) 7EBRARFEE

2018
Segment revenue

20184

aE L ON 65,578 24,633 91,202

Segment results

DEEE (65,838)  (57,066) (121,913)

Interest income

Loss on fair value change
in respect of contingent
consideration receivable

Unallocated corporate
expenses

Change in fair value of
financial assets at FVTPL

Loss from operations
Loss on disposal
of subsidiaries

Loss before taxation

MEBHA
FERHAREZRA
BEZHEHE

1,890

RENPERAX

BRABEEFABEZ
SREAEZAAEE

(31,691),
(158,347)

BEXBBR
HEMBLRRZEE

BRI A0 B 1R

(s

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEEX{LEXEEERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RR M

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(a) Segment revenue and results (continued) () PBRARESE (&£
Film and TV
programme
production
and
investment Event
and others  investment
Cinema EF&EHE andothers Investment
operation EFE&{EEE  FKEIEE in securities Consolidated
BfreiE RERHEM RERHEM BHRE Ra
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHET FHAT FET THT
2017 20174
Segment revenue kL ON 31,829 26,251 902 (14,057) 44,925
Segment results DEEE (18,944) (65,103) 902 (9,410) (92,555)
Interest income FBUA 862
Gain on fair value change WS AREZ DA
in respect of contingent BEZH N
consideration receivable 338
Unallocated corporate AEDERT
expenses (5,602)
Change in fair value of BRRBEFABRZ
financial assets at FVTPL £ BEEZ AR EBE
g (7,115)
Loss from operations REEB BB (104,072)
Gain on disposal HERE ARz E
of associates 34,825
Finance costs B RS BKAR (6)
Loss before taxation BrEiATE B (69,253)

o

8. PHENR(#&)

Segment revenue reported above represents revenue
generated from external customers. There were no
inter-segment revenue in the current year (2017: Nil).
During the year ended 30 June 2017, segment revenue
in respect of investment in securities represented
the difference between the total sale proceeds of
HK$83,667,000 and the total investment costs of those
securities disposed of during that year.

Segment results represent the profit earned/(loss
suffered) by each segment without allocation of interest
income, central administration costs which mainly
include Directors’ emoluments and corporate legal
and professional fees, fair value changes in respect
of contingent consideration receivable and financial
assets at FVTPL, and the relevant loss/gain on disposal
of subsidiaries and associates. This is the measure
reported to the CODM for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance.

Emperor Culture Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018 F
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Pt 2/ HFERA TR BEINE S 2 ik
A e REEIED AR Z WA (20174
i) « B E2017E6 A30R | FfE - BE
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83,667,000/ LEZFE HEZSESHZ
BITER A2 =58 -

DRFBEIER D BERGT LA BHA
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REEXER)  HERSIARELIZA
REBEFABEZEHEEGE AR
BEEE) AR HENE AR LEE QR
Bz EEBaRmins s (5
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS HRER M EE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. DEER (&)
(b) Segment assets and liabilities (b) PEEEREE

2018 20184

Segment assets DEEE 295,459 321,955 638,164

Unallocated assets RENEE 264,444

Consolidated assets HERE 902,608

Segment liabilities DEAE 139,906 159,720

Unallocated liabilities rENAR 1,748

Consolidated liabilities =L 161,468

2017 20174

Segment assets DEEE 91,616 454,127 2,880 52,441 601,064

Unallocated assets RENEE 452,878

Consolidated assets RERE 1,053,942

Segment liabilities DEAE 71,490 98,555 - - 170,045

Unallocated liabilities rENAR 3,003

Consolidated liabilities =L 173,048

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance RTERSBERRERTRASERSE

and allocating resources between segments: BR:

- all assets are allocated to reportable segments other — BRESBNRERERLEEERE
than unallocated head office and corporate assets BHEESSESN FTBEEEHYDE
that are not attributable to segments; and EWENE K

- all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments - BRE/ICESBABERERHEZE
other than unallocated corporate financial liabilities ERMIN B BB RERS
that are not attributable to segments. D

F
Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX{LEXEBERAT ,1151
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS HRER MR

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. DEER (&)
(c) Other segment information (c) HibagER

2018 20185
Additions to property, plantand ~ RENE  EERF
equipment 178,885
Amortisation of film and TV BY RERHERELE
programme rights
Amortisation of intangible assets ~ EF/EEEH
Cost of investments in film REZRELRERA
production
Depreciation of property, plantand ~ #1% =Rk E 2 E
equipment
Loss on disposal of property, plant &N % BERZEZ
and equipment BB
Impairment loss recognised in FFIISERAZAERSSE:
respect of;
- goodwill -EE
-investments in fim production ~ ~REFEUEZRE
- trade receivables vl
Written off of film and TV programme 2 7 EF R EGER
production in progress A
2017 20174
Additions to property, plantand ~ RENE  EERF
equipment 22,122 532 -
Amortisation of film and TV BY RERHERELSE
programme rights - 4,556 -
Amortisation of intangible assets ~ EF/EE - 1847 -
Cost of investment in fim production 1 &5 242 IR EMK K - 18,586 -
Depreciation of property, plantand  #1% =Rk E 2 E
equipment 8,750 225 -
Loss on disposal of property, plant &N % BERZEZ
and equipment B 1 32 -
Impairment loss recognised in HTFIISERAZAESSE:
respect of;
- goodwill -EE - 2,636 -
—fimand TV programme rights ~ —E & R E 5 £ B i - 2,485 -
- investment in film production -REFRELRE - 62,845 -
- other receivables —E R - 3,000 -
Reversal of impairment loss BN ER L HEBE
recognised in respect of #m

trade receivables - (69) -

178,948

7,150
2,015

6,430

16,387

35

22,654
4,556
1,847

18,586
8,975

33
2,636
2,485

62,845
3,000

(69)

P\
, 116 l Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX{LEXEEBEHERAF
ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018 ¥
\ 4



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
(d) Geographical information

The Group’s revenue from external customers by location
of sales and information about its non-current assets by
location of assets are detailed as below:

8. DEEH (&)

(d) &R
RNEBIREE I D2 BELUINEP
ZWAREIREEI DM 2 IEREE
EERFNIT:

The PRC =8|
Hong Kong )
Macau SR P
Hungary ) 7F %I
Others Hi

*

The above non-current assets have excluded the financial
instruments such as contingent consideration receivable.

(e) Information about major customers
Revenue from one (2017. one) major customer
contributing over 10% of the Group’s revenue for the year
was HK$16,745,000 (2017: HK$20,697,000), which were
derived from the segment of fim and TV programme
production and investment and others.

9. OTHER REVENUE

91,202 44,925

235,739 72,204
95,921 121,140
1,163 -

= 10 =
332,823

193,344

Y bRZIERBEETEEERTA (F)
e AR RE) -

(e) TEEFEH
MARERE (R EBU AT0%IA £z —
Z(2017E : —R)TEEFP WAL
16,745,000/ 7T (20174 : 20,697,0007%8
TT)  DARBAEY R ERE B RERIRE
K B A48 -

9. Hfttliz

RITAEWA

Bank interest income

Compensation income ERA

Dividend income AR BIA

Exchange gain, net B 5 W o 7 2R

Gain on fair value change in respect of JEW K AKE R A EEE
contingent consideration receivable Wz (#17#26)
(note 26)

Listed corporate bond interest income M A RIEH 2 F B WA
(note 28) (K1:#28)

Sundry income HIBIRA

E2)Jrd

862
7,864
4,860

338

1,328
1,474

16,726

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEEX{LEXEEERAT ,
ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018 &3k
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS HRER MR

10. LOSS FROM OPERATIONS 10. REEKE 2 EiE

Loss from operations has been arrived &% 2 BEE KR,
at after charging/(crediting): (FtA) T3&18

Auditor's remuneration for audit services 1% # iR 2 1% Eibl BN & 850
Amortisation of film and TV programme B & B4R &1 B i 2 8
rights (included in cost of sales) (R ASHERA) 4,556
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEEE
(included in administrative expenses) (T ATTERZ) 1,847
Cost of investments in film production R E & 8 E 2 R E MK A
(included in cost of sales) (FrASHEAR) 18,586
Cost of inventories sold (included in EEFEXAR
cost of sales) (Bt ASHERA) 626
Depreciation of property, plant and ME R REHIITE
equipment 8,975
Loss on disposal of property, plant and  H&E ¥ % - #22 &R E 2 B8
equipment 33
Loss/(gain) on fair value change in KEHQEJE%REZUT BEEZE
respect of contingent consideration BB (W) * (K:726)
receivable* (note 26) (338)
Impairment loss recognised in BT F EER R EEE
respect of:
— goodwill* — P 2636
— film and TV programme rights* —%%&%%ﬁﬁn B iR 2,485
— investments in film production* REZRIEZIRE 62,845
— trade and other receivables* —ﬁ%&,ﬁ\ﬁtﬁﬁﬂﬁm 3,000
Operating leases in respect of rented ~ HEVEZKLEHE
premises 7,702
Written off of film and TV programme & 2 B K EAE E M
production in progress -
Exchange (gain)/loss, net PE N (Wam) EB1EFRE 97
Reversal of impairment loss recognised & 5 & Wk FE 72 2 Bl (B &5 18
in respect of trade receivables B (o) (69)
*  The aggregation of these items (other than the gain on * ZEIHERB 8% (BREZE2017F6H30H
fair value change in respect of contingent consideration iftZﬁ%‘k%ﬁF’&ﬁFfﬁi@?%m
receivable of HK$338,000 for the year ended 30 June 338,000 LN T ARG Bm R HEME
2017) are included in “Other operating expenses” in e ERANZ (B8 H] -
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
11. FINANCE COSTS 1. B AR
During the year ended 30 June 2017, the amount represented %ii2017¢6ﬁ 0HIEFE  BETEIIER
bank charges. TFEE-
,1181 Emperor Culture Group Limited ZEX{tEXEEHRAF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS HRER M EE

12. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 12. EERAIFEX

2018 2017

HK$’000 HK$'000

FE T FBT

Salaries and other benefits e MEMmEF 11,187
Retirement benefit scheme contributions 3R /K48 K 5121 ¢ 5% 757
11,944

Retirement benefit scheme

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of
the scheme are held separately from those of the Group, in
funds under the control of independent trustees. The Group
and each employee make mandatory contributions of 5% of
relevant payroll costs with monthly cap of HK$1,500 to the
scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of state-managed retirement benefit schemes
operated by the PRC government. The Group is required to
contribute a certain percentage of its payroll to the retirement
benefit schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligation of
the Group with respect to the retirement benefit schemes is to
make the required contributions under the scheme.

Equity compensation benefits
Share Options

The Company operates a share option scheme, details of
which are set out under the heading “Share Options” in note
34.

13. TAXATION CREDIT

13.

RIRERFHE
AEBESETHBAERETERE EHRH
HRATED A& - et Bl 2 BER B EEAE
B2 REGRH  WERAKE 2 EEDF - ANE
B85 2 B IR & AN H5% (A At 81
HsRdI R ERAE A1,5008 7T

REBZHBEMBLARZEER T RHPERK
B2 B BIRNE NG & 2 B8 - A5
B/AiE S H < X188 0 A% FRIKGE
At B K o AR B B2 R IR IR &I B
E2 B TERNZIRZT 8 2 eI THK

REMEEF

BRE

RARRE —BEEEE ) ARAFFHITENH]
AE34 [FERcHE] —Hf o

BRI R

Taxation credit comprises: MIBE R BE -
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET

Hong Kong Profits Tax: BEBNEH

Current tax NEARRIE -
Over-provision in prior year EFEBREEE 12
12
Deferred taxation EEBIIA 163
175

Emperor Culture Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018 &k
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RR M

13. TAXATION CREDIT (continued)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profits for both years. No provision for Hong
Kong Profits Tax has been made in the consolidated financial
statements as the Group has no assessable profit derived
from Hong Kong for both years.

Under the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the PRC (the “EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the
tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January
2008 onwards. Macau subsidiary is subject to Macau
Complementary Tax at the maximum progressive rate of 12%
on the estimated assessable profits for the year (2017: N/A).
No provision for the PRC Enterprise Income Tax and Macau
Complementary Tax have been made in the consolidated
financial statements as the Group has no assessable profits
arising in the PRC and Macau for both years.

The taxation credit for the year can be reconciled to the loss

13.BiHER (&)
FEMNEBIRIEME K 2 AT BRT S
IR E16.5%:t H - R AR B M EF Z
WHEABRBELERRVGH  FIL - WAL
BMBRAHER BN EHEE-

BIEPEPEMEIE ([EEMEHRE]) &
TEMBBEAZERAT  FRMNBARZH
EAM2008F 1 H1H BRI A25% < BFIHIE A A
RAFERGFTERT R 2 s REBE
12% AR PIFTIS M TR (20174F - TNEA ) ©
ARAEBNMRETE &SP RRPE
AR EER T A - it - WERER A B 75 3R
RETRP B EFAEH MR PIFT S TR
o

FREMBESRGABA R ERER

before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss N2 BRBIRTEBE RN T :
and other comprehensive income as follows:
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Loss before taxation PR A ES 18 (69,253)
Tax rate in relevant tax jurisdictions LA EEERE B EFTE
ZFIB 12,639
Tax effect of expenses not deductible  FAFRA M = NI HURF > 2
for tax purpose 2 (6,522)
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax ~ FLEIE T 5 BBZRRWA Z
purpose MG 8,165
Tax effect of estimated tax losses not KR TE B H E 18 2 Fi 7%
recognised - (15,180)
Tax effect of deductible temporary RIERA R E R ZE 2 B
differences not recognised o 163
Utilisation of estimated tax losses B AL RIARTER 2 BT IE
previously not recognised E518 896
Over-provision in prior year EFHBERE 12
Others Hh 2
Taxation credit for the year FEBIBEEK R 175

ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018 %
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS HRER M EE

14.LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 14. X RBEEANELHBRER
THE OWNERS OF THE COMPANY
The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share attributable RARHAE AERERERREEEIE L
to the owners of the Company is based on the following data: THIEURETE -
Loss attributable to the owners of the T EERREAR K #&E B
Company for the purpose of basic FTRAZARRRIHESB A
and diluted loss per share e B 18 (153,797) (62,327)

Weighted average number of ordinary 5t & &% & A & #E E518

shares for the purpose of basic and FT A 2 & imAR hn g

diluted loss per share 5 IR R 2,487,313
For the years ended 30 June 2018 and 2017, the diluted loss B 220185 K20176 A30R L FZ - G #
per share was the same as the basic loss per share as there SEEEESREANEEIMER - TIBRAMIES
was no dilutive potential ordinary shares for both years. EREAETEEYE  EBR-

15. DIVIDENDS 15. ;R &
The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend EFSTEZMEE2018F6A30H (FFE R
in respect of the year ended 30 June 2018 (2017: Nil). HERIRL B (20174F - £E) -
.\
Emperor Culture Group Limited HEEX{LEXEEERAF ,1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS HRER MR

16. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE

HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

(@)

o

Directors’ emoluments

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the Directors
during the years ended 30 June 2018 and 2017 are as
follows:

16.EEMERTEREFMAL

(a) EEM<E

H 22018 N2017F6A30H IEFE B

NRENEESZMEMT:

2018 20185

Executive Directors HITEE

Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa' BEETL

Mr. Wong Chi Fai? BEELE

Mr. Yeung Ching Loong, Alexander? B EE L 42

Ms. Shirley Percy Hughes? Haikig e

Mr. Albert Lee® MR 4

Indigpencdent Non-executive BUFHTEE

Directors

Mr. Ng Hoi Yue EETRE

Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene RERLL

Mr. Ho Tat Kuen* Gz St

2017 2017

Executive Directors HITEE

Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa' BEERL 38 - - - 3

Mr. Wong Chi Fai? BEBEE 3% - - - 38

Mr. Yeung Ching Loong, Alexander? 15 2 %t A2 38 - - - 3

Ms. Shirley Percy Hughes? Haikis e 38 - - - 3

Mr. Albert Leg? MEEEL 3 - - - 38

Mr. Direk Lim® Direk Lim#5 45 201 - - - 201

Dr. Fan Rongzhang? BRYEL 81 - - - 81

Independent Non-executive BUFHTEE

Directors

M. Ng Hol Yue ST 190 - - - 190

Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene RER LT 180 - - - 180

Mr. Ho Tat Kuen* faT R A 109 - - - 109

Mr. Li Fui Lung, Danny’ FHELL 87 87
1,038 - - - 1,038

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEEX{LEXEBERAA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

16. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE

1&§§m3&£%%%ﬁmxi

HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (continued) (48
(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (a) EE=M<E (2Z)
Notes: Mt -
' Appointed as Executive Director on 31 March 2017 and ! 201743 ANBEZESHITES K
becomes Chairperson of the board of directors (the H2017F4A20B B AARARIESE
“Board”) since 20 April 2017. ([EEg)XFE-
2 Appointed as Executive Directors on 31 March 2017. 2 HR2017F3ASIHEZEAHITES -
3 Appointed and retired as Executive Director on 31 March 8 2 Bl R201743A318 k2017411 522
2017 and 22 November 2017 respectively. REZERRE
4 Appointed as Independent Non-executive Director on 23 4 R20165F11 A23B E L RE L FEHTT
November 2016. B=x-
5  Resigned as Executive Director and ceased to be 5 R2017F4A20H AN TEERTHA
Chairman of the Board on 20 April 2017. EEEEE-
6 Resigned as Executive Director on 20 April 2017. 6 R2017F4A20B BT HITES -
7 Retired as Independent Non-executive Director on 23 7 H2016F 11 A23H R E B IEHITE
November 2016. °
(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) TEESHFMAL
The five highest paid individuals did not include any AEEREHRSHFMA LTI TBEAR

director of the Company for the year (2017: included
three directors), details of whose emoluments are set out
above. The aggregate emoluments of the five (2017: the
remaining two) highest paid individuals for both years are

AEAES (201745 BHR=%EF)  H
B2 5B TS _ £ X - R B E S T
% (075 HTMA)ZSFHMAL
Z BN EARERANT

as follows:
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TATT
Salaries and other benefits e MHEHMER 1,473
Retirement benefit scheme contributions R 4E K 5T 2 ¢ 5% 27
1,500
The emoluments of those individuals are within the e \ B4 T BRI T
following bands:
Number of individuals
A
2018 2017
Nil to HK$1,000,000 T EA ,OOO,O()_()E%?E 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,001& T &E
2,000,000/ 7T -
2

For the years ended 30 June 2018 and 2017, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the five
highest paid individuals, including the Directors, as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. Except as disclosed
above, none of the Directors has waived or agreed to
waive any emolument during both years.

Emperor Culture Group Limited 3%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS HRER MR

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. 9% R RERHE

Cost: B

At 1 July 2016 1201657 A1H - 29,180 7,717 28,933 65,830
Exchange realignment BEE 5 A - (402) (90) (396) (888)
Acquisition of subsidiaries  YtBEHI B A 7] (#1:#35)

(note 35) - - 188 - 188
Additions NE 21,474 345 644 3 22,466
Disposals & - - (33) - (33)
At 30 June 2017 and 20176 A30H &

1 July 2017 20177 A18 21,474 29,123 8,426 87,563
Exchange realignment B B 635 862 209 2,550
Additions NE 163,532 4,915 1,506 178,948
Disposals HE - - (1,166)

Transfer R (181,245) 119,397 4,325
Disposal of subsidiaries HERB AR - - (147) (147)
At 30 June 2018 1201856 H30H 4,396 154,297 13,153 267,748

Accumulated depreciation ZiHiTERIEE:
and impairment:

At 1 July 2016 R2016F7H18 - 1,708 1,905 2,786 6,399
Exchange realignment PE 5 A - (15) (3) (34) (52)
Charged for the year FEMG 2,902 1,668 4,405 8,975
At 30 June 2017 and A201746 A308 &

1 July 2017 2017%7A1H 3,570
Exchange realignment bE 5 A B 66
Charged for the year FEHkR 2,075
Eliminated on disposals 5 B 3 84 = (1,131) -
Disposal of subsidiaries HEKB AR = (147) -
At 30 June 2018 ®20186 A30H 12,213 4,433 14,200
Carrying amount: BRMEE:
At 30 June 2018 ®201856 A30H 142,084 8,720 81,702 236,902
At 30 June 2017 201746 H30H 21,474 24,528 4,856 21,383 72,241

P\
,1 241 Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX{LEXEEBEHRAF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRMTE

18. GOODWILL 18. 8
HK$’000
FER
Cost: B
At 1 July 2016 7201647818 -
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 35) UeBEBT B A &) (H14E35) 98,250
At 30 June 2017, 1 July 2017 and A201756H30H - 201757H1B &
30 June 2018 20186 H30H
Accumulated impairment: iR E :
At 1 July 2016 7201647818 -
Impairment loss recognised for the year FEWMRZREREE 2,636
At 30 June 2017 and 1 July 2017 72017466 4308 201747 A 1A
Impairment loss recognised for the year FEWMRZMERE
At 30 June 2018 20186 H30H
Carrying amount: FREE :
At 30 June 2018 20186 H30H
At 30 June 2017 20176 H30H 95,614

Goodwill represents the amount attributable to the acquisition
of JDMM Group, details of which are set out in note 35. The
goodwill is primarily attributable to the significant synergies
expected to arise in connection with the production,
distribution and licensing of animated TV episodes and
theatrical films business.

Impairment test on goodwill

The goodwill is allocated to the production, distribution
and licensing of animated TV episodes and theatrical films
operation.

As at 30 June 2018, the management considered that the
profitability and the operating performance of the production,
distribution and licensing of animated TV episodes and
theatrical films business was affected by the change in the
market condition in the PRC which causes the deferral of
certain animation projects to be released and its expected
income is affected. Hence, the management took a prudent
view to forecast the production, distribution and licensing of
animated TV episodes and theatrical films business.

Emperor Culture Group Limited REX{tEZXEEERLT ,1 25\1
\ _4

BENEARBEENSREEBMEL
SE BB H N5 B X ERENTA
HBEL S ABRME 2B EBRF & ME
TR RUE BT RIRERS

A& ZRERR
BERIEHEERAEREREZ 2 &
1 BT R R TS

20186 A30H  BEIRER R BEBHRH &
KR ER 2 RUE BT R RN 2 BAIRE
N EBRARB|PETISRRE L 2 8 -
BRETHEERR L HRITEE N EHTEH]
WA At BEEREERERAPEENR
R &EREFER 2 BUE BT RRERR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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18. GOODWILL (continued) 18. & (/&)

Impairment test on goodwill (continued)

The recoverable amount of the goodwill was assessed by
the Directors with reference to the valuation carried out by an
independent firm of valuers, Flagship, as at 30 June 2018.
The valuation was appraised on the value-in-use basis. The
key assumptions for the value-in-use calculation were those
regarding the discount rate and budgeted gross margin and
revenue. The Group estimated discount rate using the rate
that reflected current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the production, distribution
and licensing of animated TV episodes and theatrical
films business. Budgeted gross margin and revenue were
based on past practices and expectations associated with
the production, distribution and licensing of animated TV
episodes and theatrical films industry.

As at 30 June 2018, the Group had prepared 2-years cash
flow forecast derived from the most recent financial budget
of the production, distribution and licensing of animated
TV episodes and theatrical films business using a pre-
tax discount rate of 19% (2017: 18%) per annum and the
projection are extrapolated using a constant growth rate of
3% (2017: 3%) per annum for subsequent years. Since the
recoverable amount was less than the carrying amount, an
impairment loss of HK$27,354,000 (2017: HK$2,636,000) for
goodwill was recognised for the year ended 30 June 2018.

ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018 %
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS HRER M EE

19.INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19. B EE

Cost: AR
At 1 July 2016 1K2016%F7 A1H 81 - 81
Acquisition of subsidiaries W B BT B A R

(note 35) (H13t35) - 27,336 27,336
At 30 June 2016 and 201656 H308 &

1 July 2017 2017%7H1H
Additions NE
Written off 8
At 30 June 2018 74201856 H30H
Accumulated amortisation and R &1 # 85 & B {E :

impairment:
At 1 July 2016 RK2016F7H1H 81 - 81
Amortisation for the year FE#H - 1,847 1,847
At 30 June 2017 and 1K201746 H30H &

1 July 2017 2017%F7H1H
Amortisation for the year FEHH
Written off i
At 30 June 2018 74201856 H30H
Carrying amount: BRMEIE
At 30 June 2018 7A2018F6 H30H
At 30 June 2017 201796 A30H - 25,489 25,489
The following useful lives are used in the calculation of BRI TR AE I E
amortisation:
Trademarks 5 years (&g 5
Production rights Over the contract terms RIVERR 1 REKEH
The above intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line A B EENBESEN BB ERR A ETTE
basis over the relevant periods. o

20.INVENTORIES 20. 78

Finished goods BIRK fh 894 131
Inventories represent food and beverage, consumable and FEEERLEBEDEEE T EB R REAM
other goods of cinema operation. The cost of inventories o R ABRT WAt A [SEERAN | 275K
recognised as expenses and included in “cost of sales” 7K A1,493,0005% 7T (20174F : 626,000 7T) ©

amounted to HK$1,493,000 (2017:HK$626,000).
P\
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ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018 &3k \
\ 4



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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21.FILM AND TV PROGRAMME RIGHTS 1. EX R ERE B M
HK$’000
FER
Cost: A
1 July 2016 20167 A 1H 480,035
Exchange realignment ME H, I8 B (161)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 35) W EEHT B | (A7i235) 16,198
Transfer from film production in progress (note 22) B & 2 BF (f1:722) 119
Written off 8 (27,454)
Transfer to asset held for sale (note 30) EEREREREEE (#7730) (449,881)
At 30 June 2017 and 1 July 2017 7201746 A308 2201747 A 1A
Exchange realignment ME 8 B
Transfer from film production in progress (note 22) B &terh 2 B (f1:722)
Disposal of subsidiaries & B A A
At 30 June 2018 20186 H30H
Accumulated amortisation and impairment: At EERREE:
At 1 July 2016 7201647 818 429,564
Amortisation for the year FEHEE 4,556
Impairment loss recognised for the year FEWMRARZRERRE 2,485
Written off 55 (27,454)
Transfer to asset held for sale (note 30) HERESELEERE (#1i730) (402,281)
At 30 June 2017 and 1 July 2017 #201746 B308 201747 818
Exchange realignment ME H, I8 B
Amortisation for the year FE#H
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHE AR
At 30 June 2018 7201856 H30H
Carrying amount: BRMEE :
At 30 June 2018 720186 H30H
At 30 June 2017 201756 H30H 11,986

20185 N201756 A30H » AEE L EF ]
*E/&@%ﬁﬁﬁaZ‘Jfﬁﬁliﬁ“*‘*/ﬂmﬂﬂ

As at 30 June 2018 and 2017, the Group reviewed its library
of film and TV programme rights regularly to reassess the

estimated recoverable amounts of the film and TV programme WETEA }%Z?EE% BAREN B AR - LAEFTET
rights with reference to marketability of each film and TV 13?-5% ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ&%ZTEH—Mﬁl@i%ﬁ"%
programme and current market condition. The estimated & MERH B ARIE 2 fEaT A R 8 ) A

E%TVH&TET fﬁ@@ﬂi@%fﬂﬁﬂr ﬁ/jﬁ_
B 2 ETERER REREN B hiEFE
FRRT REBTUA KRB R ERE B RIETHKIE

recoverable amounts of the film and TV programme rights was
determined based on either net realisable values of film rights
to be disposed of or a value-in-use calculation which uses the
present value of the expected future cash flows arising from FRE4 2 TEEIRKIA S MERE  FRIAFTR
the sub-licensing and distribution of film and TV programme #19% (20174 : 18% ) TEAIAR IR 2 M EHTIR
rights and subsequent to the completion of fim and TV AT o

programme production, which was derived from discounting

the projected future cash flows at a discount rate of 19%

(2017: 18%).

Key assumptions for the value-in-use calculations relate to
the estimation of cash inflow/outflow which include budgeted
sales and gross margin, growth rate and discount rate. Such
estimation is based on past experience and management’s
expectations of the market development.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRMTE

21.FILM AND TV PROGRAMME RIGHTS
(continued)

During the year, no impairment loss on film and TV
programme rights was recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. During the year ended 30 June
2017, the impairment loss of HK$2,485,000 was mainly
attributable to certain films to be disposed of subsequent to
the end of that reporting period (see note 30), of which their
carrying amounts before the disposal were higher than the
total sale proceeds received by the Group for such disposal.
As a result, the management adjusted the carrying amounts of
these films to their net realisable values as at 30 June 2017.

B RERH A NE(F)

RAFE BENIGBERANEZLE
RN B W i T R R (BB 18 - &L 220176 430
=i JJ:%F‘ A /2,485,000 T 2 BUEE B F &
EEB(\‘E REHIRALEE TEY (2R
30) A& ﬁ’% I REeEmRN A EERLE
FYCER 2 $HE& ﬁ?%fklﬁﬁ'gﬁ E It - FR20174F
6A30H  EEED BRETY . FEER
KHT """"" Eﬁ/‘?fﬁ

22.FILM AND TV PROGRAMME PRODUCTION 22. 84 EE R EREH
IN PROGRESS
HK$’000
FExT
At 1 July 2016 R2016FE7 18 108,173
Exchange realignment ME 5, B (53)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 35) U BB B~ B) (H17235) 9,041
Additions NE 202,678
Amounts refunded during the year FERESTE (37,100)
Transfer to investments in film production Eii}ﬁéiﬁ’\%%%{’EZ&ﬁ (67,157)
Transfer to film and TV programme rights (note 21) B#Z=E 5 & B W& (HtaE21) (119)
At 30 June 2017 and 1 July 2017 201746 A30 A &201747 A1A
Exchange realignment Ii)‘%;ﬂ?é
Additions NE
Transfer to investments in film production ERENE ?&%VEZ&E
Transfer to film and TV programme rights (note 21) E#E=E 5 & B htE (A1 7t21)
Amounts refunded during the year FER Z@ir’%ﬁi
Written off i 85
At 30 June 2018 720186 H30H
23.INVESTMENTS IN FILM PRODUCTION B.RNEEZHEZRE
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Investments in film production REZRIEZRE 1,683
The amount represents investments in certain production ZeBRARARBEEZ MR E TEERT]
houses for co-production of films. The investments are TEL 2 & A HMBImARE B A
governed by the relevant agreements whereby the Group is SEEERENEYRFBE ZTEANL
entitled to benefits generated from the distribution of these MREET 2 B{THRER-
films based on the percentage of capital contributed in the
film production projects.
During the year, the Group recognised the cost of RAFE - AEBHERER RERE KA
investments in film production of HK$6,430,000 (2017: 6,430,000/ T (20174 : 18586009%71:) iz
HK$18,586,000) and an impairment loss of HK$37,046,000 SEHUPEMRENTR KX SE e
(2017: HK$62,845,000) based on the expected future A7 TEH ﬂi%ﬂ&)\ﬁ@wﬁ@)ﬁﬁ%?046000%

revenue to be generated from the films with reference to their
marketability and current market condition. Over-contribution
on investments in film production of HK$977,000 (2017:
HK$410,000) was transferred to trade and other receivables.
The carrying amount of HK$35,302,000 (2017: HK$1,683,000)
is expected to be repaid within 1 year and therefore, the
amount is classified as current asset.

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEEX{LEXEEERAF
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24. TRADE RECEIVABLES 24. E Z EWR
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
Trade receivables, net H 5 W FEE 16,642
The Group allows an average credit period of 30 to 180 days REEG TEEFF930£180H (2017¢
(2017 30 to 180 days) to its customers. The ageing analysis of 30E 1808 ) 2B - LT AREBNRE
the trade receivables of the Group based on the invoice date RZEZAH 2B HEWE ZEEE’%’J}TE
at the end of the reporting period is as follows:
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
0 to 90 days 0%£90H 9,992
91 to 180 days 91&180H -
Over 180 days 1808 M £ 12,822
22,814
Less: Impairment loss recognised in B TE B EUGRIER Z
respect of trade receivables EEE (6,172)
16,642

Trade receivables of HK$12,227,000 (2017: HK$16,642,000)
were neither past due nor impaired. Included in trade
receivables are amounts of HK$1,700,000 (2017:
HK$6,650,000) that were contract bound. The Directors have
assessed the credit history of the aforesaid trade receivables
and concluded that there is no adverse change on the credit
quality of these customers and considered these trade
receivables are recoverable.

Included in in allowance for doubtful debts are individually
impaired trade receivables from customers with an aggregate
balance of HK$1,775,000 (2017: HK$6,172,000) since the
Directors consider the outstanding balances from these
customers are in doubt. In determining the recoverability of
trade receivables, the Directors consider any change in the
credit quality of the trade receivables from the date credit
were initially granted and up to the end of the reporting
period. Accordingly, the Directors consider provision for
impairment in values be made in respect of trade receivables
to their recoverable values and believe that there is no further
credit provision required in excess of the allowance for
doubtful debts.

Emperor Culture Group Limited
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24. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

25.

2. EZBWRK (&)

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debits is as follow: RERBHE 2 EBINT -
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
At the beginning of the year REH] 6,241
Impairment loss recognised for the year F[E R 2 B EE B -
Reversal of impairment loss recognised & & #7225l (B /&5 18 # [a]
during the year (69)
Disposal of subsidiaries HE M E AR -
At the end of the year RER 6,172

OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 25. Hitt B - RER TR
PREPAYMENTS
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Other receivables, net Ho b e U kO RE 7,246
Compensation income receivable FEW B WA (HaE0)
(note (i) 7,864
Deposits and prepayments (note (i) L& MIEN R (M) 38,443
53,553

Notes:

(i)

(i)

The amount of HK$7,864,000 (2017: HK$7,864,000) represents
the shortfall payment as at 31 December 2017 and 2016 in
respect of the profit guarantee given by Jade Sparkle Holdings
Limited and Mr. Wong Chun Loong (now known as “Mr. Huang
Tony Jademan Xian Zhen”) (collectively referred to as the
“Vendors”) to the Group in relation to the acquisition on JDMM
Group (see note 35).

As at 30 June 2018, the amount included rental and utility
deposits of HK$27,596,000 (2017: HK$9,096,000) for cinema
and office premises and value-added tax recoverable of
HK$19,103,000 (2017: HK$7,710,000) derived from payments
on purchases of property, plant and equipment and construction
works for cinemas in the PRC.

As at 30 June 2017, the amount included a deposit of
HK$18,000,000 (2018: Nil) paid for a potential film investment
subject to the fulfillment of terms and conditions of the relevant
agreement. Such amount was refunded during the year as the
terms and conditions of the relevant agreement were not fulfilled.

(i)

(if)

Emperor Culture Group Limited

REXERKRERRAF
ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018 43R

Hiit

& 817,864,000/ 7T (20174F : 7,864,0005% 7T )
ZEBIBEIERAER AT REIRE LA (R
BIEEKEE]) (BEIZEES])HWEE
TEFRSEREERAEEBRHN2017FR
2016F12A31B 2 aFfIREZ ZFKHE (2R
Fff5E35) °

R2018F6 A30R Z R BREER LM AR
Y 2 4 MKER£27,596,0008 7T (2017
F:9,006,000 TT) AR HEEYE HE KX
B NP AT RE TR R EE 2 ATk (El
#1E%119,103,000/% 7t (20174F : 7,710,000/
JL) °

R2017F6 308 Z R BREBELEEFNE
2 247324 18,000,0005 7T (20184F : &) - 1

IR AR 2 R R AR AR T AT E
B R A B 2 R R R R BEE R B

b ZRACRBERRERERERE -

311

7~
C



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR

26. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION 26. BN ARKE

RECEIVABLE

Contingent consideration receivable represents the profit
guarantee given by the Vendors to the Group in relation to
the acquisition of JDMM Group (see note 35). Contingent
consideration receivable has been designated as financial
assets at FVTPL upon initial recognition and is measured at
fair value at the end of the reporting period. The movement
of the fair value of contingent consideration receivable is as
follow:

EREAREBEAZEE I MNBEEERASR

BEBERAKBEREMR EFRE (25 M=

35) * RS ARERIIA R 15 E /R A

REBEFABRZSRERE WRNHREHRIR

?ﬁf;‘a‘i@?r% cEUHARBZ AR BEE
TN

2018 2017

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTHET FAT

At the beginning of the year REH] -
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries WM B A RIEAE (#712235)

(note 35) 8,145

(Loss)/gain on fair value change FEAREBEES
for the year (B18) W 338
At the end of the year RER 8,483

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement in relation
to the acquisition of JDMM Group (“S&P Agreement”),
the Vendors have given a guarantee to the Group that the
audited consolidated profit after tax of JDMM Group for the
three financial years ended/ending 31 December 2016,
31 December 2017 and 31 December 2018 (each of the
“Guaranteed Period”) would be no less than HK$10,000,000
(the “Guaranteed Sum”) for each of the Guaranteed Period
(the “Profit Guarantee”).

In case the Profit Guarantee is not fulfilled for the
corresponding year, the Vendors shall pay 78.64% of the
difference between the Guaranteed Sum and the audited
consolidated profit after tax of JDMM Group (the “Shortfall”)
to the Group. During the year ended 31 December 2017 and
2016, the audited consolidated profit after tax of JDMM Group
did not satisfy the Profit Guarantee. Hence, the Vendors are
required to pay the Shortfall to the Group in accordance with
the terms and condition stated in the S&P Agreement.

The fair value of the contingent consideration receivable
is determined based on the valuation conducted by
an independent firm of valuers, Flagship, by using the
income approach and a loss on fair value change of
HK$1,273,000 (2017: a gain of HK$338,000) was recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
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26. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION 26. EW S RIRE (&)

RECEIVABLE (continued)

The contingent consideration receivable is analysed into
current assets and non-current assets as follows:

RS AR BRRBRIERBEER T A
T -

2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$'000
FExT FHET

Analysed for reporting purpose as: MEREWIFTLT :
Non-current assets FEMBEE 485
Current assets MEEE 7,998
8,483

27.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Listed securities: EHEE:
— Equity securities listed in

Hong Kong at fair value

—BRARBEINKRZER
ERRARRE 75

27. B AREEFAEZZEMEE

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER TET
52,441

As at 30 June 2018 and 2017, all of the financial assets
at FVTPL are equity securities listed in Hong Kong and
denominated in HK$, and were stated at their quoted price in
the active market at the end of the reporting period.

A decrease in fair value of these financial assets at FVTPL
of HK$31,691,000 (2017: HK$7,115,000) has been included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

28.INVESTMENT IN LISTED CORPORATE

BOND

On 19 September 2016, the Group acquired a listed
corporate bond with fixed coupon rate of 4% per annum
in a principal amount of US$8,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$62,240,000). The listed corporate bond
was subsequently sold on 10 March 2017.

The fair value of the listed corporate bond on initial recognition
was determined based on the valuation conducted by an
independent firm of valuers, Flagship. On initial recognition,
the fair value of the listed corporate bond was determined
using the prevailing market interest rate of companies with
similar quality to the issuer of the bond and was carried at
amortised cost subsequently. The effective interest rate was
4.60%.

During the year ended 30 June 2017, the Group recognised
listed corporate bond interest income of HK$1,328,000 in
profit or loss.

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEEX{LEXEEERAF
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{& 185 £°31,691,000/% 7T (20174F : 7,115,000
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28. L AREZZRE

MR2016FQH19H  AEBBEALXRE £ 5
8,000,000 7T (1HE P %762,240,000/87T) -
FTEEREBFIEZ LM ARESH Z L™
NAEFEEBER2017F3F10BHE -

EMRBMES 2 AR EBERIAERRIZE
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B EMARESZ AR EBEIIZRABRLUE
FRITANERZABZBRTTSNEEE B
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28.

29.

30.

o

INVESTMENT IN LISTED CORPORATE 28. L ARIESRZRE (&)

BOND (continued)

On 10 March 2017, the Group disposed of the listed E/\‘\ZPW¢EE1OE ﬁ%?ﬁﬁ%%&&@@o

corporate bond at a consideration of approximately %TE g/*\ﬁ/\s%f’\\f’?g%;fl75,00077%\7t)ﬁjtmka

US$8,030,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$62,475,000) EAW RS B A A 2 R an & VR

and a gain on disposal of the listed corporate bond of ﬁ’%{m’g\ETE\%H&@MS,OOO;%E(%&?DB%

HK$413,000, net of related transaction cost of HK$5,000 was HHRAZ Z A R5,00078 7T ) °

recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and

other comprehensive income.

4= 4t
CASH AND BANK BALANCES 20 RE RI|ITETF
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET

Cash and bank balances Re RIRITEF 452,616

Notes: Kaz -

(i) At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances (i) RBEHAR UNAREFEZRAEERS
of the Group denominated in RMB amounted to HK$92,550,000 N8R 1T 417 592,550,000/ 7T (20174 :
(2017: HK$73,078,000). 73,078,000/ 7T) ©

(i) Cash at banks earn interests at prevailing market rates which (i) RITELIEN F0.01E £2.04/E (20174 ¢
range from 0.01% to 2.04% (2017: 0.01% to 0.73%) per annum. 0.01EZ0.73F ) 2 MMIRITHIHFFIEEH S

(i) The conversion of RMB denominated balances into foreign (i) BAARBIEZEFHIBRBINE RAINEFT
currencies and the remittance of foreign currencies denominated BEZRTEFELRIRSEL R EE  EETH
bank balances and cash out of the PRC are subject to relevant AT A8 2 SN B bl 2 AR R A ) Je 2R 51
rules and regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated
by the PRC government.

ASSET CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE 30. 2 A EHECEE

2018 2017

HK$°000 HK$'000

F&T FHET

Film rights B R R 47,600

During the year ended 30 June 2017, the Group entered into
certain sale and purchase agreements with an independent
third party (the “Purchaser”’) pursuant to which the Group
would sell the film rights to the Purchaser upon the terms and
conditions therein contained.

As at 30 June 2017, the amount of HK$47,600,000
represented the fair value less cost to sell. The sale of fim
rights was not completed as at 30 June 2017 and the fim
rights had been presented as asset classified as held for
sale in the consolidated statement of financial position in
accordance with HKFRS 5. On 3 July 2017, the sale of film
rights was completed.

Emperor Culture Group Limited
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31. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES NEFREMEMNR

Trade payables ZZEMNR 5,684 11,614
Accruals E:rEH 21,346 12,613
Deposits received for disposal of EWHEEZREL
film rights (note 30) 1w (H12230 - 47,600
Receipt In advance BWRIE \ 10,934 34,223
Other payables (note) HA R K (Hat) 63,081 5,837
101,045 111,887
Note: Hiz -
Other payables mainly comprise of (a) HK$50,652,000 (2017: EMEMNREZRE QMRS RBEREREMN T8
HK$3,863,000) for consideration payable to independent third parties % =7 /A#50,652,000% 7T (20174 : 3,863,000/
for enhancement and expansion of cinemas and (b) HK$3,528,000 TTIZERRERODREXRETH T —REXE
(2017: Nil) payable to a film investor in respect of the film financing. & & H#13,528,00078 7L (20174 « £ ) 2 578 °
The following is an ageing analysis of trade payables of the AT BAEBNRERARIZEZAH 2B
Grqug based on the invoice dafe at the end of the reporting IR BREL AT -
period:
0 to 90 days 0z290H 5,684 5,036
Over 90 days Q0B A E - 6,578
5,684 11,614
32. AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED 32. ENBEAT, FERERHE
COMPANIES/NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS
Members of the key management and shareholders of ZX%EZIE?@@WE&H&%ME&%@@
the Group have controlling interests over these related NREEERE R -
companies.
ghe arrtljounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on ZEREAER - B NBRENRIEE-
emand.
33. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY WBELHEAR
The following is the deferred tax liability recognised and AEERBATFERRACELEHERBERE
movements thereon during the current and prior years. MEBm o

At 1 July 2016 201657 A1H - -
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 35) W BEBT B A7) (A77#35) (405) (405)
Credited to profit or loss (note 13) FFABE (HiE13) 163 163
At 30 June 2017 and 1 July 2017 H201746 A30H &

20175 7H1R
Credited to profit or loss (note 13) AR (Ka13)
At 30 June 2018 R2018F6H30H

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEEX{LEXEEERAF
ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018 &3k
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33. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY (continued)

BIELERIBREE (&)

As at 30 June 2018, the Group had tax losses of
approximately HK$233,210,000 (2017: HK$496,278,000)
available for offset against future profits. The tax losses of
the Group might be carried forward indefinitely, except for an
amount of HK$74,488,000 (2017: HK$53,901,000) which will
expire in 5 years from the year of assessment. No deferred tax
asset in respect of the tax losses has been recognised due to
the unpredictability of future profit streams.

MR2018F6 A30H » KA &£ B i 18 & 18
233,210,000/ 7T, (20174 : 496,278,000 7T.)
AT AR IR AR I m Al o NEE 2 T IEE R A]
R B4 EE - M 5 8074,488,00078 7T (20174
53,901,000/ 70) Z SR IEHE A MG F S #ESF N
[E i o R RETE IR 2R 2 S Fl 1B - Bl 4
SR IEEERERELTTHIEEE-

34. SHARE CAPITAL

34.

&N

Number of shares Nominal value

R EE HE
HK$’000
FET
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each R EE0.01E L 2 LimAk
At 1 July 2016, 30 June 2017, A20165F7H18 -
1 July 2017 and 30 June 2018 201766 H30H -
2017%F7H18 R
20186 H30H
Issued and fully paid: ERITRAR:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each FREE0.ONE Lz LB
At 1 July 2016 201657 A1H 2,213,340,890 22,133
Issue of new shares by subscription B RIBEITHRD (A/7E)
(note) 1,000,000,000 10,000

At 30 June 2017, 1 July 2017 and

7201756 A301 -

20177A1B R
201856 A30H

30 June 2018

Note:

On 19 December 2016, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement with Giant Lead Profits Limited (now known as “Emperor
Culture Group Holdings Limited”) which conditionally agreed to
subscribe for and the Company conditionally agreed to allot and issue
a total of 1,000,000,000 new shares at a subscription price of HK$0.19
per share (the “Subscription”). The Subscription was completed
on 23 March 2017 and the proceeds from the Subscription, before
expenses, amounted to HK$190,000,000.

Details of the Subscription were set out in the announcement jointly
made by Giant Lead Profits Limited and the Company dated 22
December 2016 and 23 March 2017 and in the circular issued by the
Company dated 3 March 2017.

Emperor Culture Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018 F

o

R2016F 123 19H » A &) B2 Giant Lead Profits
Limited (IRFE [REX L EXEEITRERAA])
AVRBHE ZAREBKREREREREAQRE
11 B =0 % N 317 A ££1,000,000,0008% %1 J& 15
REBEAEBR19E T ([RBEHE]) -REFHEE
R201763F238 5T - MR EIA IS KIE (1
% 53 A1) A&190,000,0005 7T °

R EE 7 FIEH 5 Giant Lead Profits Limited £2
A FEA T3 B B A20165F12 4228 K201743
A23R 2 AEARAA T T3 HEA2017F3A3H
ZBHA e
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34. SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 34. A& (&)
Share options i IR
The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the RAER20116 11 A8 B IRM— BB AR AT I
“Scheme”) on 8 November 2011. The major terms of the ([Z5T8]) - ZFr 8l EE R an T

Scheme are summarised as follows:

1. Purpose of the Scheme: To enable the Group to grant 1.

options to eligible participants to subscribe for shares
in the Company as incentive or rewards for their
contribution to the Group.

2. Eligibility: Eligible participants include employees, 2.

including any Directors, its subsidiaries or any entity in
which any member of the Group holds an equity interest.

3. (a) Total number of shares available for issue as at 20 3.

September 2018 (i.e. the date of this report) under
the Scheme: 221,334,089 shares;

(b) Percentage of the issued shares that it represents as
at the date of this report: 6.89%.

4. Maximum entitlement of each eligible participant under 4,

the Scheme:

(a) not to exceed 1% of the shares in issue in
any 12-month period unless approved by the
shareholders;

(b) options granted to substantial shareholders or
independent non-executive Directors or their
respective associates in any one year exceeding
the higher of 0.10% of the shares in issue and with a
value in excess of HK$5,000,000 must be approved
by the shareholders.

5. Period within which the shares must be taken up under 5.

an option: At any time from the date of acceptance of the
option to such a date determined by the Board but in any
event not exceeding 10 years from the date of grant.

6.  Minimum period for which an option must be held before 6.

it can be exercised: No minimum period unless otherwise
determined by the Board.

7. (a) Price payable on application or acceptance of the 7.

option: HK$1.00;

(b) The period within which payments or calls must or
may be made: Within 28 days from the date of grant;

(c) Period within which loans for such purposes of the
payments or calls must be repaid: Not applicable.

Emperor Culture Group Limited

Zatdlz B BAKERSER2EE
BT BRREARBARBRD - AMERE
UARKEFFERC RE)HEE -

Bi% - RERSEERERE (BIR(EMA
B%) HMfERRSAEEEANKER
A ARRE TN EE-

() REZ=TEIHN20185F9F208 (BIA
s A ) Al FRITZ R AESKE -
221,334,089 f 17 -

(b) MAFHmEBMEMEEHETROZE
7k 16.89% °

SHEETERA LIRS RE T EE
2% ER

(@) FRIFERRELE - BREEA12(8A
ANEBBE BTN Z1% |

(b) REM—FRMEZERRIIBLIE
HITEFTARES B 2BHEAR
BB FBRe BTG 2
0.10% X {B{E R 55,000,0007% 7T (LA
BEEB%E) BRI R

1T{EEERRAETR TR D HARR : AR EE X
BOBEEEEeETCE@EABRN
TR HEREIER T TEHBBE
) B BBERT104F ©

BRI TR AT /BIS B 2 SO HARR 1 BRIE

BEFYRTET GAWERE R -

(a) FREBSEMEERER FT AR AR
B :1.00/ 7T

(o) 7B RIBENRESGR AN BR -
R B EE28H A

(c) EEENZBANKAENER
HARR : M@ o
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34.SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 34. IR (42)

Share options (continued)
8. Basis for determining the exercise price:

The exercise price is determined by the Board (subject
to adjustment) and will not be less than the highest of
(a) the closing price of the share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for trades in one or
more board lots of Shares on the date of grant; (b) the
average closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (c)
the nominal value of a share.

9. The remaining life of the Scheme: approximately 3 years
(expiring on 7 November 2021).

During the year, no option was outstanding, granted,
exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the Scheme.

35. BUSINESS COMBINATION

Acquisition of JDMM Group

On 4 May 2016, the Group entered into the S&P Agreement
with the Vendors in relation to investment in production,
distribution and licensing of animated TV episodes and
theatrical films in Hong Kong, mainland China and overseas
countries through the acquisition of approximately 78.64%
equity interest in JDMM Group and the shareholder’s
loan owned by JDMM to one of the Vendors at a cash
consideration of HK$142,600,000. The cash consideration
had been settled and paid by the Group to the Vendors in the
following manners:

(i) a refundable deposit in the amount of HK$30,000,000
was paid in cash within 1 month after the execution of the
S&P Agreement; and

(i) the remaining balance in the sum of HK$112,600,000
was paid in cash upon completion of the acquisition.

The acquisition was completed on 21 July 2016 (the
“Completion Date”) and had been accounted for using the
acquisition method.

The following tables summarise the consideration paid for this
acquisition and the fair value of identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date.

BRE(E)
8 EETEEIEE:

TEE (AETTHRB) T hHESSET
HETNFERTIIRSE : (@RI THB
BE TR LB ER e RE
AR Z BT E ()R EEET B
HIRT R AR 5 B RO A 2 P B RE
KRR Z FETE M (BN E(E

9. %EtE|IHERZ FH  H3F (FA20215 11
R7HE®)

RAFEE - &at 8RN RUERBAGHE H R
g{ﬁ ER BT WAEHEHE SR
5(‘ o

35. ¥ 5 6f

WEITEHZHESE

R2016F5 A48 AEBEREBREAIRERE - F
BKPE R BINRRBEBR A ENEREY
BUE BT RREEZETE A A BRELTE
B s & B 478 BA%RR LA 2 E 2L 1
BEENTZEEHFET B 2BREERGIL
—H BB BeREA142,600,0008 7T
ZHERBEHEAEBIR NI A REE LT
N¥zZEER:

() 30,000,000 T2 FIREFCNRLEE
WEB—EARNELS S &

(i)  #4%E112,600,0005% 7T 5 T2 Ak U i B LA 2R
T

IWBED A 20165E7 218 ([ BHA) 5ot
B AU E AR -

TRAAE LB P ST Z KB R U B
ggu&&%zﬁfﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁ&)ﬁﬁ%%%TEZ’A/‘E

2017

HK$'000

Consideration satisfied by cash IR L2 RE 142,600
Less: Contingent consideration receivable R RS ARE (H7it26)

(note 26) (8,145)

Total consideration REHEE 134,455

ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018 %
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35. X5/ ()
e S-S ES L T ¢ |
HieE: MRS BB ZENR

35. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

Acquisition of JDMM Group (continued)
Note: Shortfall payment in respect of Profit Guarantee

Pursuant to the S&P Agreement, the Vendors have
given a guarantee to the Group that the audited
consolidated net profit after tax of JDMM Group for
each of the Guaranteed Period would be no less
than the Guaranteed Sum for each of the Guaranteed
Period.

In case the Profit Guarantee is not fulfilled for the
corresponding year, the Vendors shall pay the Shortfall
to the Group, and for the avoidance of doubt, if JDMM
Group sustained a loss for such financial year, 78.64%

REBEEE DR ZEFEHCRANEEE
H—IBRE Bk 2 ZEEEERNS
B R 78 B 2 S BRI R TR AR 4R B gt A
R (ERFE BRI S MERRE 258

IR FE D a FIREREK - ZFE
FHAXNEZRTANEE AR SRESR
A i E S RERENZYREE
SRISER - RIRZEE AR AEE A

of the Guaranteed Sum shall be payable by the

Vendors to the Group.

The fair value of the Profit Guarantee as at Completion
Date amounted to HK$8,145,000 and was recorded as
contingent consideration receivable in the consolidated

statement of financial position.

IRFBEEEE 2 78.64% °

HRHREFATKBHZAABES
8,145,000/ T I R 4R &
ABRT AR ANRE -

BRI R A

2017
HK$'000
FHET
Fair values of identifiable assets acquired and FIWEZ IR EERFIAEEEZ
liabilities assumed AREE

Property, plant and equipment Y3 - 2 RS 188
Intangible assets B EE 27,336
Film and TV programme rights B REREE RE 16,198
Film and TV programme production in progress ~ S{EfR 2 B2 K EREN B 9,041
Investment in film production REZREZRE 720
Trade receivables =070 16N 14,304
Deposits and prepayments Ze RIERR 588
Cash and cash equivalents ReMBEEFEY 867
Trade and other payables B 5 R B MR (23,876)
Amount due to a shareholder of JDMM ERNEEHLZER—FRE 2HIA (3,967)
Deferred tax liability EIETRIEE & (405)
Total identifiable net assets A EERTE 40,994
Non-controlling interests FEERR R A (8,756)
Assignment of shareholder’s loan HERERE N 3,967
Goodwill arising on acquisition WHEEE 2 mE 98,250
Total consideration REHLEE 134,455
Net cash outflow arising from the acquisition: BHWHEE4EZRESREFHE:
Consideration paid in cash ERRESRE (142,600)
Less: Deposit paid in prior year B EFENZRS 30,000

(112,600)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired Friig v e MIREEEY 867

(111,733)

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEEX{LEXEEERAF
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35.

36.

(=

BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)
Acquisition of JDMM Group (continued)

The fair value and the gross contractual amount of trade and
other receivables as at the Completion Date amounted to
HK$14,304,000, of which no balance was expected to be
uncollectible.

In addition, the non-controlling interests of JDMM Group was
recognised at their proportionate share of identifiable net
assets acquired.

JDMM Group was acquired so as to complement the Group'’s
expansion strategy and step into the rapid expansion of
animation market.

Acquisition-related costs of HK$465,000 had been charged
to administrative expenses in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year
ended 30 June 2017.

For the period from the acquisition date (i.e. 21 July 2016)
to 30 June 2017, the Group’s results included revenue of
HK$705,000 and loss of HK$7,628,000 from JDMM Group.
Had the combination taken place at the beginning of that
year, the revenue and the loss of the Group for the year
ended 30 June 2017 would have been HK$44,959,000 and
HK$68,707,000 respectively.

ACQUISITION OF ASSETS THROUGH
ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 14 December 2016, the Group completed the acquisition
of 100% equity interest of Emperor Cinemas (China) Limited
(formerly known as “Major Marketing Communications
Limited”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
‘Emperor Cinemas (China) Group”) from an independent
third party at a cash consideration of HK$12,245,000.
Emperor Cinemas (China) Group is principally engaged in
the cinema development and operation in the PRC while the
relevant cinemas were still under construction at the end of
that reporting period.

The acquisition has been accounted for as an acquisition
of assets and liabilities. The net cash outflow arising from
the acquisition of Emperor Cinemas (China) Group is
HK$1,406,000.

Emperor Culture Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018 F
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XBaot (&)
WEEE NS HEEE (4

RSER B €S REMERER A% BER
& 418 % 5 514,304, 00075 70 - eI At
AN

AN EERZHEEE 2 SHE R D IRE
DEFTUREE 2 AR B B F B LU B HERR

WEEEAZHEEE A TEAERE ZER
REEIWEFZRBRP 2EEMS -

Y AR B8 A Z<465,000/8 TLE AT ABLE20174F
6A30R L FEHFABREMAMEmMEERZ
TR A

B Y8 B B (BN2016%7 A21H ) £201746 A
0B AEE Z EEFRIERA EERS
1 as = @ > UG A 705,00078 7T X E5187,628,000
B MEHRZFEVEE  AXEEER
20176 H30R LEFE 2 WA KBER D BI&
44,959,000/ 7T 568,707,000/ 7T

ERWEHBLARWBEE

R2016F 12148  ANEETK M —B B E =
HW B EE W (FE) BRAF (AHE B
THEANBRAR ) REWBAR] (47 [HE
B (FE) £8] ) - ReKER12,245,000
BT REBF (FRH) SEEZRFHBEINSE
BB EE R N 18 - ABREBIPT A s R S HA AR TE
B o

WEERKEEERB BTG A - WEE
EEIH (TR KEELZRSRLFER
1,406,000/ 7T ©
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37.

38.

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 2 May 2018, the Group disposed of its 100% equity
interest in Corporate Fame Limited together with its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “Corporate Fame
Group”) to an independent third party at a cash consideration
of HK$8,100,000 which resulted in a loss on disposal of
HK$8,000. Corporate Fame Group was principally engaged
in film and TV programme production and distribution and
provision of event management services in previous years.

No disposal-related costs has been charged to administrative
expenses in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income for the year ended 30 June
2018.

Summary of the effect on disposal of Corporate Fame Group
is as follows:

37. LENRBE LT

7201855 A2H  AR&EE LAIR £ R {E8,100,000
75 7Tt & Corporate Fame Limitedi& [7] £t B
A& (%75 [Corporate Famef:[® |) ~ 100%
I ¥ — BB E =77 BEH & E5188,000
77T ° Corporate Fame = BN BF FEEBH

B REHRETERERBITURRBHEKE
£ B BEAR

I % 62 1 S IR R 2 AN EE ABLE20185F
6H30R I FEHFABREMNAMEmMEERL
TR A

& Corporate Famefs B 2 £ 2B Z 40T

2018
HK$’000

Fi#

Property, plant and equipment
Film and TV programme rights

ERR: s
B L EREA Wk

Trade receivables =) e R

Other receivables, deposits and prepayments H A FEMGR - i RIALHR
Cash and bank balances We RIRTTETF

Trade and other payables 2 5 R E MR

Net liabilities disposed of HEZEEFHE
Consideration received EWRRE B

Net liabilities disposed of Hj%z:% B 58
Non-controlling interests FEERR o

Loss on disposal HEBE

Net cash outflow arising from the disposal: BHEELEZRESREFE:
Cash consideration received EHIRERE

Cash and bank balances disposed of

P ERE MIRTTHER

DISPOSAL OF ASSOCIATES

On 9 November 2016, the Group entered into (i) a sale
and purchase agreement in relation to disposal of 5%

38. LEBE QT
12016411498 RSBV () B H i - 7
AERR 2B E=H HE Rl E S

shareholding interest in TVB Pay Vision Holdings Limited
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to “TVBP Group”)
to an independent third party at a cash consideration of
HK$35,000,000; and (ii) a termination agreement of the
shareholders’ agreement dated 22 May 2012 pursuant to
which the rights and obligations bound to the shareholders
under the shareholders’ agreement were terminated. The
disposal was completed on 9 November 2016 and the
Group recorded a gain on disposal of HK$34,825,000 after
deduction of the carrying amount of the associates of nil
balance and the related professional fees of HK$175,000.
Following completion of the disposal and the termination
agreement became effective, the Group has no significant
influence over TVBP Group and TVBP Group ceased to be
associates of the Group thereafter.

Emperor Culture Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018 &k
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39. COMMITMENTS 39. &I
(a) Operating lease commitments (a) REBERE
The Group as lessee AEBERABA

Operating leases rentals paid or ~ LA EWEE ek ERS
payable for the year in respect of ZFEKLEHERS

rented premises 27,760 7,702
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had RIERR AEEREBEEAEEMHE 2
commitments for future minimum lease payments under AR EHERABIT 2 R R&IEM

non-cancellable operating leases, in respect of rented & RIEASER A T FHE -
premises, which fall due as follows:

Within one year 1F R 31,064 12,317
In the second to fifth year inclusive 552% 554

(BEERMEEAN) 133,954 76,828
Over fifth years E5F A+ 97,215 150,499

262,233 239,644

The leases are mainly negotiated for an average term KEFH s HEFZF I BE1IE1F
of 1-15 years (2017:1-10 years) and the rentals are pre- (20174 - 1E10%F ) k& RIELETE K
determined and fixed. LASERBETE ©
In addition to the minimum lease payments described A SRR & FRIBIN - AR E 2 S AM
above, the Group has commitments to pay contingent SEEDRBEBEHERETE 2 ER
rent based on the sales of the cinema premises pursuant BARPHERIBE 5 2 SHE RS T » AR
to the terms and conditions as set out in the respective I E AR SEE T - RS ARSI R
tenancy agreements. As the future sales could not be FFALRK-

reliably determined, the relevant contingent rent has not
been included in the above table.

(b) Capital commitments (b) EAREIE

Contracted for but not provided the Ft 7 & EEFT41B KK
consolidated financial statements, 4R & Bff5 &K P E 2
net of amounts paid, in respect of: X8 (R 2 FIAE) :
- Acquisition on property, plant —BEYE HREHK

and equipment

61,781

A
, 142 l Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX{tEXEBHERA A
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e PR RRMTE

40. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES

ARISING FROM FINANCING

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are
those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be,

ACTIVITIES

classified in the Group's consolidated statement of cash flows

as cash flows from financing activities.

At 1 July 2017

Exchange realignment

Advances from related companies
Repayments to related companies

20177818
PE A

E2) NG i E N
EEEHARFAE

0. BETBREEZEEYHKR

TRAMASERELTDEL BB EE) -
BREASLIFRSEE -
ERAEEGERERERAD BLSRBEE
PELZREREIARARREREZAB -

REESFELAE

Amounts due to
related companies
FEAS BB RIFRIR

HK$°000
THT

At 30 June 2018

20186 A30H

41. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS
(a)

transactions with related parties:

Event investment costs paid to a
related company

Purchases of furniture from a
related company (note (i))

Consultancy fee to a related
company (note (i)

Professional fees to related
companies

Rental expenses to related
companies (note (i), (i), (iv)
and (v))

Sales of merchandising goods to
related parties

Reimbursement of administrative
expenses to a related company

During the year, the Group had the following material

MNEXKBEALIRS

(a)

TR
2018

HK$’000

FBx

ARE QAN RIRER
BB
A B & A~ RIS BRI (AYa2 (1))

ARENRNERE
(H1aZ(i))
AEENRINEXEN

mEEARZNEEER
(B ~ (i) ~ ()% (v))

) B3 77 5 7
BN EERRZITHA

AN - AN ERRRE A TRT NIIE

2017
HK$'000
THBTT

80

713

1,117

The above related companies are controlled by the
AY Trust and the amounts for the year ended 30 June

2017 disclosed above represented

between the Group and related companies on and after

23 March 2017 upon completion
made by Emperor Culture Holdings,
owned by the AY Trust.

material transactions

of the Subscription

which was ultimately o

Emperor Culture Group Limited

REXCEXEERRAA
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41. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Notes: The amounts included the following continuing connected

o

(M

(it)

(iii)

(iv)

transactions:

On 15 January 2018, a related company controlled
by the AY Trust entered into an agreement with Ulferts
International Limited (“Ulferts International”’). Pursuant
to the agreement, Ulferts International and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as “Ulferts Group”) shall (i) sell
products and provide furniture procurement consultancy
services to members of Emperor Group (including the
Group) in relation to their projects and investments, or
for their own consumption; (ii) sell furniture coupons to
members of Emperor Group for their own consumption
and for the consumption of their clients as a marketing
strategy of their projects and (iii) provide such other
types of ancillary services and any transaction of revenue
nature in the ordinary course of business of Ulferts
Group, commencing from 29 January 2018 and up to 31
March 2020. Further details of the continuing connected
transaction were set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 16 March 2018.

On 5 May 2017, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company as tenant, entered into a tenancy agreement with
a related company as landlord which agreed to lease the
agreed premises to the subsidiary for a term of 10 years
from 5 May 2017 to 4 May 2027 with an option for renewal
of additional 5 years until 4 May 2032. The transaction
contemplated under the tenancy agreement constituted
a continuing connected transaction for the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Further details of
the continuing connected transaction were set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 5 May 2017.

On 24 August 2017, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company as tenant, entered into a tenancy agreement
with a related company as landlord which agreed to lease
the agreed premises to the subsidiary for a term of 6 years
from 1 September 2017 to 31 August 2023 with an option
for renewal of additional 6 years until 31 August 2029. The
transaction contemplated under the tenancy agreement
constituted a continuing connected transaction for the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Further
details of the continuing connected transaction were set out
in the Company’s announcement dated 24 August 2017.

On 31 October 2017, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company as tenant, entered into a tenancy
agreement with a related company as landlord which
agreed to lease the agreed premises to the subsidiary for a
term of 5 years from 1 November 2017 to 31 October 2022.
The transaction contemplated under the tenancy agreement
constituted a continuing connected transaction for the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Further
details of the continuing connected transaction were set out
in the Company’s announcement dated 31 October 2017.

Emperor Culture Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018 F

MEXBEALRE (&)

it

(M

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

RENCLEXEBERQF

ZESERE N2 EBERTS:

20184518158 » AY Trustiz 4l 2 —
B AR EmEEEBRERAR ([BILE
B2 1) ETSL— 1 thhak o ARIE WS - B20184F
18298 # £202043A31H It Bib &
BRRENE AR (578 [BILEm]) f()
MESEERE AR (BEAEE)®EF
ECHERBRESESEBHEER K
RERMREBARS: (NAREEE
RERRIHEERAES HASFEARE
BEHEE (FRAESHEEMNEHERE: &
(IRt R E—REFBRRPIREZZ
SHMBRRERS METBRAME
NERR S - HERER S 7 i — PHE
HARABHHA2018FE3F16H 2 AE
ﬁqo

R2017F5 858 AR A —BE2EN
BAw (fEAMP)B—REEAR (1
BEX)FIV—MNHEHE  BxiE
ARREBEBZHBARHEREME:

FHEIB2017F5 A5 £ E£2027F5 4R
LEBHA10MF (A] i 1248 Hi5 6 B £20324F
548 1) -HERZEE TRETZIRS
B R E14AZT B AR R 2 — 18
BERER S B ERER S 2 HE—F
FBEYRARF B EA2017F5850
ZRER-

201768 A24H AR al—HE2EM
BAw (fEAMP)B—REEAR (1
BEI)FIV—MNHEHE  BxEE
AREEAZMBAREEREWE B
HIE20179F9 A 1H #£ £20234F8 A31H
LE B H6F (A 248 HieF H £20294F8
A318L) - HEBBEETHETIRS
B R E14AZT B AR 2 — 18
BERER S B ERER 2 HE—F
FIBEIIN AR R HEA20176F8 8241
ZRER-

M20174E10A31H - AR A —HE2E
MEAR (FAMF)E—MEERDR
(EEBEX)FIY—mHEEWmE Btz
BEARRERZMBARLARED
¥ THEIBE2017911 A1 8 #£ 20224
10A31H L BHASF - A E T8 T #iiE
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41. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

42.

(b)

)

On 28 February 2018, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company as tenant, entered into a tenancy
agreement with a related company as landlord which
agreed to lease the agreed premises to the subsidiary for
a term of 3 years from 1 March 2018 to 28 February 2021.
The transaction contemplated under the tenancy agreement
constituted a continuing connected transaction for the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Further
details of the continuing connected transaction were set out
in the Company’s announcement dated 28 February 2018.

Details of balances with related companies/non-
controlling interests at the end of the reporting period are
set out in note 32.

(c) The key management personnel of the Company are the
Directors. Details of their remunerations are set out in

MNERKRBEALRE (&)
Wt (&)

(v) R2018F2H28H ' AR —EEEEMH
BAR (fERHEF)E— Fﬁﬁfa;@@aﬂu’ﬁ
BEX)FIL—HHEEHE  BitxiEe
AEIRBEMZHBA Ttlﬂﬁﬁ%i%%
TR HI B 20183 A1 # 202142 A28
BHIL AT -HERBBE N RETZR
SRR FTRAE14AZEETART Y —
HFERERS - ERER S 2 E—
FSEEEENAAR AR A201842 728
AZzRER-

(b) MMEHR - EEEEAF),FHERER 2
RERRRHIB RN RES2 °

€) ARAEEEEABRES KEZHH
BN M6 -

note 16.
FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE 42. AT 2 B E R
COMPANY
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
Non-current assets FRBDEE
Intangible assets BIPEE \ -
Investment in subsidiaries RSB RRIZZE 537,073
537,073
Current assets REEE
Other receivables, deposits and H bk - 1% e RIER
prepayments 251
Financial assets at fair value through BEAnBEFABR
profit or loss TREE 4,165
Cash and bank balances Re MR1TTET 364,300
368,716
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables B 5 & B b e R 1,344
Amount due to a related company mMAEAFNER 266
1,610
Net current assets REBEEFE 367,106
Net assets EEFE 904,179
Capital and reserves Bﬁﬂﬂiﬁﬁ
Share capital [N 32,133
Reserves (note) s (Aat) 872,046
Total equity A 904,179
P\

Emperor Culture Group Limited
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42. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

R.EKNT2HBER (&)

Note: et -

At 1 July 2016 20167811 733,016 50 58,658 (87,678) 754,046
Loss for the year FEEE - - - (61,827) (61,827)
Other comprehensive FEEMEE W

income for the year - - - - -
Total comprehensive loss &€ 2 H A EEFE

for the year - - - (61,827) (61,827)
Issue of new shares by B REEITHRD

subscription 180,000 - - - 180,000
Shares issuing expenses %13 31T Z (173) - - - (173)
At 30 June 2017 and R2017F6A308 &

1 July 2017 2017%7H1H 912,843 (99,505) 872,046
Loss for the year FEBE (151,473) (151,473)
Other comprehensive FEEMEEWE

income for the year - -
Total comprehensive loss  F & 2 M & 184858

for the year (151,473) (151,473)
At 30 June 2018 74201856 H30H 912,843 (250,978) 720,573

(=

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEEX{LEXEBERAA
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43. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(a) General information of subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at
30 June 2018 and 2017 are set out as follows:

43. B~ BB

(@) MBLAR—RER

R20184F 20176 A30H » A AR E &
HIBARLZ BRI T -

Dragon Animation Limited Hong Kong HK$100
EHEERAT B 1007

Emperor Cinema Group Limited British Virgin Islands US$1

AEEPHEEARAA (‘BVI') E
EERUES
([EBELE
gl)
Emperor Cinema Management Limited Hong Kong HK$1
AEBYHERARAR BB 1T
Goldcore Holdings Limited BVI US$1
EERLES %R
JOMM Samoa US$14,000
IEHSEE BED 14,000% T
Multi-Wide Limited Hong Kong HK$1
BRERRA A AT
Emperor Cinemas (China) Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$2
REBFH (PE)ERAA B 2B
Sino Spirit International Limited BVI US$100
(“Sino Spirit’) RBRIES 100%TT
(sino Spirit |)
Yulang Film and Animation Culture  Hong Kong HK$30,000,000
Limited i 30,000,000 7

IBTRIEULARAT

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEEX{LEXEEERAF
ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018 &3k

100%

- L 7864%

100%

- L T7864%

100%

100%

55%

- LR T864%

Animated product
development
BEEDRE

Investment holding

RERRK

Cinema operation

BheE

Investment holding
RERR

Production,
distribution and
licensing of
animations
BHEREL
e BITREE

Film and event
investments and
investment in
securities
BYREERERE
HESRE

Investment holding

RERRK

Investment holding

REER

Production,
distribution and
licensing of
animations
HELES
e B RERE
P\
, 147 l
\v
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43. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 43. Mt B A S (&)
(continued)
(a) General information of subsidiaries (continued) (a) MIBAT—RER (&)

HEEYH(RMERAT Macau MOP$25,000 - Cinema operation
P 25000297 BhEE
REEN(ZHERAT The PRC RMB32,800,000¢ 55%  Cinema operation
i ARE BleE
32,800,0007T*
REEFNOLR)ERAT The PRC RMB38,000,000¢ 100%  Cinema operation
# AEH Bl 2iE
38,000,000
EEEYH(ER)ERAA The PRC RMB33,000,000¢ 100%  Cinema operation
i AEE BhieE
33,000,0007c*
REEH(KE)ERAT The PRC RMB23,500,000¢ 100%  Cinema operation
i ARE BleE
23,500,0007T*
AREMBETRXERLE  ThePRC RMB15,000,000¢ LI 78.64% Film and TV
# NG programme
15,000,0007C* production and
distribution
EYREREHE
BIERETT
*  Registered capital tEMmER N
* The amount represents the registered capital of % £ & &/ Y ZeRBEREEZH (ER)ARA A
(FEF)B R A B including its branch 2 EFH (AL R)AR (BREZFEZW (L) BRAFRY
~alRID A E] DRTE) ZEMEAR
Notes: Mt -
(i)  All are ordinary share capital unless otherwise stated. (iy FRBHEHEEIN 2 EL B -
(i) None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital subsisting at (i) P B D B R R o A AR B
the end of the year or at any time during the year. BEAAEEER.
(i) The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company (i) ERFDIZAABMEBAR HEERS
which, in the opinion of the Directors, principally affected HAEE  EENEERSERTEE N
the results or assets of the Group. To give details of other BRF - EFERR — G AMME A
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the Directors, result in RZHBEREEEBERBRITR

particulars of excessive length.

A
, 148 l Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX{tEXEBHERA A
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43. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 43. B R RIF1E (&)
(continued)
(a) General information of subsidiaries (continued) (a) MBLAR—RER (&)
At the end of the reporting period, the Company has REEER  AAREBHAEE M 51
other subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. The TEAZHMHB AR - ZEMBAFZ
principal activities of these subsidiaries are summarised FEEBHMANT -
as follows:

Investment holding and others Hong Kong 2
AR K HAD, 8
BVI 2
RERZES
None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital subsisting 2B A TR ok ok AN 4E A {A] B RS
at the end of the year or at any time during the year. B fE BB o
(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have (b) BEEARFERERCEZENHED
material non-controlling interests CilA=
The table below shows details of non-wholly owned TREHTESE AR ANAT
subsidiaries of the Company that have material non- ET BB AT S

controlling interests:

JOMM® Samoa, Hong Kong and the PRC/ L 21.36%
2SR Hong Kong and the PRC
BEG BERTE/
BERT

Sino Spirit* BVI and the PRC/the PRC (4,173) (18,346)

EBEREBRTE/F
Representing JDMM Group A e eS|
# Representing Sino Spirit and its subsidiaries # #5Sino Spirit & Z M B A 7)

P\
Emperor Culture Group Limited HEEX{LEXEEERAF ,1
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43. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 43.
(continued)

(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have
material non-controlling interests (continued)

B QRS (&)

(b) EEEXFEREZZHFZENEAL
Bz#E (&)

Current assets MENEE 27,460

Non-current assets JERENEE 28,015
Current liabilities nEALE (23,733)
Non-current liabilities EmENBE -
Revenue A 16,673
Costs, other revenue, PRS- EAb s -
expenses and taxation Fx & Fi1E (18,321)
Loss for the year FEBE (1,648)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) KEEH RS
from operating activities WA i)
SREE 4,298
Net cash outflow from "EESH RS
investing activities MR (4,253)
Net cash inflow from BMEES 2R
financing activities MAHE -
Net cash inflow/(outflow) BeErA/ Rt
FEE 45

The above details do not include the financial information
of Mega-Vision Productions Limited and its subsidiary,
Mega-Vision Pictures Limited (collectively referred to as
“Mega-Vision Group”) which was owned as to 80% by
the Group before the disposal on 2 May 2018. Details of
the financial information of Mega-Vision Group are set out
in note 37.

R
,1 501 Emperor Culture Group Limited HEEX{LEXEEERAA
ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018 &3k

26,025 23,900
43,364 50,304
) (107,623)

705 38,292 31,829

(8,333) (47,565)
(7,628) (9,273)

247 2,445 (6,310)
(345) (609)

5

FHBETRREETHAR AT N EH
BRABIEIARLAR (5E [BIEHE
E|) (FRo018E5 A2 HERTEALEE
HHBO%IER) 2 IEER B TS E
2 BRI B E M 5E37 o
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44.EVENT AFTER THE END OF REPORTING 44. &M REEIH
PERIOD

On 24 May 2018, the Company and Emperor International 201858240 - AR Rl B S £ E (EHR)
Holdings Limited (“Emperor International’), a connected BIRAF ([REREK]) (KRR ZEEEATL)
person of the Company, entered into a master leasing AV E R ([BEEHER])  E+HE7)
agreement (“Master Leasing Agreement’) which sets HEASEHRLERNREBEKER TR HE
out a framework of the terms governing the tenancy ERXFERGH - HF BN AT HE
transactions between the Group and the relevant members 20185 H248 2 A E AR AR HH /2018
of Emperor International, details of which were set out in the FTRAITEBZBERA - REEHZEMEBEFE
announcement dated 24 May 2018 and the circular dated 17 FBRA2018F8AERRRI R A ERE X BB
July 2018 of the Company. The Master Leasing Agreement SRR 2B o

and the relevant annual cap were approved by the respective
independent shareholders of the Company and Emperor
International in August 2018.

45. AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE 45. RETI B EEMBHRK
OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
The consolidated financial statements were approved TERB BRI A2018F9A20R B EE L
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 20 T RT3
September 2018.

)\

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEEX{LEXEEERAF ,1511
ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018 &3k

\



Five-year Financial Summary
LENBHEE

HE2018F6 A30H It AAFEAREE v B AME
BUREBERBEMEHMOT :

The following is a summary of the published results and the assets
and liabilities of the Group for the five years ended 30 June 2018:

RESULTS

ES

Continuing operations &L £
Revenue A 54,437 85,332 24,251 44,925
Loss before taxation BRA AT EE (65,051) (28,354) (48,680) (69,253)
Taxation (charge)/credit ~ 18 (2 ) % - (17) - 175
Loss for the year from BEEEFEE
continuing operations FEEIE (65,051) (28,371) (48,680) (69,078)
Discontinued operation T IE& %K
Loss for the year from ERIMEEES 2
discontinued operation* [ E518* - (48,873) (28,747) -
Loss for the year FEEE (65,051) (77,244) (77,427) (69,078)
Profit/(loss) attributable to: B F7I| A L ELFE
wmA, (EE) -
Owners of the Company ARX&#HA A (66,832) (75,115)  (106,015) (62,327)
Non-controlling interests ~ FE¥% %A 25 1,781 (2,129) 28,588 (6,751)
(65,051) (77,244) (77,427) (69,078)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE

Total assets BEE 529,597 956,210 827,832 1,053,942 902,608
Total liabilities FER=NE (45,180) (98,307) (76,543)  (173,048) Lol )]
Net assets BETE 484,417 857,903 751,289 880,894 741,140
Capital and reserves B TFIATEERA R

attributable to: =

Owners of the Company A&AA&E#HA A 500,725 884,464 776,177 904,179 752,706

Non-controlling interests ~ JEIE & 25 (16,308) (26,561) (24,888) (23,285) (11,566)

484,417 857,903 751,289 880,894 741,140

* The discounted operation represented the post production service
segment which was disposed of by the Group during the year ended
30 June 2016.

Y ERLEREXRBEASERE2016F6H30H LLF
EHEZ &BEUERB S E-
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